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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
RBC Bearings Incorporated

We are a well known international manufacturer araaketer of highly engineered precision plain,aolind ball bearings. Bearings,
which are integral to the manufacture and operaifamost machines and mechanical systems, reduaetaenoving parts, facilitate proper
power transmission and reduce damage and energgadosed by friction. While we manufacture prodictll major bearing categories, we
focus primarily on highly technical or regulatedaiag products for specialized markets that regsigghisticated design, testing and
manufacturing capabilities. We believe our uniqupestise has enabled us to garner leading positionsany of the product markets in wh
we primarily compete. We estimate that over onetfoaf our net sales are derived from productsafbich we are the sole supplier and the
only manufacturer able to provide the required ingasolution. We believe that being the sole sugygdhr these products provides us with a
competitive advantage due to the lengthy and rigerertification processes and/or approvals reduigea majority of these customers or
government agencies, which typically take anywtlfienm six months to six years to complete, and dueur long track record with most of
these customers of delivering high quality and uaiy designed and engineered products in a timalymar. We have been providing bea
solutions to our customers since 1919. Over thetpag/ears, under the leadership of our curremagament team, we have significantly
broadened our end markets, products, customeramasgeographic reach. We currently operate 15 naatwring facilities in three countries.

The Bearing Industry

The bearing industry is a highly fragmented muillidn dollar market. Purchasers of bearings inelymloducers of commercial and
military aerospace equipment, automotive and coromlerruck manufacturers, industrial equipment arathinery manufacturers,
agricultural machinery manufacturers and constomgtmining and specialized equipment manufacturers.

The increased demand for bearings in the divedsifidustrial market is being influenced by growttindustrial machinery and
equipment shipments and increasing nonresideraiadtouction activity. In addition, increased usafexisting machinery will significantly
improve aftermarket demand for replacement begrinoducts. In the aerospace market, aging of the&tiagicommercial aircraft fleet along
with carrier traffic growth is expected to continiweexpand demand for our bearing solutions. Lastlyng growth in the defense market is
being influenced by modernization programs necat#sg increased spending on new equipment, asasalbntinued utilization of deployed
equipment supporting robust aftermarket demandeijplacement bearings.

Our Competitive Strengths

We believe that for the majority of our products principal competitive factors affecting our mesis are product qualifications,
product line breadth, service and price. Althougims of our current and potential competitors haeatgr financial, marketing, personnel
and other resources than us, we believe that wevaigositioned to compete with regard to eactheke factors in each of the markets in
which we operate.

Leading Market Positions. We compete in specialized markets where we beliavare often the only supplier with the manufaciyri
expertise, business plan and engineering resoteqesred to provide the required bearing solutidte. estimate that approximately twhuirds
of our net sales during fiscal 2005 and fiscal 26@8e generated by products for which we hold th@lmer one or two market position. Most
of our products undergo lengthy and rigorous custoeertification processes and/or approvals, whileaerospace and defense products
generally require additional FAA and military cédation, respectively. We often participate in @ustomers’ product design and/or
certification process which typically takes anywdh&om six months to six years to complete, andnamy cases, our bearings are the only
products that are certified for use with the praduibis is evidenced by our strong customer retestitips, many of which are greater than
20 years.

Diversified Revenue Base. We sell a wide array of bearing products to custsnaeross many diverse end markets, each of which i
influenced by different fundamental economic fast@ur products are sold both to OEMs and to aftekat distributors and service
providers. In addition, we currently sell our protkito more than 6,700 customers, and no singl®ities represented more than 7% of our
net sales during fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2006. Overgified revenue base mitigates the impact ofsingle product or customer on our
financial performance.




Large Installed Product Base with Recurring Aftermarket Revenue Stream. We provide bearings to a large and growing number o
applications for which our products have been teated certified. Our bearing products are apprdegedver 32,000 applications, many of
which are part of aerospace, defense and induptatbrms that can be in service for as long agise decades, thereby requiring continuing
aftermarket support. Many of our products areaaltio the performance of the equipment in whiaythre installed but represent a small
percentage of the ongoing maintenance expense @&uhipment. Aftermarket sales of replacement partsxisting equipment platforms
represented approximately 55% of our net salefidoal 2006. We believe we are well positioneddatue to capture recurring revenue
from these product lines in the future due to tigh ltustomer switching costs and our high senaeels associated with most of the
equipment in which our products are installed.

Proprietary Design and Manufacturing Capabilities. We believe that our bearing engineering and marnwifiag expertise, including o
dedicated team of engineers and proprietary matwfag capabilities, positions us to provide higrality, innovative solutions to our
targeted markets in a timely way. We also beliéna bur design and manufacturing capabilities alidw us to maintain a leadership posit
as our customers continue to rely on us to devedap bearing solutions that can be manufacturedeftesttively. However, our strength in
this area is dependent upon our ability to contitauattract and retain skilled engineers.

Disciplined Acquisition Program with History of Successful I ntegration. We have demonstrated expertise in acquiring argjiating
bearing and precision-engineered component manuéstthat have complementary products or disinbuthannels and provide significant
potential for margin enhancement. We have condigtercreased the profitability of acquired busises through a process of methods and
systems improvement coupled with the introductiboammplementary and proprietary new products. SiDcwber 1992 we have completed
13 acquisitions which have significantly broadepned end markets, products, customer base and gaugneach. Most recently, in
September 2005, we acquired the Southwest Pro@actgpany, a manufacturer of spherical bearingsnglusearings and push-pull controls
for military weapon systems and military and comersdraerospace applications.

Experienced Management Team. Our management team possesses extensive managgeaience in the bearing industry, with our top
five operating executives averaging over 20 yealsearing industry experience. We intend to retaid attract experienced professionals by
leveraging our reputation as a premier providgsretision bearing solutions.

Our Growth Strategy

We intend to grow our business while continuindomus on specialized markets for highly enginedrearing solutions. Key elements
our growth strategy include:

Continue to Develop | nnovative Bearing Solutions. We intend to leverage our design and manufactekpgrtise and our extensive
customer relationships to continue to develop nesdipcts for markets where we believe there aretantial growth opportunities. We
analyze new product opportunities carefully by makinto account projected market prices and voluamesexpected manufacturing costs,
only pursuing new product lines that we believd adhieve our gross margin targets. Recent exangblesr new product and process
innovation include lightweight aircraft structumponents that integrate bearing products foAiHeus series of aircraft, corrosion resist
materials for aircraft bearings and patented nesigms that improve the service performance of caltoviers for the oil and gas, packaging
and material handling industries. Our ability tovelep new custom engineered products strengthaaesrexcustomer relationships and
creates new business opportunities for us.

Expand Customer Base and Penetrate End Markets. We continually seek opportunities to penetrate nestomers, geographic locatic
and bearing platforms with existing products offigable new product opportunities. For example,hage been expanding our sales to
foreign aerospace manufacturers and foreign def@aseifacturers that support the U.S. governmerddttition, in the last three years we
have added sales support in numerous new U.Sidosais well as Paris, France and Asia and have ddgle to increase aftermarket sales in
these regions. We currently have sales officewvar @0 other U.S. cities as well as other inteoral locations such as Germany, Englanc
Switzerland. We intend to continue to expand olgsstorce, customer base and end markets and emfied a number of attractive grov
opportunities domestically and abroad, includingeut projects in semiconductor machinery, airfrasoetrols and missile guidance syste
In addition, our OEM relationships, coupled withr alesign expertise, provide us with extensive esmdlng opportunities on platforms that
we do not currently supply.

I ncrease Aftermarket Sales. Aftermarket sales accounted for approximately 55%up net sales for fiscal 2006. Such sales inaluoieth
sales to third party distributors and a portioof sales to OEMs for replacement bearings. Weihte




increase the percentage of our revenues derivettiie replacement market by continuing to implenseweral initiatives. First, we will
continue to seek opportunities to increase ousdal&ey existing distributors as well as expandlmase of third party customers. Second, our
new product and new end market initiatives are $eduwon high-growth platforms, such as 300 millimetamiconductor manufacturing
systems and the U.S. government’s Joint StriketBrgbrogram that we expect will be in service fond periods and therefore create
significant demand for replacement parts. Additliynave will seek opportunities to develop new pucts that can be used as replacement
parts for existing platforms. For example, we hbgen approved recently to supply replacement bgswon the U.S. Navy's fleet of Harrier
aircraft. We believe that increasing our aftermasgedes of replacement parts will further enhaiheecontinuity and predictability of our
revenues and increase our profitability.

Pursue Selective Acquisitions. We believe that there will continue to be consdl@awithin the bearing industry that may presesnt u
with acquisition opportunities, particularly withihe industrial and aerospace markets. This catestdin is being driven by an ongoing trend
among OEMs to utilize fewer suppliers in orderitofify procurement, increase manufacturing efficig and reduce costs; and, because we
are one of the more well known and establishedIgrpmf high quality specialty bearing productssia trend that has often worked in our
favor. We regularly evaluate opportunities, somabich may be material, to acquire bearing andipi@t-engineered component
manufacturers which have complementary productpaouers or distribution channels, provide significaotential for margin enhancement
and further expand the breadth of our product pbotf

Customers and Markets

We serve a broad range of end markets where wad@ralue with our specialty, precision bearingdpicis and applications. We
classify our customers into two principal categeridiversified industrial and aerospace and defefsese principal end markets utilize a
large number of both commercial and specializedibggroducts. Although we provide a relatively $inparcentage of total bearing produ
supplied to each of our overall principal markets,believe we have leading market positions in mafrtire specialized bearing product
markets in which we primarily compete. Financidbimation regarding geographic areas is set fortlieim 8, Note 20.

» Diversified Industrial Market (56% of net salesfor the fiscal year ended April 1, 2006)

We manufacture bearing products for a wide rang#warsified industrial markets, including constian and mining, oil and natural
resource extraction, heavy truck, packaging ands®rductor machinery. Nearly all mechanical deviaed machinery require bearings to
relieve friction where one part moves relative nother. Our products target existing market appbca in which our engineering and
manufacturing capabilities provide us with a contpet advantage in the marketplace.

Our largest diversified industrial customers inéupplied Materials, Caterpillar, Chicago RawhiBaton, Hitachi Construction
Machinery, Parker-Hannifin Corporation and variaftermarket distributors including Applied InduatriMotion Industries and McMaster
Carr. We believe that the diversification of oulessamong the various markets of the industriatibga market reduces our exposure to
downturns in any individual market. We believe ogipnities exist for growth and margin improvementtis market as a result of increasing
demand for industrial machinery, the introductiémew products and the expansion of aftermarketssal

e Aerospace and Defense Market (44% of net salesfor the fiscal year ended April 1, 2006)
Aerospace Applications

We supply bearings for use in commercial and peiatcraft. We supply bearings for many of the carsial aircraft currently
operating worldwide and are the primary suppliemfiany of our product lines. This includes militaxgntractors for airplanes, helicopters
and missile systems. Commercial aerospace custayaaesally require precision products, often ofcigenaterials, made to unique designs
and specifications. Many of our aerospace beaniodurts are designed and certified during the oaigilevelopment of the aircraft being
served, which often makes us the primary bearipglger for the life of the aircraft.

Our largest aerospace customers include Airbusingp&eneral Electric, Lockheed Martin, Raytheooll®RRoyce, Pratt and Whitney
and various aftermarket channels. We estimateotrert 64% of commercial aerospace net sales aralbctused as replacement parts, as
bearings are regularly replaced on aircraft in goagfion with routine maintenance procedures. Wibelour strong relationships with
OEMs help drive our aftermarket sales since a pomif OEM sales are ultimately




intended for use as replacement parts. We belietsgrowth and margin expansion in this segmerntheildriven primarily by expanding our
international presence and the refurbishment aridterence of existing commercial aircraft.

Defense Applications

We manufacture bearing products used by the U.Bafment of Defense and certain foreign governmiemtsse in fighter jets, troop
transports, naval vessels, helicopters, gas tudsigines, armored vehicles, guided weaponry ardliseg. We manufacture an extensive line
of standard products that conform to many domesiiitary application requirements, as well as cusied products designed for unique
applications. We specialize in the manufactureigh fprecision ball and roller bearings, commerbil bearings and metal-to-metal and self-
lubricating plain bearings for the defense marketr bearing products are manufactured to conforth. & military specifications and are
typically custom designed during the original proddesign phase, which often makes us the soleimiapy bearing supplier for the life of
the product. In addition to products that meettanili specifications, these customers often requieeision products made of specialized
materials to custom designs and specificationsdirrtoapproval for use on military equipment is nféelengthy process ranging from six
months to six years.

Our largest defense customers include the U.S. irapat of Defense and all branches of the U.Stanjli Sales consist primarily of
replacement bearings on programs for which welagtimary supplier. We believe that our currestailed base of bearing products and
sophisticated engineering and manufacturing caiiabiposition us to benefit from growing replacernpart demand caused by increased
equipment utilization as well as the introductidmew weapons and transport systems. Appropriafiensaintenance and repairs for
product platforms serviced by us have generallyaiaed relatively stable, even during periods whitrfense spending was in relative dec
such as the early to mid-1990s. With increased iguwent spending on defense, demands for the rapdimaintenance of the product
platforms serviced by us have strengthened in ds¢ year.

We have longerm supply agreements that serve to establishdbge of the supply arrangements with many of angrelr customers. T
primary purpose of these agreements is to allovetistomer to secure favorable pricing and capadiiye providing us with the opportunity
to effectively plan production. The majority of Heeagreements are for three year terms, howevgetdaarms are occasionally agreed upon.
Typically, large OEM customers are in the threeryedegory while defense contractors and their anmg are likely to involve longer terms.
These agreements generally establish the priceéypincluding material escalation), the prodbeing supplied, the term of the agreement,
minimum quantities and general terms and conditiblasvever, shipments are based solely upon thenpsecorders placed by the customer
under the long-term supply agreement.

Products

Bearings are employed to fulfill several functiansluding reduction of friction, transfer of moti@md carriage of loads. We design,
manufacture and market a broad portfolio of beapiraglucts. The following table provides a summdrgwr product segments:

Net Sales for the Fiscal Year Ende!

April 3, April 2, April 1,
Segment 2004 2005 2006 Representative Applications
Plain Bearings $77,578 $93,250 $115,091 . Aircraft engine controls and landing gear
(41.4%) (38.4%) (41.9%) . Helicopter rotors and missile launchers

. Mining and construction equipment
Roller Bearings $63,106 $92,281 $96,466 .« Aircraft hydraulics

(33.7%) (38.0%) (35.1%) . Military and commercial truck chassis
. Packaging machinery and gear pumps
Ball Bearings $35,801 $41,881 $46,378 .« Radar and night vision systems
(19.1%) (17.2%) (16.9%) . Airframe control and actuation
. Semiconductor equipment
Other $10,846 $15,604 $16,574  « Precision ground ball screws for robotic handlind aissile guidance
(5.8%) (6.4%) (6.1%) « Collets for machine tools

Plain Bearings. Plain bearings are primarily used to rectify inalie misalignments in various mechanical componentsh as aircraft
controls, helicopter rotors, or in heavy mining aetstruction equipment. Such misalignments are




either due to machining inaccuracies or result wt@nponents change position relative to each ofam bearings are produced with either
self-lubricating or metal-to-metal designs and ¢stn®f several sub-classes, including rod end bgarispherical plain bearings and journal
bearings. Sales of plain bearings accounted f&% hf our net sales in fiscal 2006.

Roller Bearings. Roller bearings are artiiction products that utilize cylindrical rollinglements. We produce three main designs: ta
roller bearings, needle roller bearings and nekdéing track rollers and cam followers. We produeglium sized tapered roller bearings
used primarily in heavy truck axle applications. @ffer several needle roller bearing designs thauaed in both industrial applications and
certain U.S. military aircraft platforms. These gwats are generally specified for use where thexdgh loads and the design is constrained
by space considerations. A significant portionh# sales of this product is to the aftermarket.diebearing track rollers and cam followers
have wide and diversified use in the industrial kméand are often prescribed as a primary compdnearticulated aircraft wings. We belie
we are the world’s largest producer of aircraftdiedoearing track rollers. The sale of roller begsi accounted for 35.1% of our net sales in
fiscal 2006.

Ball Bearings. Ball bearings are devices which utilize high prieishall elements to reduce friction in high spegglications. We
specialize in four main types of ball bearings:hhjgecision aerospace, airframe control, thin eacind industrial ball bearings. High
precision aerospace bearings are primarily sotigbomers in the defense industry that require rresienically sophisticated bearing
products, such as missile guidance systems, prayitigher degrees of fault tolerance given thecality of the applications in which they
are used. Airframe control ball bearings are preniball bearings that are plated to resist coomsind are qualified under a military
specification. Thin section ball bearings are splemd bearings that use extremely thin cross@estand give specialized machinery
manufacturers many advantages. We produce a gdineraf industrial ball bearings sold primarily tiee aftermarket. Ball bearings
accounted for 16.9% of our net sales in fiscal 2006

Other. Our other products consist primarily of precisiorear precision products and machine tool colletsear products are precision
ground ball bearing screws that offer repeatabfgtiopming accuracy in defense, machine tools, rielimndling and semiconductor
equipment. We also have several application dewedmp programs for linear precision products in pesg in guided missile, unmanned
aircraft, and “smart bomb” applications. Machineltoollets are cone-shaped metal sleeves, usdwbfding circular or rodlike pieces in a
lathe or other machine, that provide effective pattling and accurate part location during machyraperations. Our other products
accounted for 6.1% of our net sales in fiscal 2006.

Product Design and Development

We produce specialized bearings which are oftdoréal to the specifications of a customer or agpian. Our sales professionals are
highly experienced engineers who collaborate withaustomers on a continual basis to develop bgaatutions. The product development
cycle can follow many paths which are dependertherend market or channel. The process normallystaketween 8-years from concept
sale depending upon the application and the matkedmmon route that is used for major OEM projdxtgins when our design engineers
meet with their customer counterparts at the mactesign conceptualization stage and work with ttreaugh the conclusion of the product
development.

Often, at the early stage, a bearing design conisgpbduced that addresses the expected dematius application. Environmental
demands are many but normally include load, sttessat, thermal gradients, vibration, lubricant dypporrosion resistance, with one or two
of these environmental constraints being predontiimathe design consideration. A bearing designtrpasform reliably for a period of time
specified by the customer’s product objectives.

Once a bearing is designed, a mathematical sirul&icreated to replicate the expected applicaioironment and thus allow
optimization with respect to these design variablgson conclusion of the design and simulation phaamples are produced and laboratory
testing commences at one of our test laboratofies.purpose of this testing phase is not only tifwéhe design and the simulation model
but also to allow further design improvement wheeeded. Finally, upon successful field testingh®ydustomer, the product is ready for ¢

For the majority of our products, the culminatidrtias lengthy process is the receipt of a prodypgroval or certification, generally
obtained from either the OEM, the Department ofddsé or the FAA which allows us to supply the patda the customer. We currently
have in excess of 32,000 such approvals, whiclmaftees us a significant competitive advantage,iandany of these instances we are the
only approved supplier of a given bearing product.

Manufacturing and Operations

Our manufacturing strategies are focused on pragliebility, quality and service. Custom and stamtproducts are produced accor(
to manufacturing schedules that ensure maximuniadiétly of popular items for immediate sale while




carefully considering the economies of lot produttand special products. Capital programs and naatwing methods development are
focused on quality improvement and low productiosts. A monthly review of product line productiogrformance assures an environment
of continuous attainment of profitability goals.

Capacity. Our plants currently run on a single shift, andifigecond and third shifts at selected locatians)¢et the demands of our
customers. We believe that current capacity leaetsfuture annual estimated capital expendituresgoiipment up to approximately 4% of
net sales should permit us to effectively meet detavels for the foreseeable future. We also belibat we have the ability to increase
capacity and move to full second or third shiftsewhequired.

Inventory Management. Our increasing emphasis on the distributor/aftekeiagector has required us to maintain greatemitavies of a
broader range of products than the OEM market hdgtly demanded. We operate an inventory managepregram designed to balance
customer delivery requirements with economicalltiropl inventory levels. In this program, each proids categorized based on
characteristics including order frequency, numidarustomers and sales volume. Using this classifioasystem, our primary goal is to
maintain a sufficient supply of standard items whmilinimizing warehousing costs. In addition, praérccost savings are achieved by
optimizing plant scheduling around inventory levatel customer delivery requirements. This leadndee efficient utilization of
manufacturing facilities and minimizes plant protilme changes while maintaining sufficient invenssrio service customer needs.

Sales, Marketing and Distribution

Our marketing strategy is aimed at increasing s&l/sn our two primary markets, targeting specdigplications in which we can
exploit our competitive strengths. To effect thimegy, we seek to expand into geographic areagrauviously served by us and we continue
to capitalize on new markets and industries fostaxj and new products. We employ a technicallyfipient sales force and utilize marketing
managers, product managers, customer service egpatives and product application engineers irselling efforts.

We have accelerated the development of our sates through the hiring of sales personnel with pibiearing industry experience,
complemented by an in-house training program. Vienithto continue to hire and develop expert salefegsionals and strategically locate
them to implement our expansion strategy. Todaydoect sales force is located to service Northetica, Europe and Latin America and is
responsible for selling all of our products. Thédlisg model leverages our relationship with kegtomers and provides opportunities to
market multiple product lines to both established potential customers. We also sell our produmtsugh a well-established, global network
of industrial and aerospace distributors. This cleaprimarily provides our products to smaller OEMstomers and the end users of bearings
that require local inventory and service. In aaditispecific larger OEM customers are also servibesligh this channel to facilitate
requirements for “Just In Time” deliveries or “KBan” systems. Our worldwide distributor network yides our customers with more than
1,500 points of sale for our products. We intenddnotinue to focus on building distributor saletuvoe.

The sale of our products is supported by a weli@ and experienced customer service organizaliois. organization provides
customers with instant access to key informatigrareing their bearing purchase and delivery requirgs. We also provide customers with
updated information through our web site, and weetdeveloped on-line integration with specific cusérs, enabling more efficient ordering
and timely order fulfillment for those customers.

We store product inventory in four company-owned aperated warehouses located on the East anddd&sts of the U.S., and in
France and Switzerland. The inventory is locateith@se warehouses based on thorough analysis toheeisdemand to provide superior
service and product availability to our customers.

Competition

Our principal competitors include Kaydon Corporatiblew Hampshire Ball Bearings and McGill Manufaity Company, Inc.,
although we compete with different companies faheaf our product lines. We believe that for thgarity of our products, the principal
competitive factors affecting our business are pevdualifications, product line breadth, servioe arice. Although some of our current and
potential competitors may have greater financiarkating, personnel and other resources than ubglieve that we are well positioned to
compete with regard to each of these factors ih eithe markets in which we operate.

Product Qualifications. Many of the products we produce are qualified fer application by the OEM, the U.S. Department efddse,
the FAA or a combination of these agencies. Thesgentials have been achieved for thousands dfhclistems after years of design, testing
and improvement. In many cases patent protectiesiges, in all cases there is strong brand ideatityin numerous cases we have the
exclusive product for the application.




Product Line Breadth. Our products encompass an extraordinarily broageaf designs which often create a critical mass of
complementary bearings and components for our n&rkais position allows many of our industrial aictraft customers the ability for a
single manufacturer to provide the engineeringiserand product breadth needed to achieve a s#rf@EM design objectives or aftermarl
requirements. This ability enhances our value ¢oQEM considerably while strengthening our oveararket position.

Service. Product design, performance, reliability, avail@pilquality, technical and administrative suppam elements that define the
service standard for this business. Our custontersaphisticated and demanding, as our productsiadamental and enabling components
to the construction or operating of their machin&¥e maintain inventory levels of our most poputems for immediate sale and service \
over 15,000 voice and electronic contacts per mddthr customers have high expectations regardiodymt availability, and the primary
emphasis of our service efforts is to ensure thiestipossible range of available products and elétig them on a timely basis.

Price. We believe our products are priced competitivelshim markets we serve. We continually evaluatenmamufacturing and other
operations to maximize efficiencies in order toues costs, eliminate unprofitable products frommantfolio and maximize our profit
margins. While we compete with larger bearing mantufrers who direct the majority of their businassvities, investments and expertise
toward the automotive industries, our sales initidsistry are only a small percentage of our buissiné/e invest considerable effort to
develop our price to value algorithms and we pricenarket levels where required by competitive puess.

Suppliers and Raw Materials

We obtain raw materials, component parts and sepfilom a variety of sources and generally fromentban one supplier. Our princi
raw material is steel. Our suppliers and sourceawfmaterials are based in the U.S., Europe aiml Mge purchase steel at market prices,
which during the past two years have increasedstofiical highs as a result of a relatively lowdéwef supply and a relatively high level of
demand. To date, we have generally managed tatipassyh these raw material price increases to ostomers by assessing steel surcharges
on, or price increases of, our bearing productsvéier, we have from time to time experienced a fegeof up to 12 weeks or more in our
ability to pass through steel surcharges to outocosrs which has negatively impacted our gross imsrgVe will continue to pass on raw
material price increases as competitive conditadiusv.

Because of extraordinarily high demand for certaades of steel, suppliers have in some instaritEsted certain types of steel in
limited quantities to customers. However, to date have never experienced a work stoppage dusupy shortage. We believe that our
sources for raw materials, including steel, aregadee for our needs in the foreseeable future thiese exist alternative suppliers for our raw
materials and that in most cases readily availalidgnative materials can be used for most of aurmaterials. However, we cannot provide
any assurances of the availability or the pricesdbf. We do not believe that the loss of any apgpler would have a material adverse effect
on our financial condition or results of operations

We have not been significantly impacted by receatdases in energy prices because energy costaotttesignificant component of
which is natural gas used in heat treating operaticepresent less than 4% of our overall costs.

Backlog

As of April 1, 2006, we had an order backlog of @Bmillion, as compared to a backlog of $134.8ianilin the prior year. The amount
of backlog includes orders which we estimate wallfblfilled within the next 12 months; however, erd included in our backlog are subject
to cancellation, delay or other modifications by oustomers prior to fulfillment. We sell many afrgproducts pursuant to contractual
agreements, single source relationships or long-parrchase orders, each of which may permit eartpination by the customer. However,
due to the nature of many of the products supfdieds and the lack of availability of alternativeppliers to meet the demands of such
customers’ orders in a timely manner, we beliewat ithis not practical or prudent for most of oustomers to shift their bearing business to
other suppliers.

Employees
We had approximately 1,213 hourly employees andsa®&ied employees as of April 1, 2006, of whorth @&re employed in our
European and Mexican operations. As of April 1,&0fpproximately 891 of our hourly employees, d¥6/dvere non-unionized. We believe

that our employee relations are satisfactory.

We are subject to several collective bargainingegrents covering unionized workers, as follows:




»  collective bargaining agreements with the Unitedo®WYorkers covering substantially all of the howlyployees at our West
Trenton, New Jersey, Fairfield, Connecticut andnB¥e, Indiana plants. These agreements expire an3wr2007, January 31,
2008 and October 31, 2009, respectively; and

» acollective bargaining agreement with the UniteeeSvorkers covering substantially all the hountyoyees at our Glasgow,
Kentucky plant. This agreement expires on JuneQag.

On February 15, 2006, our RBC Nice Bearings, lobsgliary and the United Steelworkers of Americ&l(ACIO) Local 6816-12
entered into a shutdown agreement in connectiom euit decision to close operations at our Kulpsyiftennsylvania facility. In connection
with the shutdown agreement, the union has agetake no action against us in connection with glaitdown. The agreement also
addresses closure and other transition issueeddiapensions, workers compensation, adjustmesigtasce and other matters. The
production conducted at the Nice facility has bemved to other RBC locations, and we anticipatenaterial impact on production or our
ability to service our customers.

Intellectual Property

We own U.S. and foreign patents and trademark tragjisns and U.S. copyright registrations, and Hay&. trademark and patent
applications pending. We currently have approximyal@ U.S. patents and patent applications andvadeeign patents. We file patent
applications and maintain patents to protect cetighnology, inventions and improvements thairaportant to the development of our
business, and we file trademark applications anidtaia trademark registrations to protect produanes that have achieved brand-name
recognition among our customers. We also rely upaste secrets, knowew and continuing technological innovation to depeand maintai
our competitive position. We believe our trade-sexrknow-how, innovations and product approvatssagnificantly more important to the
success of our business and ability to maintaincoarpetitive position than our patents. Many of brands are well recognized by our
customers and are considered valuable assets blsinmess. We currently have approximately 78 Wa@lemark registrations and
applications and a significant number of foreigrdemark registrations. We do not believe, howehat,any individual item of intellectual
property is material to our business. See “Riskdétac’

Regulation

Product Approvals. Essential to servicing the aerospace market ialiigy to obtain product approvals. We have inessof 32,000
product approvals in the form of OEM approvals art® Manufacturer Approvals (PMA) from the FAA. \Wave received over 2,400 PMA
approvals to date and have approximately 633 a&Wé applications in process. These approvals enablto provide products used in
virtually all domestic aircraft platforms presenityproduction or operation. The costs of obtainiaguired product approvals are not directly
tracked, but are included in our manufacturing bead and SG&A costs. We do not directly pass thests on to our customers, but they are
reflected indirectly in our overall product pricing

We are subject to various other federal laws, r&gis and standards. Although we are not presamtre of any pending legal or
regulatory changes that may have a material impacits, new laws, regulations or standards or cletwgexisting laws, regulations or
standards could subject us to significant additiopats of compliance or liabilities, and coulduiésn material reductions to our results of
operations, cash flow or revenues.

Environmental Matters

We are subject to federal, state and local enviemtal laws and regulations, including those govegrmiischarges of pollutants into the
air and water, the storage, handling and dispdsahstes and the health and safety of employeesaldgemay be liable under the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensatiahl, iability Act or similar state laws for thests of investigation and clean-up of
contamination at facilities currently or formerlwoed or operated by us, or at other facilities hiclv we have disposed of hazardous
substances. In connection with such contaminati@mnay also be liable for natural resource damagms&rnment penalties and claims by
third parties for personal injury and property dgmaAgencies responsible for enforcing these laave fauthority to impose significant civil
or criminal penalties for non-compliance. We betieve are currently in material compliance withegdplicable requirements of
environmental laws. We do not anticipate matergi@l expenditures for environmental controlsigtdl 2007.

Investigation and remediation of contaminationnga@ing at some of our sites. In particular, stateneies have been overseeing
groundwater monitoring activities at our facilitiesHartsville, South Carolina and Fairfield, Contieut. At Hartsville, we are monitoring
low levels of contaminants in the groundwater cduseformer operations. The state will permit




us to cease monitoring activities after two consigetsampling periods demonstrate contaminantdel@v action levels. In connection with
the purchase of our Fairfield, Connecticut facilityl 996, we agreed to assume responsibility fonpeting clean-up efforts previously
initiated by the prior owner. We submitted datah® state that we believe demonstrates that nbeuremedial action is necessary although
the state may require additional clean-up or maimitp Although there can be no assurance, we dexmct any of those to be material.

We received notice in 2003 from the U.S. EnvirontakRrotection Agency (EPA) that we had been naepdtentially responsibide
minimis party for past disposal of hazardous substancie @perating Industries, Inc.’s landfill in Monggr California. Any such disposal
would have been conducted prior to our ownershifd,\@e notified the former owners of a potentialraldor indemnification pursuant to the
terms of our asset purchase agreements. We aentymegotiating ae minimis settlement with the U.S. EPA and expect that attjeseent
even if we are unsuccessful in obtaining indematfan, will not be material to our results of ogéras or to our business.

Available Information

We file our annual, quarterly, and current repgrtexy statements, and other documents with ther@ms and Exchange Commission
(SEC) u nder the Securities Exchange Act of 193% gublic may read and copy any materials filedhwhie SEC at the SEC’s Public
Reference Room at 405 Fifth Street, N.W., WashimgihC. 20549. The public may obtain informationtba operation of the Public
Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-08B®, the SEC maintains an Internet website toatains reports, proxy and
information statements, and other information rdupay issuers that file electronically with the SH®e public can obtain any documents that
are filed by us at http://www.sec.gov.

In addition, this Annual Report on Form 10-K, adlvas our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, curr@parts on Form 8-K and any
amendments to all of the foregoing reports, areen@aaiilable free of charge on our Internet weklditeep://www.rbcbearings.com ) as soor
reasonably practicable after such reports arereldcally filed with or furnished to the SEC. A gopf the above filings will also be provided
free of charge upon written request to us.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Cautionary Statement As To Forward-Looking Information

This report includes “forward-looking statementsthin the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities$ of 1933 and Section 21E of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. All statemeiiter than statements of historical fact are “fngvlooking statements” for purposes of
federal and state securities laws, including amyegtions of earnings, revenue or other finantehs; any statements of the plans, strategies
and objectives of management for future operatiang;statements concerning proposed new servicgsvelopments; any statements
regarding future economic conditions or performaratire growth rates in the markets we serve;dases in foreign sales; supply and cost
of raw materials, any statements of belief; and stajements of assumptions underlying any of thegiming. Forward-looking statements
may include the words “may,” “estimate,” “intend¢ontinue,” “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” theegative of such terms or other
comparable terminology.

Although we believe that the expectations refledteany of our forward-looking statements are reasbe, actual results could differ
materially from those projected or assumed in dnyuo forward-looking statements. Our future fineshcondition and results of operations,
as well as any forward-looking statements, areestlip change and to inherent risks and uncereginsuch as those disclosed in Item 1A of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Factors that caddse our actual results, performance and achiewvtsnor industry results to differ
materially from estimates or projections contaiiretbrward-looking statements include, among othts following:

Additional factors that could cause actual redaltdiffer materially from our forward-looking statents are set forth in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K, including under Item 1. “Buesis,” Iltem 1A. “Risk Factors,” Item 7. “ManagemearDiscussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” #ech 8. “Financial Statements and SupplementaraDat

We are not under any duty to update any forwardétiuapstatements after the date of this report tfaaon such statements to actual
results or to changes in our expectations. All fmdvlooking statements contained in this reportamygsubsequently filed reports are
expressly qualified in their entirety by these tandry statements.




Our business, operating results or financial camalitould be materially adversely affected by afthe following risks. The trading
price of our common stock could decline due to aefithese risks, and you may lose all or part ofrjauestment. You should carefully
consider these risks before investing in sharesiotommon stock.

Risk Factors Related to Our Company
The bearing industry is highly competitive, and thé competition could reduce our profitability or limit our ability to grow.

The global bearing industry is highly competitiaad we compete with many U.S. and non-U.S. compaa@ne of which benefit from
lower labor costs and fewer regulatory burdens tlarWwe compete primarily based on product qualiins, product line breadth, service
and price. Certain competitors are larger thanrisibsidiaries of larger entities and may be betitde to manage costs than us or may have
greater financial resources than we have. Dueg@dmpetitiveness in the bearing industry we maybeable to increase prices for our
products to cover increases in our costs, or we fiaeg pressure to reduce prices, which could nakgreduce our revenues, gross margin
and profitability. Competitive factors, includinganges in market penetration, increased price ctitigpeand the introduction of new
products and technology by existing and new cortgrstcould result in a material reduction in owenrgues and profitability.

The loss of a major customer could result in a mat&l reduction in our revenues and profitability.

Our top ten customers generated 32% of our nes slieng fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2006. Accordinghge loss of one or more of those
customers or a substantial decrease in such custbpugchases from us could result in a materidiiction in our revenues and profitability.

In addition, the consolidation and combination efathse or other manufacturers may eliminate cus®fnam the industry and/or put
downward pricing pressures on sales of componetd.feor example, the consolidation that has oeclim the defense industry in recent
years has significantly reduced the overall nunabetefense contractors in the industry. In additibone of our customers is acquired
merged with another entity, the new entity may adiigimue using us as a supplier because of an mgibtisiness relationship with the
acquiring company or because it may be more effidie consolidate certain suppliers within the nefekrmed enterprise. The significance of
the impact that such consolidation may have orbosiness is difficult to predict because we dokmatw when or if one or more of our
customers will engage in merger or acquisitionvitgti However, if such activity involved our matakicustomers it could materially impact
our revenues and profitability.

Weakness in any of the industries in which our cusimers operate, as well as the cyclical nature of paustomers’ businesses generally
could materially reduce our revenues and profitabity.

The commercial aerospace, mining and constructjoipenent and other diversified industrial industrie which we sell our products
are, to varying degrees, cyclical and tend to dedln response to overall declines in industriadpiction. Margins in those industries are
highly sensitive to demand cycles, and our custserrethose industries historically have tendeddlay large capital projects, including
expensive maintenance and upgrades, during ecordmminturns. As a result, our business is also cgkland the demand for our products
by these customers depends, in part, on overalldenf industrial production, general economic ¢tons and business confidence levels.
Downward economic cycles have affected our custerard reduced sales of our products resultingdaat#ons in our revenues and net
earnings. Any future material weakness in demarahinof these industries could materially reducereuenues and profitability.

In addition, many of our customers have historjcakperienced periodic downturns, which often hiaze a negative effect on demand
for our products. For example, the severe downitu&001 in the aerospace industry resulted in dalfeor cancellations in aircraft orders,
which reduced the volume and price of orders pldoegroducts used to manufacture commercial dirdrecluding our bearings and other
individual parts and components we manufactureviBus industry downturns have negatively affectetj future industry downturns may
negatively affect, our net sales, gross marginretdncome.

Future reductions or changes in U.S. government spding could negatively affect our business.
In fiscal 2006, 6.6% of our net sales were madectly, and we estimate that approximately an amiufii 10.2% of our net sales were
made indirectly, to the U.S. government to suppulitary or other government projects. Our failtioeobtain new government contracts, the

cancellation of government contracts or reductiarfederal budget appropriations regarding our potsl could result in materially reduced
revenue. In addition, the funding of defense progralso competes with non-
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defense spending of the U.S. government. Our bssiisesensitive to changes in national and intemal priorities and the U.S. government
budget. A shift in government defense spendingheroprograms in which we are not involved or aumitn in U.S. government defense
spending generally could materially reduce our neres, cash flow from operations and profitabilifyve, or our prime contractors for which
we are a subcontractor, fail to win any particllak, or we are unable to replace lost businessrasudt of a cancellation, expiration or
completion of a contract, our revenues or cash ffould be reduced.

Fluctuating supply and costs of raw materials and mergy resources could materially reduce our revenug cash flow from operations
and profitability.

Our business is dependent on the availability arstiscof energy resources and raw materials, ptatlgisteel, generally in the form of
stainless and chrome steel, which are commodig} pteducts. Raw materials and purchased compongptssented approximately 30% of
our overall costs for fiscal 2005 and fiscal 200@& majority of which consisted of steel and redgteoducts. The availability and prices of
raw materials and energy sources may be subjettrtailment or change due to, among other things, laws or regulations, suppliers’
allocations to other purchasers, interruptionsrodpction by suppliers, changes in exchange ratésvarldwide price levels. Although we
currently maintain alternative sources for raw mats, our business is subject to the risk of pfiaetuations and periodic delays in the
delivery of certain raw materials. Disruptions i tsupply of raw materials and energy resourcelsldemporarily impair our ability to
manufacture our products for our customers or requs to pay higher prices in order to obtain thesematerials or energy resources from
other sources, which could thereby affect our a&tssand profitability.

For example, we purchase steel at market priceshvduring the past two years have increased tottigal highs as a result of a
relatively low level of supply and a relatively higevel of demand. As a result, we are currentipdp@assessed surcharges on certain of our
purchases of steel, and under certain circumstamneehave experienced difficulty in identifying skéor purchase. If we are unable to
purchase steel for our operations for a signifigaartod of time, our operations would be disruptedich could reduce or delay sales of our
products, and, in turn, could result in a mate®aluction in our revenues, cash flow from operatiand profitability. In addition, we may be
unable to pass on the increased costs of raw rabstéoi our customers, which could materially redogecash flow from operations and
profitability.

We seek to pass through a significant portion efazditional costs to our customers through steedrerges or price increases.
However, even if we are able to pass these steeharges or price increases to our customers, thayebe a time lag of up to 12 weeks or
more between the time a cost increase goes irgoteihd our ability to implement surcharges oreiicreases, particularly for orders alre
in our backlog. As a result our gross margin petage may decline, and we may not be able to impiemiher price increases for our
products. We cannot provide assurances that wébeidlble to continue to pass these additional @wsts our customers at all or on a timely
basis or that our customers will not seek altemeasources of supply if there are significant al@nged increases in the price of steel or ¢
raw materials or energy resources.

We may not be able to address technological advarser maintain customer relationships which are neasary to remain competitive
within our businesses.

We believe that our customers rigorously evaluiagr suppliers on the basis of product qualityc@icompetitiveness, technical
expertise, new product innovation, reliability aideliness of delivery, product design capabilihanufacturing expertise, operational
flexibility and customer service. Our success @ipend on our ability to continue to meet our cuehs’ changing specifications with resp
to these criteria. We must remain committed to pobdesearch and development, advanced manufagti@@hniques and service to remain
competitive. We may not be able to address teclgimabadvances in metallurgy or in materials sogeocintroduce new products that may
necessary to remain competitive within our busiegser our competitors may develop products sup#riour products. Furthermore, we
may be unable to adequately protect any of our ehnological developments to produce a sustairabtgetitive advantage.

Our products are subject to certain approvals, andhe loss of such approvals could materially reduceur revenues and profitability.

Essential to servicing the aerospace market ialiiggy to obtain product approvals. We have inessof 32,000 product approvals,
which enable us to provide products used in viual domestic aircraft platforms presently in guztion or operation. Product approvals
typically issued by the Federal Aviation Adminisioa, or FAA, to designated OEMs who are Productpproval Holders of FAA approved
aircraft. These Production Approval Holders provigiglity control oversight and generally limit thember of suppliers directly servicing |
commercial aerospace aftermarket. Regulations eddost the FAA provide for an independent procdss Rarts Manufacturer Approval, or
PMA, process), which enables suppliers who curyessll their products to the Production Approvaldtas, to sell products to the
aftermarket. We have
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received over 2,400 PMA application approvals tted@ur foreign sales may be subject to similaraygls. Although we have not lost any
material product approvals in the past, we cansstii@ you that we will not lose approvals for owoduicts in the future. The loss of product
approvals could result in lost sales and materi@tiuce our revenues and profitability.

Under certain circumstances, the U.S. government lsahe right to debar or suspend us from acting as d.S. government contractor ol
subcontractor, and if we are suspended or debarreftom acting as a government supplier for any reasarsuch an action would
materially reduce our revenues and profitability.

In connection with our performance of governmemitracts, the federal government audits and revmwsperformance, pricing
practices and compliance with applicable laws, la&gns and standards. It is possible that asultrebthese audits, our revenues, cash flow
or results of operations could be materially reduae a result of lost sales or penalties. For el@ntipe government could disallow certain
costs that it originally reimbursed, and we maydwggired to refund cash already collected. It $® glossible that a government audit, review
or investigation could uncover improper or illegativities that would subject us to civil, crimireahd/or administrative sanctions, including,
but not limited to, termination of contracts, reimbement of payments received, fines, forfeiturprofits and suspension or debarment from
doing business with federal government agenciemyfallegations of impropriety were made agaisstthether or not true, our reputation
could be adversely affected. If we were suspendeftbarred from contracting with the federal goweent, or any specific agency, if our
reputation was impaired or if the government ceasegignificantly decreased the amount of busiitedses with us, our revenues and cash
flow could be reduced. As a government contrasterare also subject to various federal laws, reaguia and standards. New laws,
regulations or standards or changes to existing,la@gulations or standards could subject us tdiaddl costs of compliance or liabilities
and could result in material reductions to our ltssaf operations, cash flow or revenues.

We have outstanding debt, and may incur additionatiebt in the future for acquisitions or other purposs, which could materially
impact our business.

As of April 1, 2006, we had total indebtedness D857 million. To service our debt, we will requassignificant amount of cash. On
April 18, 2006, we repaid approximately $67.0 roitlion our Senior Credit Facility from equity sapeeceeds and free cash flow. Our ability
to generate cash, make scheduled payments oritameé our obligations depends on our successfahiial and operating performance. Our
financial and operating performance, cash flow eayuital resources depend upon prevailing econoomnditions and certain financial,
business and other factors, many of which are baypom control.

We may incur additional indebtedness in the fufareacquisitions and other purposes, and the sagmif debt servicing costs associated
with that indebtedness could have significant éff@n our operations, including:

« limit our ability to obtain additional financing tmperate our business;

* require us to dedicate a substantial portion ofaaish flow to payments on our debt, reducing oilityako use our cash flow to
fund working capital, capital expenditures and otineral operational requirements;

« limit our flexibility to plan for and react to chgas in our business or industry;
» place us at a competitive disadvantage relativwtoe of our competitors that have less debt thaands

* increase our vulnerability to general adverse endo@nd industry conditions, including changesiteiest rates or a downturn
in our business or the economy.

The occurrence of any one of these events couldmaly impact our business, financial conditioesults of operations and ability to
grow our business.

Restrictions in our indebtedness agreements couldit our growth and our ability to respond to changing conditions.

The Senior Credit Facility and our Swiss franc I#ilion Swiss credit facility (approximately $3r8illion outstanding as of April 1,
2006), or Swiss Credit Facility, contain a numbierestrictive covenants that limit our ability, angpother things, to:

* incur additional indebtedness and issue prefei@kand guarantee indebtedness;
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»  create liens on our assets;

*  pay dividends or make other equity distributions;

*  purchase or redeem capital stock;

»  create restrictions on payments of dividends oeé#mounts to us by our restricted subsidiaries;
*  make investments;

* merge, consolidate or sell assets;

e engage in activities unrelated to our current bessn

e engage in transactions with our affiliates; and

« sell or issue capital stock of certain subsidiaries

In addition, the Senior Credit Facility containget financial covenants requiring us to maintamiaimum fixed charge coverage ratio
and maximum senior leverage ratios and to satesfiam other financial conditions. Our Senior Ctédicility prohibits us from incurring
capital expenditures of more than $15 million peary These restrictions could limit our abilitydbtain future financings, make needed
capital expenditures, withstand a future downtarour business or the economy in general or otlsera®nduct necessary corporate
activities.

As of April 1, 2006, we had no outstanding borroggrand letters of credit of $20.6 million under 866.0 million Revolving Credit
Facility. Under the Revolving Credit Facility, wadhborrowing availability of $34.4 million as of Apl, 2006. Under the revolving credit
facility under our Swiss Credit Facility, or SwiRgvolver, we had borrowing availability of approxtaly $3.1 million (4.0 million SFr) as of
April 1, 2006.

Work stoppages and other labor problems could mateally reduce our ability to operate our business.

As of April 1, 2006, approximately 26% of our hguemployees in the U.S. and abroad were represégtibor unions. While we
believe our relations with our employees are satisfry, a lengthy strike or other work stoppagarst of our facilities, particularly at some of
our larger facilities, could materially reduce ainility to operate our business. In addition, attgrapt by our employees not currently
represented by a union to join a union could rasudidditional expenses, including with respeawsmes, benefits and pension obligations.
We currently have four collective bargaining agreets, one agreement covering approximately 54 epaplowill expire in June 2007, one
agreement covering approximately 38 employeeseaxjire in October 2009, one agreement coveringequpiately 73 employees will expi
in January 2008 and one agreement covering appateiynl14 employees will expire in June 2008. Ibrisary 2006 we entered into a
shutdown agreement which effectively terminated aolkective bargaining agreement covering approxatyad3 employees. We expect that
the facility will be shutdown in the first quartef fiscal 2007. We expect that such shutdown wall ne material to our operations or financial
results.

Negotiations for the extension of these agreenmatsresult in modifications to the terms of thegeeaments, and these modifications
could cause us to incur increased costs relatimgitdabor force.

In addition, work stoppages at one or more of ast@mers or suppliers, including suppliers of tpamation services, many of which
have large unionized workforces, for labor or otfezrsons could also cause disruptions to our bssitiat we cannot control, and these
disruptions may materially reduce our revenuesmof€itability.

Our business is capital intensive and may consumeash in excess of cash flow from our operations.

Our ability to remain competitive, sustain our gtbvand expand our operations largely depends owrasir flow from operations and «
access to capital. We intend to fund our cash ndedagh operating cash flow and borrowings underSenior Credit Facility. We may
require additional equity or debt financing to fumat growth and debt repayment obligations. In taldi we may need additional capital to
fund future acquisitions. Our business may not geresufficient cash flow, and we may not be ablelitain sufficient funds to enable us to
pay our debt obligations and capital expendituresemay not be
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able to refinance on commercially reasonable teifnas,all. See “Management’s Discussion and Anialp$ Financial Condition and Results
of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources—Ldjtyi.”

Unexpected equipment failures, catastrophic events capacity constraints may increase our costs angéduce our sales due to
production curtailments or shutdowns.

Our manufacturing processes are dependent updacatpteces of equipment, such as furnaces, contisasters and rolling equipme
as well as electrical equipment, such as transfenaad this equipment may, on occasion, be oséwfice as a result of unanticipated
failures. In addition to equipment failures, outifities are also subject to the risk of catastioptiss due to unanticipated events such as-
explosions, earthquakes or violent weather conulitién the future, we may experience material pshotdowns or periods of reduced
production as a result of these types of equiprfagluires or catastrophes. Interruptions in produrctiapabilities will inevitably increase our
production costs and reduce sales and earnindsdaffected period.

Certain of our facilities are operating at a sirgiét with light second and third shifts, and autaial demand may require additional
shifts and/or capital investments at these faeditWe cannot assure you that we will be able toaaidlitional shifts as needed in a timely way
and production constraints may result in lost sdfesertain markets we refrain from making additibcapital investments to expand capa
where we believe market expansion in a particularrmarket is not sustainable or otherwise doegustity the expansion or capital
investment. Our assumptions and forecasts regardarget conditions in these end markets may baeaas and may result in lost earnings,
potential sales going to competitors and inhibit growth.

The occurrence of extraordinary events, such as aagor terrorist attack in the U.S., may adversely afect our business, resulting in a
decrease in our revenues.

Future terrorist attacks cannot be predicted, badt bccurrence can be expected to negatively ttfiececonomy of the U.S. and other
countries in which we do business. Such attacksimagg a material impact on the markets in whictoperate, particularly commercial
aerospace, as increased terrorist activity arobadvbrld is likely to cause a reduction in air gavor example, in the period following
September 11, 2001, aircraft orders declined sianifly and materially reduced our sales to theggace market. Similar effects are likely to
result if there is a significant increase in teisbactivity around the world, particularly if conemcial airliners are again involved in one or
more major terrorist incidents. Other kinds of #igant terror incidents may also impair our alyilib conduct our manufacturing and other
business activities for extended periods dependimtie nature and severity of the event.

We may not be able to continue to make the acquigihs necessary for us to realize our growth stratgg

The acquisition of businesses that complement paeat our operations has been and continues to imepamtant element of our
business strategy. We cannot assure you that weeviduccessful in identifying attractive acquaiticandidates or completing acquisitions
favorable terms in the future. Our inability to ao@ businesses, or to operate them profitably @ecgiired, could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial position, castwfand growth.

The costs and difficulties of integrating acquiredbusinesses could impede our future growth.

We cannot assure you that any future acquisitidhemhance our financial performance. Our abilayeffectively integrate any future
acquisitions will depend on, among other things,dtdequacy of our implementation plans, the ahbilityur management to oversee and
operate effectively the combined operations andadility to achieve desired operating efficiences sales goals. The integration of any
acquired businesses might cause us to incur urgenesosts, which would lower our future earning$wanould prevent us from realizing the
expected benefits of these acquisitions.

Even if we are able to integrate future acquiresimesses with our operations successfully, we dasssure you that we will realize all
of the cost savings, synergies or revenue enhamtsrti&t we anticipate from such integration ot tha will realize such benefits within the
expected time frame.

We depend heavily on our senior management and othkey personnel, the loss of whom could materiallgffect our financial
performance and prospects.

Our business is managed by a small number of kegugive officers, including Dr. Michael J. Hartne@ur future success will depend
on, among other things, our ability to keep therises of these executives and to hire other highiglified
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employees at all levels. Dr. Hartnett is the ongnmiber of our senior management team with a long-tanployment contract. The remainder
of our key executives are at-will employees.

We compete with other potential employers for eppls, and we may not be successful in hiring atainiag executives and other
skilled employees that we need. Our ability to sssfully execute our business strategy, marketlamdlop our products and serve our
customers could be adversely affected by a shodhgeailable skilled employees or executives.

Our international operations are subject to risks hherent in such activities.

We have established operations in certain counti¢side the U.S., including Mexico, France andt&svland. Of our 18 facilities, 4 are
located outside the U.S., including 2 manufactufawilities.

Approximately 20% of our net sales were derivedrfizales directly or indirectly outside the U.S.fiscal 2006. We expect that this
proportion is likely to increase as we seek toéase our penetration of foreign markets, includimgugh acquisitions, particularly within the
aerospace and defense markets. Our foreign opesadi@ subject to the risks inherent in such ds/such as: currency devaluations,
logistical and communications challenges, costoafiplying with a variety of foreign laws and regidas, greater difficulties in protecting
and maintaining our rights to intellectual propedifficulty in staffing and managing geographigalliverse operations, acts of terrorism or
war or other acts that may cause social disruptibich are difficult to quantify or predict and geakeconomic conditions in these foreign
markets. We are not aware of any proposed mategalatory changes, but our international operatimay be negatively impacted by
changes in government policies, such as chandasgand regulations (or the interpretation there@strictions on imports and exports,
sources of supply, duties or tariffs, the introdutiof measures to control inflation and changethénrate or method of taxation. To date we
have not experienced significant difficulties witte foregoing risks associated with our internalaperations, however, as the size of our
international operations has continued to growewgect these risks to become increasingly impottantir business operations.

Currency translation risks may have a material impat on our results of operations.

Our Swiss operations utilize the Swiss franc aduhetional currency and our French operationszatithe Euro as the functional
currency. Foreign currency transaction gains asgds are included in earnings. Foreign currenoygéetion exposure arises primarily from
the transfer of foreign currency from one subsidiaranother within the group and to foreign cucsedenominated trade receivables.
Unrealized currency translation gains and lossesemognized upon translation of the foreign subsis’ balance sheets to U.S. dollars.
Because our financial statements are denominatgddndollars, changes in currency exchange ratsgden the U.S. dollar and other
currencies have had, and will continue to havemgract on our earnings. While we monitor excharades, we currently do not have
exchange rate hedges in place to reduce the rigk aflverse currency exchange movement. Althougkroey fluctuations have not had a
material impact on our financial performance in plast, such fluctuations may affect our financedfprmance in the future. The impact of
future exchange rate fluctuations on our resultspafrations cannot be accurately predicted. Seamégament’'s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations—FgreCurrency Exchange Rates.”

Our pension plans are underfunded, and we may be qeiired to make significant future contributions to the plans.

As of April 1, 2006, we maintained noncontributasgfined benefit pension plans covering substagtallof our union employees in ¢
Heim division plant in Fairfield, Connecticut, dNice subsidiary plant in Kulpsville, Pennsylvarsay Bremen subsidiary plant in Plymouth,
Indiana and our Tyson subsidiary plant in Glasgéentucky. As of April 1, 2006, our plans were urfdeded by $3.8 million, which is the
amount by which the accumulated benefit obligatiexseed the sum of the fair market value of plaissets. We are required to make cash
contributions to our pension plans to the exteaessary to comply with minimum funding requiremeantposed by employee benefit and
laws. The amount of any such required contributisrdetermined based on annual actuarial valuatighe plans as performed by the plans’
actuaries. The amount of future contributions dépend upon asset returns, then-current discotes amd a number of other factors, and, as
a result, the amount we may elect or be requirambidribute to our pension plans in the future nimazyease significantly. Additionally, there
is a risk that if the Pension Benefit Guaranty @ogtion concludes that its risk with respect to pemsion plans may increase unreasonably if
the plans continue to operate, if we are unab$atisfy the minimum funding requirement for thenglar if the plans become unable to pay
benefits, then the Pension Benefit Guaranty Cotmraould terminate the plans and take contrdhefr assets. In such event, we may be
required to make an immediate payment to the Peri&émefit Guaranty Corporation of all or a substmortion of the underfunding as
calculated by the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corpamrdiased upon its own assumptions. The underfgnehiiculated by the Pension Benefit
Guaranty Corporation could be substantially gretiten the underfunding we have calculated becdasexample, the Pension Benefit
Guaranty Corporation may use a
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significantly lower discount rate. If such paymennot made, then the Pension Benefit Guaranty @atjn could place liens on a material
portion of our assets and the assets of any memoberg controlled group. Such action could regubh material increase in our pension
related expenses and a corresponding reductioarinash flow and net income. For additional infotiora concerning our pension plans and
plan liabilities, see Note 13 to our consolidatie@dificial statements for the fiscal year ended Alpr2006.

We may incur material losses for product liabilityand recall related claims.

We are subject to a risk of product and recalltegldiability in the event that the failure of aafour products results in personal injury
or death, property damage or does not conform t@ostomersspecifications. In particular, our products ardatied in a number of types
vehicle fleets, including airplanes, trains, autbites, heavy trucks and farm equipment, many ottWlaire subject to government ordered as
well as voluntary recalls by the manufacturer.némf our products is found to be defective, caasiset to be disabled or otherwise results
in a product recall, significant claims may be lgiouagainst us. Although we have not had any nateroduct liability or recall related
claims made against us, and we currently maintaadyct liability insurance coverage for producbllay, although not for recall related
claims, we cannot assure you that product liabdityecall related claims, if made, would not extear insurance coverage limits or would
be covered by insurance which, in turn, may rasuthaterial losses related to these claims, ine@&sture insurance costs and a
corresponding reduction in our cash flow and nebine.

Environmental regulations impose substantial costand limitations on our operations, and environmenthcompliance may be more
costly than we expect.

We are subject to various federal, state and lecalronmental laws and regulations, including thgseerning discharges of pollutants
into the air and water, the storage, handling asdasal of wastes and the health and safety of @epk. These laws and regulations could
subject us to material costs and liabilities, inahg compliance costs, civil and criminal fines mspd for failure to comply with these laws
and regulations and litigation costs. We also majidble under the federal Comprehensive Envirorntaidesponse, Compensation, and
Liability Act, or similar state laws, for the cosiinvestigation and clean-up of contaminatiofeatlities currently or formerly owned or
operated by us or at other facilities at which \agendisposed of hazardous substances. In connedtioisuch contamination, we may alsc
liable for natural resource damages, governmenrdlpes and claims by third parties for personalipjand property damage. Compliance
with these laws and regulations may prove to beertioniting and costly than we anticipate. New laawsl regulations, stricter enforcement of
existing laws and regulations, the discovery of/fmasly unknown contamination or the impositionnefw clean-up requirements could
require us to incur costs or become the basisdar ar increased liabilities that could cause a nedtancrease in our environmental related
compliance costs and a corresponding reductiomiircash flow and net income. Investigation and miaten of contamination at some of
our sites is ongoing. Actual costs to clean-updlgtes may exceed our current estimates. Althevgghave indemnities for certain pre-
closing environmental liabilities from the prior ners in connection with our acquisition of sevefabur facilities, we cannot assure you that
the indemnities will be adequate to cover known&wly discovered pre-closing liabilities.

Our intellectual property and other proprietary rig hts are valuable, and any inability to protect themcould adversely affect our
business and results of operations; in addition, wanay be subject to infringement claims by third paties.

Our ability to compete effectively is dependentmpar ability to protect and preserve the intellatproperty and other proprietary
rights and materials owned, licensed or otherwssllby us. We have numerous U.S. and foreign [gatdr. trademark registrations and
U.S. copyright registrations. Our issued patergseapected to expire by their own terms at variates and most such patents will not ex
for at least 5 years. We also have U.S. trademadipatent applications pending. We cannot assurehat our pending trademark and patent
applications will result in trademark registraticarsd issued patents, and our failure to securésrigider these applications may limit our
ability to protect the intellectual property righlst these applications were intended to covehoAligh we have attempted to protect our
intellectual property and other proprietary rightgh in the United States and in foreign countitieeugh a combination of patent, trademark,
copyright and trade secret protection and non-oéstke agreements, these steps may be insufficigmetvent unauthorized use of our
intellectual property and other proprietary righgarticularly in foreign countries where the praiee available for such intellectual property
and other proprietary rights may be limited. Toedat are not currently engaged in and have noahgdnaterial infringement or other clai
pertaining to our intellectual property broughtusyor against us in recent years. We cannot agsurthat any of our intellectual property
rights will not be infringed upon or that our traskecrets will not be misappropriated or otherwisedme known to or independently
developed by competitors. We may not have adeqeatedies available for any such infringement oeotmauthorized use. We cannot
assure you that any infringement claims assertaashyill not result in our intellectual propertyibg challenged or invalidated, that our
intellectual property will be held to be of adequatope to protect our business or that we wiliide to deter current and former employees,
contractors or
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other parties from breaching confidentiality obtigas and misappropriating trade secrets. In aoiditve may become subject to claims
against us which could require us to pay damagémidrour ability to use certain intellectual preqpy and other proprietary rights found to

in violation of a third party’s rights, and, in tlegent such litigation is successful, we may bebleto use such intellectual property and other
proprietary rights at all or on reasonable termeggd&dless of its outcome, any litigation, whetf@nmenced by us or third parties, could be
protracted and costly and could result in incredisig@tion related expenses, the loss of intellatproperty rights or payment of money or
other damages, which may result in lost sales addaed cash flow and decrease our net income.Bestrfess—Intellectual Property.”

Cancellation of orders in our backlog of orders cold negatively impact our revenues.

As of April 1, 2006, we had an order backlog of @Bmillion, which we estimate will be fulfilled #iin the next 12 months. However,
orders included in our backlog are subject to chamben, delay or other modifications by our cusennprior to fulfilment. For these reasons,
we cannot assure you that orders included in ocklbg will ultimately result in the actual receipitrevenues from such orders.

If we fail to maintain an effective system of intenal controls, we may not be able to accurately repbour financial results or prevent
fraud.

Effective internal controls are necessary for ugrtivide reliable financial reports and effectivelgvent fraud. Any inability to provide
reliable financial reports or prevent fraud cousdrh our business. We are in the process of instifuthanges to our internal procedures to
satisfy the requirements of the Sarbanes-OxleyofA2002, which require management and our auditoevaluate and assess the
effectiveness of our internal controls over finahceporting by March 31, 2007. Implementing thelseanges may take a significant amour
time and may require specific compliance trainifigur directors, officers and other personnel. atedve have not detected any material
weakness or significant deficiencies in our intéamantrols over financial reporting. However, we @ontinuing to evaluate and, where
appropriate, enhance our policies, proceduresrardnial controls. If we fail to maintain the adeguaf our internal controls, as such
standards are modified, supplemented or amendedtfroe to time, we could be subject to regulatamusiny, civil or criminal penalties or
shareholder litigation. In addition, failure to m&iin adequate internal controls could resultmarficial statements that do not accurately
reflect our financial condition. Inferior internebntrols could also cause investors to lose confiden our reported financial information,
which could have a negative effect on the tradingepof our stock. We cannot assure you that webeilable to complete the work necessary
to fully comply with the requirements of the Sarbafdxley Act or that management or our auditors wathclude that our internal controls
effective.

We face new challenges and increased costs as alpubompany.

Prior to our initial public offering in August 20p06ur management team had historically operatedosiness as a privately held
company. We expect that the obligations of beipglalic company, including substantial public repaytand investor relations obligations,
will require significant legal, accounting and atlaelditional expenditures, as well as stock exchdistjing requirements, which will place
additional demands on our management and may eetherhiring of additional personnel. These obi@at and related expenses have
increased our operating expenses since our ipiialic offering and will continue to do so and abdivert our management’s attention from
our operations. These new rules and regulationsmeke it more difficult and more expensive for a®btain director and officer liability
insurance, and we may be required to accept redualéary limits and coverage or incur substantidligher costs to obtain the same or sirr
coverage. As a result, it may be more difficult derto attract and retain qualified individualstsve on our board of directors or as executive
officers. We are currently evaluating and monitgridevelopments with respect to these new ruleswandannot accurately predict the
amount of additional costs we may incur or theigndf such costs. For the fiscal year ended AprdlQD6, we estimate that we have incurred
approximately $0.9 million of additional costs ionmection with our operation as a public compang. 8&n provide no assurance that such
costs may not increase significantly in the futy@ticularly in connection with the work requirat our accountants to certify the adequacy
of our internal controls over financial reporting.

Risk Factors Related to our Common Stock

Provisions in our charter documents and under Delaare law may prevent or frustrate attempts by our sbckholders to change our
management and hinder efforts to acquire a controihg interest in us.

Provisions of our certificate of incorporation amdaws may discourage, delay or prevent a mergeuisition or other change in cont
that stockholders may consider favorable, includiagsactions in which you might otherwise receiymemium for your shares. These
provisions may also prevent or frustrate attempteur stockholders to replace or remove our managénThese provisions include:
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* aclassified board of directors;
» advance notice requirements for stockholder prdp@sal nominations;

» the inability of stockholders to act by written semt or to call special meetings; and

the ability of our board of directors to designtite terms of and issue new series of preferreck stithout stockholder
approval.

The affirmative vote of the holders of at least6§% of our shares entitled to vote is necessary terahor repeal the above provisions
of our certificate of incorporation. In additiorhsent approval of our board of directors, manywflyylaw provisions may only be amended
or repealed by the affirmative vote of the holdefrat least 66/ 3% of our shares entitled to vote.

Our certificate of incorporation authorizes theuesce of “blank check” preferred stock with suchkigeations, rights and preferences as
may be determined from time to time by our boardicéctors. Accordingly, the board of directorgmpowered, without stockholder
approval, to issue preferred stock with dividengljibation, conversion, voting or other rights toatld materially adversely affect the voting
power or other rights of the holders of our commstotk, including purchasers in this offering. Hoklef the common stock will not have
preemptive rights to subscribe for a pro rata pardbf any capital stock which may be issued byiughe event of issuance, such preferred
stock could be utilized, under certain circumstanes a method of discouraging, delaying or préwgre change in control of RBC Bearings
Incorporated. Although we have no present intentinissue any new shares of preferred stock, wedoagp in the future.

In addition, Section 203 of the Delaware GenerapOmtion Law prohibits a publicly held Delawaremaration from engaging in a
business combination with an interested stockholglemerally a person which together with its &dfiis owns, or within the last three years
has owned, 15% of our voting stock, for a periothoée years after the date of the transactionhichvthe person became an interested
stockholder, unless the business combination isosep in a prescribed manner. Accordingly, Sec68 may discourage, delay or prevent a
change in control of our company.

If there are substantial sales of our common stoclqur stock price could decline.

If our existing stockholders sell a large numbesludres of our common stock or the public marketgiees that existing stockholders
might sell shares of our common stock, the markieepf our common stock could decline significgnAll of our directors, executive
officers and the selling stockholders have exec@teday lock-up agreements for their shares padhé completion of the offering on
April 18, 2006. Our other stockholders, includimgmoyee holders of warrants, options and restristedk, will not be executing lock-up
agreements. The shares will be eligible for saksymnt to Rule 144 or otherwise subject to theratipn of the lock-up agreements for those
persons who are executing such agreements.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal executive offices are located at @nibology Center, Oxford, Connecticut 06478. Wepalse this facility for
manufacturing our plain bearing products, both die® lined and metal-to-metal, and commercial balitings.

In addition, we own facilities in Hartsville, Souttarolina; Fairfield, Connecticut; Kulpsville, Paytvania; Rancho Dominguez,
California; Santa Ana, California; Walterboro, So@arolina; Bremen, Indiana; and Scionzier Cedeanée, as well as a small parcel of real
property in Oxford, Connecticut which may be usadexpansion of our manufacturing operations dtltation. We are currently marketi
our Kulpsville, Pennsylvania facility for sale @alse. We also have leases in effect with respdatiiities in the following locations until the
following dates: West Trenton, New Jersey, Febrddxy2009; Oxford, Connecticut, September 30, 20b4rington, Connecticut,

December 22, 2006; Plymouth, Indiana, May 15, 2@@3asgow, Kentucky, June 30, 2010; Delemont, Swldnel, December 31, 2009;
Reynosa, Tamaulipas, Mexico, June 13, 2013 pliexpansion lease that is expected to commenceés/dar term on July 15, 2006;
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma, December 31, 2008; Les Okdex, France, July 1, 2010; Chatsworth, Caldoiovember 11, 2006; Irwindale,
California,
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August 31, 2010; Bishopville, South Carolina, Jag&d, 2016; Horsham, Pennsylvania, April 14, 2088] Hoffman Estates, lllinois,
March 31, 2009.

We believe that our existing property, facilitiesdaequipment are generally in good condition, ae# maintained and adequate to carry
on our current operations. We also believe thataisting manufacturing facilities have sufficieipacity to meet increased customer
demand. Substantially all of our owned domestigpprties and most of our other assets are subjecliém securing our obligations under our
Senior Credit Facility.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we are involved in litigationcaadministrative proceedings which arise in therany course of our business. We do
not believe that any litigation or proceeding inigthwe are currently involved, either individuadly in the aggregate, is likely to have a
material adverse effect on our business, finaraatition, operating results, cash flow or prospect
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of securitgérs during the fiscal year ended April 1, 2006.

PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Price range of our Common Stock

Our common stock is quoted on the Nasdaq Natioreak®t under the symbol “ROLL.” The following tatdbows the high and low
sales prices of our common stock as reported biN#selag National Market during the periods indidate

High Low
Fiscal year ended April 1, 20(
Second Quarter (beginning on August 10, 2( $17.6¢ $14.6C
Third Quartel 18.27 14.2C
Fourth Quarte 22.24 16.2t

The last reported sale price of our common stoctherNasdaq National Market on June 8, 2006 wasl#22r share. As of June 8,
2006, there were 5 holders of record of our comstonk.

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid any cash dividendsiocommon stock and do not expect to pay castedids for the foreseeable
future. Our current policy is to retain all of cesrnings to finance future growth. In addition, eoants in our credit facilities restrict our
ability to pay dividends. Any future declarationdifidends will be determined by our board of diogs, based upon our earnings, capital
requirements, financial condition, debt covenatats,consequences and other factors deemed releyanir board of directors.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

During the fourth quarter of 2006, the Companyrttlissue any common stock that was not registenedr the Securities Act nor dic
repurchase any common stock.

Equity Compensation Plans

The section under the heading entitled “Equity Cengation Plan Information” of the Proxy Statemerihcorporated herein by
reference.
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Use of Proceeds from Registered Securitit

Our Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. N8:B®480), as amended, together with our Registr&@tatement on Form S-1
MEF (Reg. No. 333-133219), filed April 11, 2006 chee effective April 11, 2006, and the offering enemced the same day. The offering
terminated subsequent to the sale of 7,817,00@sludircommon stock, excluding shares sold in caiewith the exercise of the
underwriters’ overallotment optianMerrill Lynch & Co., KeyBanc Capital Markets anaiiert W. Baird & Co. acted as underwriters for the
offering.

We registered 7,817,000 shares of common stocR.81.%ar value per share, plus 1,172,550 additisinales to cover the
underwriters’ overallotment option. 1,821,471 skamere registered for our account, plus an additiayi1 72,550 in connection with exercise
of the overallotment option. The aggregate pulfierong price of the 2,994,021 shares sold by us $20.50 per share resulting in gross
proceeds before expenses and underwriting commissind discounts of approximately $61.4 millione Belling stockholders sold
5,995,529 shares of common stock, resulting ineggge gross proceeds to the selling stockholdeapmfoximately $122.9 million before
expenses and underwriting commissions and discounts

Expenses incurred in connection with the issuandedistribution of the securities registered wesdallows (excluding fees
associated with the refinancing of our senior drediility):

Underwriting discounts and commissic $3.1 million
Other estimated expenses 1.3 million
Total estimated expenses $4.4 million

None of such payments were direct or indirect paym directors or officers of the issuer or ttessociates or to persons owning 10
percent or more of any class of equity securitfieb® issuer or any of its affiliates or directindirect payments to others. The net offering
proceeds to us after deducting underwriters’ diat®and the total expenses described above tqpteximately $57.0 million.

The proceeds of the offering (excluding paymentc@nmissions, fees and expenses described abave)used to prepay outstanding
balances under the Term Loan.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth our selected corgaikd historical financial and other data as ofdes and for the periods indicated.
selected financial data as of and for the yearg@hdarch 30, 2002, March 29, 2003, April 3, 2004riA2, 2005 and April 1, 2006 have be
derived from our historical consolidated finanatdtements audited by Ernst & Young LLP, indepehdagistered public accounting firm.
Historical results are not necessarily indicatif¢he results expected in the future. You shoustirthe data presented below together with,
and qualified by reference to, “Management’s Disaus and Analysis of Financial Condition and ResoftOperationsand our consolidate
financial statements included elsewhere in thisyFd0-K.

Fiscal Year Ended
March 30, March 29, April 3, April 2, April 1,
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
(in thousands, except share and per share amount

Statement of Operations Data

Net sale<® $168,33. $172,86( $187,33. $243,01¢ $274,50¢

Cost of sales 114,578  124,08¢ 135,437 174,60z 191,56
Gross margin 53,75¢ 48,77¢ 51,89¢ 68,41 82,94¢
Selling, general and administratit? 25,641 26,647 28,107 32,74¢ 41,94%
Other, net 937 1,424 1,662 3,52€ 2,424
Operating income 27,17¢ 20,70: 22,12¢ 32,13¢ 38,57¢
Interest expense, n 23,44( 21,02 20,38( 19,66¢ 15,73¢
Loss (gain) on early extinguishment of d® — (780) — 6,95( 3,771
Other non-operating expense (income) 17 298 16 (355) —
Income before income taxes 3,721 162 1,738 5,87¢ 19,07:
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes 2,052 113 1,07C (1,385) 6,634
Net income 1,66¢ 49 663 7,26C 12,43¢
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Preferred stock dividenc — (1,313 (2,149 (2,280) (893)

Participation rights of preferred stock in undistited earning — — — (1,142) (630)
Net income (loss) available to common stockholders  $ 1,66€ $ (1,269 $ (1,481 % 3,83t $ 10,91¢
Net income (loss) per common she®
Basic $ 0.27 $ (0.200 % 0.29)% 0.62 $ 0.84
Diluted $ 0.1¢ $ (0.200 % 0.29)% 0.35 % 0.76
Weighted average common shai®
Basic 6,188,90: 6,188,90: 6,188,90: 6,202,61! 12,931,18!
Diluted 8,891,64! 6,188,90: 6,188,90: 10,854,58. 14,452,26:
Other Financial Data:
EBITDA ® $ 36,26€ $ 29,222 $ 31,29t $ 41,27¢ $ 47,91(
Capital expenditure 5,941 6,522 4,951 9,52¢ $ 10,341
As of
March 30, March 29, April 3, April 2, April 1,
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

(in thousands)
Balance Sheet Data

Cash $ 7,18 $ 355 % 325 $ 2,63t $ 16,12¢
Working capital 70,957 89,411 105,55( 120,65¢ 146,61:
Total asset 219,37¢ 232,35¢ 234,74¢ 250,16¢ 275,92:
Total debi 226,717 210,937 215,22¢ 220,07¢ 165,741
Total stockholder equity (deficit) (37,567 (17,649 (16,285 (7,75%)  73,34C
(1) Net sales were $168.3 million in fiscal 2002 coneplato $176.4 million in fiscal 2001, a decreas&&fl million, or 4.6%. Net sales

related to the RBC Oklahoma acquisition, which wisctive on August 20, 2001, were $3.7 milliorfistal 2002. Net sales,
excluding the RBC Oklahoma acquisition, decreaseld8million or 6.7% from fiscal 2001, primarily éuo softness in the OEM
heavy truck market, the industrial aftermarkets #edaerospace market after September 11, 2001.

Net sales were $172.9 million in fiscal 2003 congplato $168.3 million in fiscal 2002, an increasé&46 million, or 2.7%. Net sales
in the compared periods included net sales tot&ithd million in fiscal 2003 for RBC France, whialas acquired in

December 2002, and $5.2 million in fiscal 2003 &Bd7 million in fiscal 2002 generated by RBC Oklatey which was acquired
effective August 2001. Excluding RBC France and RBKlahoma'’s sales, our net sales increased $1li@mdr 0.6% from period
to period.

Net sales were $243.0 million in fiscal 2005 conelaio $187.3 million in fiscal 2004, an increas&55.7 million. Net sales in the
compared periods included net sales of $19.3 miiliofiscal 2005 and $6.1 million in fiscal 2004 RBC-API, which was acquired
in December 2003.

Net sales were $274.5 million in fiscal 2006 congplato $243.0 million in fiscal 2005, an increasé&81.5 million. Net sales in the
compared periods included net sales of $1.7 millicfiscal 2006 for SWP, which was acquired in emter 2005.

(2 Selling, general and administrative expense foffidwal year ended April 1, 2006 included non-reiciyy compensation expense of
$5.2 million as well as $0.4 million of stock cormgation. See “Related Party Transactions.”

3) Loss on early extinguishment of debt of $7.0 millia fiscal 2005 included $4.3 million for non-cashte-off of deferred financing
fees associated with retired debt, $1.8 milliomezfemption premium and $0.9 million of accruedriese for the 30-day call period
related to the early extinguishment of $110.0 wrillof 95/ 8% senior subordinated notes in July 2004.

Loss on early extinguishment of debt of $3.8 millia fiscal 2006 included $1.6 million for non-casthite-off of deferred financing
fees and unamortized bond discount associatedretitied debt, $1.3 million of redemption premiuns@sated with the retirement
of all of our 13% discount debentures in Septen@0@5, $0.5 million of prepayment fees related ®répayment of all of the
outstanding balance under our second lien termiloan
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(4)

()

August 2005 and $0.4 million in interest expengelie 30-day call period related to the early egdishment of our 13% discount
debentures.

Amounts shown for periods prior to August 15, 20@83ude shares of both Class A common stock andsBacommon stock, all
which were reclassified into common stock on a famesne basis in connection with our initial pubtiffering as of such date.

EBITDA consists of net income (loss), plus inter@gbense, net, loss (gain) on early extinguishroédebt, provision for (benefit
from) income taxes and depreciation and amortinafBITDA is not a measure of operating performamoeder generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States, or GAARd should not be considered as an alternatigalustitute for GAAP
profitability measures such as operating earnifags) from continuing operations, discontinued afiens, extraordinary items and
net income (loss). EBITDA as an operating perforoeameasure has material limitations since it exadydmong other things, the
statement of operations impact of depreciationandrtization expense, interest expense, loss (gaiearly extinguishment of debt
and the provision for (benefit from) income taxes séherefore does not necessarily represent anaecmeasure of profitability,
particularly in situations where a company is hyglelveraged or has a disadvantageous tax strusigaise a significant amount of
capital assets and depreciation and amortizatiperese is a necessary element of our costs antydbiljenerate revenue and
therefore its exclusion from EBITDA is a materiaitation. We also have a significant amount oftdamtd interest expense is a
necessary element of our costs and ability to geeeevenue and therefore its exclusion from EBITiIDA material limitation. We
generally incur significant U.S. federal, state &metign income taxes each year and the provissoififenefit from) income taxes it
necessary element of the our costs and therefoexd@usion from EBITDA is a material limitations/ result, EBITDA should be
evaluated in conjunction with net income (loss)danore complete analysis of our profitability,nes income (loss) includes the
financial statement impact of these items andestiost directly comparable GAAP operating perforogameasure to EBITDA. As
EBITDA is not defined by GAAP, our definition of EBDA may differ from and therefore may not be comgide to similarly titled
measures used by other companies, thereby limigngsefulness as a comparative measure. Becatise lihitations that EBITDA
has as an analytical tool, investors should nosicien it in isolation or as a substitute for anelys our operating results as reported
under GAAP.

We use EBITDA as a supplementary non-GAAP opergigrformance measure to assist with our overaluati@an of our and our
subsidiaries’ operating performance (includingpleeformance of subsidiary management) relativautside peer group companies.
In addition, we use EBITDA as an operating perfanoeameasure in financial presentations to our bohdirectors, stockholders,
the banks participating in our credit facility arading agencies, among others, as a supplememaBGARAP operating measure to
assist them in their evaluation of our performaMe.are also active in mergers, acquisitions aaddtiitures and use EBITDA as an
additional operating performance measure to agssessur subsidiaries’ and potential acquisitiomgét enterprise value and to assist
in the overall evaluation of our, our subsidiariast potential acquisition target performance omgsrnal basis and relative to peer
group companies. We use EBITDA in conjunction wiitiditional GAAP operating performance measurgsaasof our overall
assessment of potential valuation and relativeoperdince and therefore do not place undue reliandeBdTDA as our only measure
of operating performance. We believe EBITDA is us&r our management and investors as it is a contyrused analytical
measurement for comparing company profitabilityjehteliminates the effects of financing, differimgluations of fixed and
intangible assets and tax structure decisions. 8lleve that EBITDA is specifically relevant to whje to the different degrees of
leverage among our competitors. We have includeld BB as a supplemental operating performance measurich should be
evaluated by investors in conjunction with the iiadal GAAP performance measures for a completduation of our operating
performance. The following table provides a reclaion of net income, the most directly comparaBIBAP measure, to EBITDA.

Fiscal Year Ended
March 30, March 29,

April 3, April 2, April 1,
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
(in thousands)
Net income $ 1,66 $ 49 $ 663 $ 7,26C $ 12,43¢
Add:

Provision for (benefit from) income tax 2,052 113 1,070 (1,385) 6,634
Interest expense, n 23,44C 21,028 20,38C 19,66€ 15,73t
Loss (gain) on early extinguishment of d — (780) — 6,950 3,771
Depreciation and amortization 9,105 8,819 9,182 8,785 9,331
EBITDA $ 36,26€ $ 29,224 $ 31,298 $41,27¢ $ 47,91C
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(6) Amounts for the fiscal year ended April 1, 2008eef the consummation of our initial public offegim August 2005, which
included: (1) the sale by us of 7,034,516 shardéiseabffering price of $14.50 per share, (2) theasenment of all of our $38.6 million
in aggregate principal amount of 13% senior sulmateéid discount debentures due 2009, (3) the repaywhall outstanding
indebtedness under our $45.0 million second liem tean, (4) the addition of $40.0 million to ouerm Loan and (5) the redempti
of all of our then outstanding Class C and Claggdderred stock for an aggregate redemption prié88.6 million.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION
Overview

We are a well known international manufacturerighly engineered precision plain, roller and baakings. Our precision solutions are
integral to the manufacture and operation of masthimes and mechanical systems, reduce wear tompeairts, facilitate proper power
transmission and reduce damage and energy losscchydriction. While we manufacture products ihnahjor bearing categories, we focus
primarily on the higher end of the bearing markatve we believe our value added manufacturing agtheering capabilities enable us to
differentiate ourselves from our competitors andagte profitability. We estimate that approximatehp-thirds of our net sales during fiscal
2005 and fiscal 2006 were generated by producta/tidich we hold the number one or two market positlWe have been providing bearing
solutions to our customers since 1919. Over thetpag/ears, under the leadership of our curremagament team, we have significantly
broadened our end markets, products, customeramasgeographic reach. We currently operate 15 naatwring facilities in three countries.

Demand for bearings generally follows the markefpimducts in which bearings are incorporated &edsconomy as a whole.
Purchasers of bearings include industrial equipraadtmachinery manufacturers, producers of commiesiod military aerospace equipment
such as missiles and radar systems, agriculturahimery manufacturers, construction and specialepdpment manufacturers and
automotive and commercial truck manufacturers. Miaekets for our products are cyclical, and genmia@lket conditions could negatively
impact our operating results. We have endeavoredtigate the cyclicality of our product markets dmytering into sole-source relationships
and long-term purchase orders, through diversiticaicross multiple market segments within the sggoe and defense and diversified
industrial segments, by increasing sales to tregratirket and by focusing on developing highly costed solutions.

During fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2006, the world eamyacontinued to emerge from the slowdown experidricam 2000 to 2003, and we
experienced favorable conditions across our twamagrkets: diversified industrial and aerospaatdafense. In particular the economy of
our diversified industrial market has been drivgrstrong requirements in non-residential constaingtmining and the oil and gas sectors.
These conditions have resulted in robust demantdefarings for both OEM and replacement marketthdéraerospace market a very strong
recovery began, and we believe it is at its earlynid-stages. Expansion of the commercial air@aftor, in response to increased passenger
demand and the need of the carriers to upgradedhdwide fleet, drove increased build scheduleB@ging and Airbus. In addition, demand
for corporate aircraft remained strong in fiscaD2@&nd fiscal 2006. The defense sector continuedpiace and develop its weapons and
cargo platforms. This sector demonstrated increesgairements for replacement bearings for comytems strained by extensive use in
harsh environments over the past four years. Fofiskhal year ended April 1, 2006, approximatelya26f our revenues were derived from
sales directly or indirectly outside the U.S. Weeot this component of our business to increasesiponse to our emphasis on continued
penetration of foreign markets, particularly thogsaerospace and defense.

Approximately 30% of our costs are attributableaew materials, a majority of which are relatedteesand related products. During the
past two years, steel prices have increased toritiatly high levels, responding to unprecedengaetls of world demand. To date, we have
generally been able to pass through these costsr toustomers through price increases and thesamses of surcharges, although there can
be a time lag of up to 12 weeks or more.

Competition in specialized bearing markets is basedngineering design, brand, lead times anduaiétiaof product and service. These
markets are generally not as price sensitive amtmiets for standard bearings.

We have demonstrated expertise in acquiring amdjrating bearing and precision-engineered companeanufacturers that have
complementary products or distribution channels nodide significant potential for margin enhancemé&Ve have consistently increased
profitability of acquired businesses through a pescof methods and systems improvement coupledtiétmtroduction of complementary
and proprietary new products. Since October 199hawe completed 13 acquisitions which have sigaifity broadened our end markets,
products, customer base and geographic reach.
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Sources of Revenu

Revenue is generated primarily from sales of bgarto the diversified industrial market and theoapace and defense markets. Sale
often made pursuant to sole-source relationshipg-term agreements and purchase orders with mmtgl We recognize revenues
principally from the sale of products at the pafhpassage of title, which is at the time of shipmén certain instances, however, we
recognize revenues under the contract method ouating.

Sales to the diversified industrial market accodrite 56% of our net sales for the fiscal year ehdpril 1, 2006. Sales to the aerospace
and defense markets accounted for 44% of our teg & the same period. We anticipate that sal¢ise aerospace and defense markets will
increase as a percentage of our net sales.

Aftermarket sales of replacement parts for exiséggipment platforms represented approximately 85%ur net sales for fiscal 2006.
We continue to develop our OEM relationships whielre established us as a leading supplier on nmapgriant aerospace and defense
platforms. Over the past several years, we havereqed increased demand from the replacemerst paartket, particularly within the
aerospace and defense sectors; one of our busitnategies has been to increase the proportioale$ slerived from this segment. We beli
these activities increase the stability of our reiebase, strengthen our brand identity and prawiakiple paths for revenue growth.

Approximately 20% of our net sales were derivedrfigales directly or indirectly outside the U.S.fiscal 2006, compared to 21% for
fiscal 2005. We expect that this proportion wiltiease as we seek to increase our penetratiomed§ifomarkets, particularly within the
aerospace and defense sectors. In fiscal 2005sgad 2006, our top ten customers, four of whicmen@EMs and the remaining six were
distributors, generated 32% of our net sales. ®the32% of net sales generated by our top tetomess during the fiscal year ended
April 1, 2006, 20% of net sales was generated ytaqufour customers. No single customer was resiptsfor generating more than 7% of
our net sales for the same period.

Cost of Revenues

Cost of sales includes employee compensation amefitee materials, outside processing, depreciatfamanufacturing machinery and
equipment, supplies and manufacturing overhead.

During fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2006, our gross makgas impacted by rising raw material prices, irtipalar, steel and related products.
In response, we have, to date, managed to paseanajority of these price increases of raw mdtet@our customers through steel
surcharges assessed on, or price increases digating products. However, we have from time te@tarperienced a time lag of up to
12 weeks or more in our ability to pass througlelstercharges to our customers, which has neggtivgdacted our gross margin. We will
continue to pass on raw material price increasesiapetitive conditions allow.

We have not been significantly impacted by receatdases in energy prices because energy costaotttesignificant component of
which is natural gas used in heat treating operaficepresent less than 4% of our overall costs.

We monitor gross margin performance through a m®cé monthly operation management reviews. Wedeielop new products to
target certain markets allied to our strategiefirsy understanding volume levels and product pgcand then constructing manufacturing
strategies to achieve defined margin objectives.ovlg pursue product lines where we believe thatdéveloped manufacturing process will
yield the targeted margins. Management monitorsgnoargins of all product lines on a monthly b&sidetermine which manufacturii
processes or prices should be adjusted.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative, or SG&A, exgenrelate primarily to the compensation and aasaticosts of selling, general and
administrative personnel, professional fees, instegafacility costs and information technology. @ect SG&A expenses will increase in
absolute terms as we increase our sales effortthandincreased costs related to the anticipatedin of our business and the additional
costs associated with operating as a public company

Other Expenses

On February 15, 2006, our RBC Nice Bearings, lobs#liary and the United Steelworkers of Americ&I(ACIO) Local 6816-12
entered into a shutdown agreement in connectiom exit decision to close operations at our Kulpsyiftennsylvania facility. In connection
with the shutdown agreement, the union has agetake no action against us in connection with gkaitdown. The agreement also
addresses closure and other transition issuegdelatpensions, workers compensation, adjustmergtasce and other matters. The
production conducted at the Nice facility has begved to other
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RBC locations, and we anticipate no material impexcproduction or our ability to service our cusesm Shutdown costs included $0.6
million of severance and $0.4 million for fixed esgnpairments which were recorded in fiscal 2006.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth the various compdaei our consolidated statements of operationsiessed as a percentage of net sales
for the periods indicated that are used in conoaatiith the discussion herein:

Fiscal Year Ended
April 3,  April 2,  April 1,

2004 2005 2006

Statement of Operations Data

Net sales 100.C% 100.(% 100.C%
Gross margir 27.7 28.2 30.2
Selling, general and administrati 15.0 13.5 15.3
Other, net 0.9 1.5 0.9
Operating income 11.8 13.2 14.0
Interest expense, n 10.8 8.1 5.7
Loss on early extinguishment of de — 2.9 1.4
Other non-operating expense (income) 0.0 (0.2) 0.0
Income before income taxes 0.9 2.4 6.9
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes 0.6 (0.6) 2.4
Net income 0.3 3.0 4.5

Segment I nformation

We have four reportable product segments: PlainiBgs, Roller Bearings, Ball Bearings and Othehétconsists primarily of
precision ball screws and machine tool collets. fitlewing table shows our net sales and operatiegme with respect to each of our
reporting segments plus Corporate for the lasttfiszal years:

Fiscal Year Ended
April 3, April 2, April 1,
2004 2005 2006
(in thousands)

Net External Sales

Plain $ 77,57¢ $ 93,25( $115,09!
Roller 63,10€ 92,281 96,46€
Ball 35,801 41,881  46,37¢
Other 10,84€ 15,604 16,574
Total $187,33 $243,01¢ $274,50¢
Operating Income
Plain $ 18,57: $ 22,647 $ 30,95
Roller 11,25¢ 17,03C 23,34C
Ball 6,676 9,070 9,692
Other 378 797 1,478
Corporate (14,757) (17,40%) (26,88€)
Total $ 22,12¢ $ 32,13¢ $ 38,57¢

Geographic Information

The following table summarizes our net sales, Istidation, for the periods shown:

Fiscal Year Ended
April 3, April 2, April 1,
2004 2005 2006
(in thousands)

Geographic Revenue:
Domestic $166,761 $215,38] $243,57¢
Foreign 20,568 27,63E 30,933
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Total $187,331 $243,01¢ $274,50¢

For additional information concerning our businesgments, see Item 8, Note 20.
Fiscal 2006 Compared to Fiscal 2005

Net Sales. Net sales for fiscal 2006 were $274.5 million, acrease of $31.5 million, or 13.0%, compared to3324mnillion for the
comparable period in fiscal 2005. During fiscal 80@e experienced net sales growth in each of mur $egments, driven by strong demand
across end markets as well as continued effodapply new products to existing and new custon@verall, net sales to diversified
industrial customers grew 5.4% in fiscal 2006 coragdo the same period last year. Reflected indhénge, our core markets of
construction, mining, semiconductor capital equiptrand distribution were up 8.1% offset by a srohinge in year-to-year volume in our
Class 8 market sector. Net sales to aerospaceededsg customers grew 24.2% in fiscal 2006 comparédte same period last year, driven
mainly by commercial and military aerospace aftekeand OEM demand.

The Plain Bearing segment achieved net sales @&.$Iillion in fiscal 2006, an increase of $21.8liom, or 23.4%, compared to
$93.3 million for the comparable period in the pryear. Net sales to diversified industrial custesreccounted for $9.1 million of the
increase, driven primarily by strong demand indbestruction and mining heavy equipment sectonsege industrial applications, and str
industrial aftermarket demand. The commercial afldary aerospace market accounted for $12.7 mmilld6 the increase due to an increase in
airframe and aerospace bearing shipments to dimaiufacturers and continued demand for afternhgnceluct.

The Roller Bearing segment achieved net sales @53@illion in fiscal 2006, an increase of $4.2li, or 4.5%, compared to
$92.3 million for the comparable period in the piyear. $0.1 million of this increase was attritlléato sales to customers in the industrial
market. Net sales to the class 8 truck market dedlby $2.1 million offset by strong demand fronnimg, construction equipment and
general industrial applications of $2.2 million.eTaerospace and defense market accounted forrttaniag $4.1 million of the increase,
driven primarily by increasing build rates and nt@irance requirements for commercial and militargraft.

The Ball Bearing segment achieved net sales o4$dlion in fiscal 2006, an increase of $4.5 naitli or 10.7%, compared to
$41.9 million for the comparable period in the pijear. The increase was driven principally by éased demand from airframe, electro-
optical, and satellite and communications applicatiand increased penetration of the airframe maBledes to our customers in the indus
market were flat year over year.

The Other segment, which is focused mainly on #he sf precision ball screws and machine tool ts|llachieved net sales of
$16.6 million in fiscal 2006, an increase of $1.{lion, or 6.2%, compared to $15.6 million for tekame period last year. This increase was
primarily due to increased sales of machine totietoto the industrial market and precision batksvs to military aerospace applications.

Gross Margin. Gross margin was $82.9 million, or 30.2% of neésain fiscal 2006, versus $68.4 million, or 28.@8Ptet sales, for the
comparable period in fiscal 2005. The increaseuingross margin as a percentage of net sales waargy the result of an overall increase
volume, higher prices, increased manufacturingiefficy, and overall product mix.

Selling, General and Administrative. SG&A expenses increased by $9.2 million, or 28.i%841.9 million in fiscal 2006 compared to
$32.7 million for the same period in fiscal 2005.€T$9.2 million increase was primarily due to neawrring compensation expense of $5.2
million, stock option compensation expense of $8ilion, professional service fees associated Withimplementation of Sarbanes-Oxley
404 of $0.4 million, an increase in personnel neansto support increased volume, higher professiservice fees, and additional costs
associated with being a public company. As a pé¢agenof net sales, SG&A was 15.3% in fiscal 200@gared to 13.5% for the comparable
period in fiscal 2005. SG&A, excluding non-recugricompensation expense of $5.2 million as weltasksoption compensation expense of
$0.4 million, was 13.2% of net sales in fiscal 2@@6npared to 13.4% for the comparable period Tafi2005.

Other, net. Other, net in fiscal 2006 was $2.4 million compai@®3.5 million for the comparable period in fis2805. In fiscal 2006,
other, net included amortization of intangibless6f7 million, severance costs of $0.6 million aoskkes on fixed asset disposals of $0.4
million for the RBC Nice Bearings, Inc. plant cofidation, $0.2 million of non-recurring manageméss, $0.3 million of bad debt expense,
and $0.2 million of other expenses. In fiscal 208ther, net consisted of amortization of intangité $0.5 million, $0.5 million of
management fees, losses on fixed asset disposi&s®million, and $0.5 million of bad debt expens
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Operating Income. Operating income was $38.6 million, or 14.1% of sedes, in fiscal 2006 compared to $32.1 millian18.2% of net
sales, in fiscal 2005. Operating income excludiag-recurring compensation expense of $5.2 millgtock option compensation expense of
$0.4 million, $1.0 million of costs associated witie consolidation of RBC Nice Bearings, Inc., aot-recurring management fees of $0.2
million was $45.4 million or 16.5% of net sales.€bgting income for the Plain Bearing segment wds@ahillion in fiscal 2006, or 26.9% of
net sales, compared to $22.6 million for the sapréod last year, or 24.3% of net sales. The R&karing segment achieved an operating
income in fiscal 2006 of $23.3 million, or 24.2%rwt sales, compared to $17.0 million, or 18.5%edfsales, in fiscal 2005. The Ball
Bearing segment achieved an operating income @fi$@lion, or 20.9% of net sales, in fiscal 2006npared to $9.1 million, or 21.7% of r
sales, for the comparable period in fiscal 200% Thther segment achieved an operating income 6fr#illlion, or 8.9% of net sales, in fiscal
2006, compared to $0.8 million or 5.1% of net salessthe comparable period in fiscal 2005. The@ase in operating income in each of the
segments was driven primarily by an increase irsakds. In addition, operating income as a pergenthnet sales increased for each of the
segments primarily as a result of leveraging tRedicost base over higher net sales.

Interest Expense, net. Interest expense, net decreased by $4.0 milli¢157 million in fiscal 2006, compared to $19.7lioil in fiscal
2005. Amortization of deferred financing costs detht discount are recorded as a component of texest expense. Amortization expenses
included in interest expense, net were $0.8 miliiofiscal 2006 compared to $1.1 million in fis@4l05.

Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt. For fiscal 2006, loss on early extinguishment dftdgf $3.8 million included $1.6 million for non-
cash write-off of deferred financing fees and uneimed bond discount associated with retired d&bt3 million of redemption premium
associated with the redemption of all our 13% distaebentures in September 2005, $0.5 millionqyent fees related to the prepayment
of all the outstanding balance under our secomdtéem loan in August 2005 and $0.4 million in net&t expense for the 30-day call period
related to the early extinguishment of our 13% délres. For fiscal 2005, loss on early extinguishiod debt of $7.0 million included $4.3
million for non-cash write-off of deferred finangriees associated with retired debt, $1.8 millibredemption premium and $0.9 million in
interest expense for the 30-day call period relédetie early extinguishment of our $110.0 mill@f 5/ 5% senior subordinated notes in
July 2004.

Income Before Income Taxes. Income before taxes was $19.1 million in fiscal @@0mpared to income before taxes of $5.9 million i
fiscal 2005.

Income Taxes. Income tax expense in fiscal 2006 was $6.6 miliompared to a benefit of $1.4 million in fiscal B0The effective
income tax rate in fiscal 2006 was 34.8% compavedi thenefit income tax rate of 23.6% in fiscal 20lte change in the effective income
rate from year to year is mostly due to the apfiica in fiscal 2005, of the APB 23 exception facaunting for deferred taxes for temporary
differences related to undistributed earnings ofiffn subsidiaries that are invested indefinitely.

Net Income. Net income was $12.4 million in fiscal 2006 comphi@ net income of $7.3 million in fiscal 2005.
Fiscal 2005 Compared to Fiscal 2004

Net Sales. Our net sales for fiscal 2005 were $243.0 millian increase of $55.7 million, or 29.7%, compacefi187.3 million for fisce
2004. During fiscal 2005, we experienced net sgtes/th in each of our four segments, driven byrggrdemand across our end markets as
well as our continued efforts to supply new produotexisting and new customers. Overall, we egpegd significant growth in net sales to
our diversified industrial and aerospace custont#igen principally by increased build rates oftstrial machinery and commercial and
military aircraft, respectively.

Our Plain Bearing segment achieved net sales a8$88lion for fiscal 2005, an increase of $15.7liom, or 20.2%, compared to
$77.6 million for the prior year. Net sales to diversified industrial customers accounted for $8illion of the increase, driven primarily by
strong demand in the construction and mining hemuipment sectors, strong aftermarket demand flgpn@ducts, and several new product
introductions we made during the year targetedtt bxisting and new customers. The commercialnaifithry aerospace market accounted
for $8.2 million of the increase due to an incremsairframe and aerospace engine bearing shipmesirdting from better penetration of
existing customers and a number of new contracs wiwell as recovering build rates and maintenesgpgirements for commercial aircraft.
Direct sales to the defense market decreased Byndillion due to exceptionally strong demand in ldw& six months of fiscal 2004 compared
to the same period for fiscal 2005.
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Our Roller Bearing segment achieved net sales 2f33@illion for fiscal 2005, an increase of $29.Rlion, or 46.2%, compared to
$63.1 million for the prior year. $13.2 million tfe increase was attributable to the inclusion fofllayear of results for the RB@PI busines
unit which was purchased in December 2003. Exclyu&BC-API, net sales for the Roller Bearing segment v&& 0 million for fiscal 200¢
an increase of $16.0 million, or 28.1%, comparefigd.0 million for fiscal 2004. $14.8 million ofithincrease was attributable to sales to our
customers in the industrial market, where we halecsively increased our penetration of the claBsiék market, and benefited from strong
demand from mining, construction equipment and gerniedustrial applications. The aerospace markebvanted for the remaining
$1.2 million of the increase, driven primarily bycreasing build rates and maintenance requirenfientsilitary aircraft.

Our Ball Bearing segment achieved net sales of9dilllion for fiscal 2005, an increase of $6.1 moitl, or 17.0%, compared to
$35.8 million for the prior year. $3.4 million dfe increase was attributable to sales to our ciet®in the industrial market, driven primarily
by increased demand from semiconductor applicatmasby increased demand from industrial distritaifor aftermarket parts. Commercial
and military aerospace accounted for the remaiithg million of the increase, driven principally imgreased demand from airframe, electro-
optical, and satellite and communications appla®tiand our increased penetration of the airframeken.

Our Other segment, which is focused mainly on Hie sf precision ball screws and machine tool ts|llachieved net sales of
$15.6 million, an increase of $4.8 million, or 4%9compared to $10.8 million for the same pericd yeear. This increase was primarily due
to increased sales of our machine tool colletsr@sat of our increased penetration of the U.Schiree tool collet market and due to
increasing overall market demand.

Gross Margin. Our gross margin was $68.4 million, or 28.2% of sedes, for fiscal 2005, versus $51.9 million, @r72 of net sales, for
fiscal 2004. The increase in our gross margin psreentage of net sales was primarily the resudinadverall increase in volume, slightly
higher prices, and a shift in mix toward higher giauproducts, partially offset by increased rawenial and labor costs which negatively
impacted gross margin by 4.0%. We were able to gromgross margin percentage through price inceeasd raw material surcharges to
customers which offset the impact of raw materiadepincreases of up to 40%.

Selling, General and Administrative. Our SG&A expenses increased by $4.6 million, o6%§.to $32.7 million for fiscal 2005 compared
to $28.1 million for fiscal 2004. Excluding the RBAPI acquisition, SG&A increased by $4.1 millionfiacal 2005, or 14.7%, compared to
fiscal 2004. The $4.1 million increase was primadle to an increase in personnel necessary tosguppr increased volume, higher
professional service fees and $0.4 million of congagion expense recorded for the intrinsic valueptions issued during fiscal 2005. As a
percentage of net sales, SG&A declined to 13.5%isoal 2005 compared to 15.0% for fiscal 2004. dkeline was primarily due to
continued control of fixed costs and controlled @&xgion of headcount. We expect our SG&A to remeliatively constant as a percentage of
net sales over the next few years, including thieigated costs associated with operating as aigpabmpany.

Other, net. Other, net for fiscal 2005 was $3.5 million commhte $1.7 million for fiscal 2004. For fiscal 200&her, net included an
expense of $2.0 million for the disposal of mantdaaog fixed assets, $0.5 million of Whitney managst fees, $0.5 million of bad debt
expense and $0.6 million of other expenses. Foalfid004, other, net consisted of $0.5 million diithey management fees, fixed asset
disposals of $0.2 million, $0.4 million of acquisit costs and $0.5 million of other expenses.

Operating Income. Operating income was $32.1 million, or 13.2% of sedes, for fiscal 2005 compared to $22.1 million11.8% of net
sales for fiscal 2004. Operating income for therPBearing segment was $22.6 million, or 24.3% etf seles, compared to the prior year's
$18.6 million, or 23.9% of net sales. Our RollemBrg segment achieved an operating income of $tillion, or 18.5% of net sales,
compared to $11.3 million, or 17.8% of net salestlie prior year, owing primarily to the full yeiaclusion of RBC-API. Our Ball Bearing
segment achieved an operating income of $9.1 mijllio 21.7% of net sales, for fiscal 2005, compaoe$6.7 million, or 18.6% of net sales,
for fiscal 2004. Our Other segment achieved anaipey income of $0.8 million, or 5.1% of net salfes,fiscal 2005, compared to
$0.4 million, or 3.5% of net sales, for fiscal 2004e increase in operating income in each of egrments was driven primarily by an
increase in net sales. In addition, our operatitgiine as a percentage of net sales increaseddooéaur segments primarily as a result of
leveraging our fixed cost base over higher netssale

Interest Expense, net. Interest expense, net decreased by $0.7 milliéi87 million for fiscal 2005 compared to $20.4lmoii for fiscal

2004. Amortization of deferred financing costs detht discount are recorded as a component of texest expense. Amortization expenses
included in interest expense, net were $1.1 milfmrfiscal 2005 compared to $1.6 million for fis@®04.
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Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt. For fiscal 2005, loss on early extinguishment dftdgf $7.0 million included $4.3 million for non-
cash write-off of deferred financing fees assodatéh retired debt, $1.8 million of redemption priem and $0.9 million in interest expense
for the 30-day call period related to the earlyirgdgishment of our $110.0 million 0f%¥g% senior subordinated notes in July 2004.

Income Before Income Taxes. Income before taxes increased by $4.2 million,.8®@$nillion in fiscal 2005 compared to $1.7 million
fiscal 2004 primarily as a result of higher grosargin, partially offset by higher operating expensisposal of manufacturing fixed assets,
and loss on extinguishment of debt.

Income Taxes. Income tax for fiscal 2005 provided a benefit of4btnillion compared to an expense of $1.1 millionfiscal 2004. Our
effective income tax rate for fiscal 2005 was adfitrof 23.6% compared to an effective rate of 64 for fiscal 2004. In fiscal 2005, the
income tax benefit was impacted predominantly leyrdduction of income tax expense by $3.8 millienthe undistributed earnings of our
foreign subsidiaries on which income taxes wereipusly recorded. We have reassessed our needsatimally and have determined that
our undistributed foreign earnings of approximatgly.0 million as of April 2, 2005 will be re-inves indefinitely as further described in
Note 15 to our consolidated financial statementidifionally, our effective tax rate for fiscal 200&s impacted by a foreign tax ri
differential of $0.4 million and adjustments of é&xto correspond to tax returns as filed of $0I8ani Our effective tax rate for fiscal 2004
was impacted predominantly by the adjustments>afado correspond to tax returns as filed and atiiscellaneous permanent differences.
As of April 2, 2005, net operating loss carry fordewere approximately $5.5 million (federal) ard@million (state) to offset future incor
taxes, which expire at various dates through 28&érnative minimum tax credit carry forwards tadlapproximately $1.9 million as of
April 2, 2005.

Net Income. Net income increased by $6.6 million to $7.3 millior fiscal 2005 compared to $0.7 million for #&004.
Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our business is capital intensive. Our capital regoents include manufacturing equipment and melterin addition, we have
historically fueled our growth in part through agsitions. We have historically met our working dapi capital expenditure requirements and
acquisition funding needs through our net cashdlpwovided by operations, various debt arrangensrdssale of equity to investors.

Liquidity

On April 18, 2006, pursuant to a purchase agreemghtMerrill Lynch & Co., Merrill Lynch, Pierce, @énner & Smith Incorporated,
KeyBanc Capital Markets and Robert W. Baird & Qee, along with certain of our stockholders, sol@8®,550 shares of our common stock
(5,995,529 sold by certain of our stockholders) ®ffering yielded us aggregate net proceeds afoppately $57.0 million after payment
of the underwriting discount, commissions and afigiexpenses. The full amount of the net proceeste wsed to prepay outstanding
balances under the Term Loan.

On August 15, 2005, pursuant to a purchase agreemignMerrill Lynch & Co., Merrill Lynch, Piercel-enner & Smith Incorporated,
KeyBanc Capital Markets and Jefferies & Compang,,lwe, along with certain of our stockholdersdsbd,531,200 shares of our common
stock (3,496,684 sold by certain of our stockhajleFhe offering yielded us aggregate net proceé&92.1 million after payment of the
underwriting discount and offering expenses. Aftefemption of our Class C and Class D preferrecksftar $34.6 million, our net proceeds
were $57.5 million. Immediately prior to the consuation of the initial public offering, all outstaimg shares of Class B preferred stock w
converted in accordance with their terms into 1,886 shares of Class A common stock, 306,298 sludi@kss C preferred stock and
240,000 shares of Class D preferred stock. Allehaf Class C and Class D preferred stock wereeredd with cash or common stock ant
shares of Class A and Class B common stock welasséfied as common stock on a one-for-one basisohnection with the initial public
offering, we filed an Amended and Restated Cestiémf Incorporation (the “Amendment”). The Amendmiacreased our authorized
capital stock to 70,000,000 shares, (i) 60,000@f00hich is common stock, $0.01 par value per shemd (ii) 10,000,000 of which is
preferred stock, $0.01 par value per share.

On August 15, 2005, we entered into a Fifth Amenaledl Restated Credit Agreement (the “Amended Creglitement”), among Roller
Bearing Company of America, Inc. (“RBCA”), the otl@redit Parties signatory thereto; General Elec@apital Corporation, a Delaware
corporation, for itself, as lender, and as agenttfe lenders, concurrently with the closing of mitial public offering. Pursuant to the
Amended Credit Agreement, we increased our term bmarowings by approximately $40.0 million fromIR10 million under the term loan
portion of the Amended Credit Agreement. The Amehde
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Credit Agreement provides a $55.0 million revolvicrgdit agreement (the “Amended Revolving Credilfg”) and a $150.0 million term
loan (the “Amended Term Loan”). The principal ambafithe Amended Term Loan will be repaid in twefitye (25) consecutive quarterly
installments commencing December 31, 2005. As afl Ap2006, we had repaid $4.8 million of prindigen the Amended Term Loan. Each
loan is secured by a lien against substantiallpfatiur assets and subjects us to standard affiwenahd negative covenants, as well as
financial leverage tests. As of April 1, 2006, wererin compliance with all such covenants.

The Amended Revolving Credit Facility bears inteegsa floating rate of either the higher of thadaate on corporate loans or the
federal funds rate plus 50 basis points, plus 1;25%IBOR plus 2.50%. We have the right to eléwt aipplicable interest rate on the
Amended Revolving Credit Facility. The Amended Tdroan bears interest at a floating rate of eitherhigher of the base rate on corporate
loans or the federal rate plus 50 basis points bl60%; or LIBOR plus 2.75%. We have the rightlext the applicable interest rate on the
Amended Term Loan. As of April 1, 2006, the weigh&xerage interest rate on the outstanding Semiit-acility was 7.24%.

Approximately $20.6 million of the Amended Revolgi€redit Facility is being utilized to provide lets of credit to secure RBCA's
obligations relating to certain Industrial Develogmh Revenue Bonds and insurance programs. As df B2006, we had the ability to
borrow up to an additional $34.4 million under fhmended Revolving Credit Facility.

Voluntary prepayment and commitment reductiongparenitted in whole or in part, without premium @nalty, subject to minimum
prepayment or reduction requirements, providedvbhintary prepayments of LIBOR loans on a dateiothan the last day of the relevant
interest period will be subject to the paymentustomary breakage costs, if any.

In addition, the lenders under the Amended Revglgnedit Facility are entitled to be paid a feeumised commitments under that
facility at a rate equal to 0.50% per annum, pagabbnthly in arrears. With respect to the lettecrefdit subfacility, an additional fee, equa
the product of the average daily undrawn face armnotiall letters of credit issued, guaranteed qpsuted by risk participation agreements
multiplied by a per annum rate equal to the appleanargin applied to LIBOR rate loans, i.e., 3.084ayable monthly in arrears together
with any fees and charges incurred by the admatistr agent to a letter of credit issuer.

The proceeds of the initial public offering and iiddal term loan borrowings were used to repay i@tem outstanding debt and all of
our then outstanding Class C and Class D prefestiaak. Concurrently with the funding, we issuedtiae of redemption to the note holders
of the 13% senior subordinated discount debentluesIune 15, 2009. The requisite funds, approxign&t.2 million, were irrevocably put
on deposit with the trustee, Bank of New York, fedemption on September 13, 2005. This amountdecla redemption premium of
$1.3 million and interest expense for the call peéf $0.4 million. These amounts along with $0i8iom of unamortized deferred financing
fees and debt discount associated with this dele veeorded as a loss on early extinguishment lof 8ée also repaid approximately
$45.5 million on our second lien term loan. Thisoamt included a prepayment fee of $0.5 million. §hamounts along with $0.8 million of
unamortized deferred financing fees associated thvétsecond lien term loan debt were recorded@ssaon early extinguishment of debt.
Deferred financing fees of $1.3 million were caliited associated with the Senior Credit Facility.

On December 8, 2003, Schaublin entered into a beatkt facility, or Swiss Credit Facility, with Cié Suisse providing for 10.0 million
Swiss Francs, or approximately $7.7 million, ofitdoan, or Swiss Term Loan, and up to 2.0 millieis$ Francs, or approximately
$1.5 million, of revolving credit loans and letterfscredit, or the Swiss Revolver. The credit agreet for the Swiss Credit Facility contains
affirmative and negative covenants regarding tHea8blin financial position and results of operasi@md other terms customary to such
financings. As of April 1, 2006, we were in compliz with all such covenants. On November 8, 20@amended the Swiss Credit Facility
to increase the Swiss Revolver to 4.0 million Svfsancs, or approximately $3.1 million. As of Aptil 2006, $3.8 million was outstanding
under the Swiss Term Loan, and no loans or letibcsedit were outstanding under the Swiss Revolver

We expect to amend or replace our Amended Crediéérgent to provide for lower borrowing costs. Weent that the replaced
Amended Credit Agreement will contain similar anmation schedules, financial covenants, eventetdult, negative and affirmative
covenants and representations and warranties. e discussions with multiple lenders regardirtgraktives for reducing borrowing costs
under our Amended Credit Agreement, including reipig or amending the facility. There can be no esstes, however, that capital markets
will permit us to replace or amend the facilitytbat we will be able to achieve such savings.

Our ability to meet future working capital, capitedpenditures and debt service requirements wiledd on our future financial

performance, which will be affected by a rangeadr@mic, competitive and business factors, padityinterest rates, cyclical changes in
our end markets and prices for steel and our ghdipass through price increases on a timely basis
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many of which are outside of our control. In aduitifuture acquisitions could have a significanp&uot on our liquidity position and our need
for additional funds.

From time to time we evaluate our existing fa@htiand operations and their strategic importances.ttf we determine that a given
facility or operation does not have future stratagiportance, we may sell, partially or completeblpcate production lines, consolidate or
otherwise dispose of those operations. Althougtbaleve our operations would not be materially imghby such dispositions, relocations
or consolidations, we could incur significant casmon-cash charges in connection with them.

Cash Flows
Fiscal 2006 Compared to Fiscal 2005

In the fiscal year ended April 1, 2006, we genetai@sh of $24.6 million from operating activitiesngpared to $9.9 million for the fiscal
year ended April 2, 2005. The increase of $14.Tianilwas mainly a result of an increase of $5.1ionilin net income, a change in operat
assets and liabilities of $4.5 million and the ofehon-cash charges of $5.1 million. The changedrking capital investment was primarily
attributable to a decrease in accounts receivaldea strong collection activity offset by incredseventory to better service customer
demand and a decrease in accounts payable.

Cash used for investing activities for fiscal 200@uded $10.3 million relating to capital expemdés compared to $9.5 million for fis
2005. Investing activities also included $2.7 roiflirelating to the acquisition of the RBC Southwstducts business.

In fiscal 2006, we decreased borrowings under timeded Revolving Credit Facility by $5.0 milliorceived proceeds from the sale
stock of $92.1 million, used $30.6 million to rede€lass C redeemable preferred stock, used $4liomib redeem Class D preferred stock,
received $0.5 million from the exercise of stockiops and warrants, retired term loans of $45.0ioni) retired the 13% senior secured
discount debentures of $38.6 million, increasedb@unk term loan by $41.1 million, made paymentseom loans of $7.1 million, used
$0.3 million of funds for capital lease obligaticasd paid $1.3 million of financing fees in connectwith our Amended Credit Agreement.

Fiscal 2005 Compared to Fiscal 2004

In fiscal 2005, we generated cash of $9.9 milli@mnf operating activities compared to $7.5 million fiscal 2004. The increase of
$2.4 million was mainly a result of an increas&®6f7 million in net income, net of non-cash chargesr fiscal 2004, offset by a change in
working capital investment of $4.4 million overdad 2004. The change in working capital investnvesis primarily the result of an increase
in accounts receivable due to strong fourth quamé¢isales and a build in inventory in the fourtlader to service increasing demand.

Cash flow from investing activities in fiscal 20@&s in-line with fiscal 2004. Cash required for aistfions decreased by $5.2 million
due to the impact of the RBEPI acquisition in fiscal 2004. Capital expendiiracreased $4.6 million in fiscal 2005 comparetigoal 200«
due to increased investment in manufacturing assetgpand capacity and improvements in leaseholds.

Financing activities used $0.3 million in fiscal®and provided $2.9 million in fiscal 2004, bodfated to debt refinancing transactic

Capital Expenditures

Our capital expenditures in fiscal 2006 were $1filion. We expect to make capital expendituresmbroximately $12.0 to $14.0
million during fiscal 2007 in connection with ouxisting business. We have funded our fiscal 20Q6tabexpenditures, and expect to fund
fiscal 2007 capital expenditures, principally thghiexisting cash, internally generated funds arrdbimangs under our Amended Revolving
Credit Facility. We may also make substantial addél capital expenditures in connection with asgigns. Although there are no present
understandings, commitments or agreements witreotsp the acquisition of any other businessesjavevaluate acquisition opportunities
regularly.

Obligations and Commitments

The contractual obligations presented in the thblew represent our estimates of future paymendgiufixed contractual obligations
and commitments. Changes in our business needslion provisions and interest rates, as well
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as actions by third parties and other factors, nzase these estimates to change. Because thesatestare necessarily subjective, our actual
payments in future periods are likely to vary frimose presented in the table. The following tablamarizes certain of our contractual
obligations and principal and interest paymentseummdir debt instruments and leases as of ApriD062

Payments Due By Perioc

Less than 1to 3to More than

Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years 5 Years
(in thousands)

Total debt® $165747 $ 3217 $ 6,382 $ 4,20C $ 151,94¢
Capital lease obligatior 407 237 107 63
Operating lease 18,95: 3,474 5,64C 3,704 6,13¢
Interest paymeni® 60,32 12,36t 24,10¢ 23,40¢ 448
Pension and postretirement benefits 14,26( 1,11¢ 2,32¢ 2,705 8,10¢
Total contractual cash obligations $259,69( $ 20,41 $ 38,566 $ 34,07¢ $ 166,63¢
(1) Includes the $145.2 million term loan under our Awbed Credit Agreement and other senior debt cangisf the Swiss Term

Loan, industrial revenue bonds and other debtitg#20.5 million. To the extent that actual ratbange, our interest rate
obligations will change accordingly.

(2 Interest payments are calculated based on begimfipgriod debt balances that reflect contractedlt @mortization over the term
the instruments and assume a constant LIBOR rateB88P6. To the extent that actual rates changeintenest rate obligations will
change accordingly.

Quarterly Results of Operations

Quarter Ended

July 3, Oct. 2, Jan. 1, April 2, July 2, Oct. 1, Dec. 31, April 1,
2004 2004 2005 2005 2005 2005 2005 2006
(Unaudited)
(in thousands, except per share date
Net sales $ 56,19t $ 56,391 $ 58,14t $ 72,28t $ 66,001 $ 65,367 $ 67,39 $ 75,751
Gross margir 15,29: 15,381 16,73z 21,00¢ 19,27¢ 19,987 20,361 23,32¢
Operating incomi 5,91€ 7,36( 8,40¢ 10,45¢ 10,39¢ 5,09z 10,78¢ 12,30¢
Net income (loss $ (3822)% 16668 $ 2462 % 6,952 % 334t $ (1,960 % 5,09¢ $ 5,95t
Net income (loss) per common she
Basic(M@ $ (O7)$% 014% 023% 077% 034% (018% 031%$ 0.35
Diluted ()@ $ (07)% o008% 013% 071%$ 022% (018% 029%$ 0.33
Q) See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statenfentsdiscussion of net income (loss) per comntares
2 Net income (loss) per common share is computedpienidently for each of the quarters presented. Torerethe sum of the

quarterly earnings per share may not necessarilglehe total for the year.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 15¢éiory Costs, an amendment of Accounting ReseBudlbtin (“ARB”) No. 43,
Chapter 4.” The amendments made by SFAS No. 15ifyclaat abnormal amounts of idle facility expenfeight, handling costs and wasted
materials (spoilage) should be recognized as ctiperiod charges and require the allocation of figeatluction overheads to inventory ba
on the normal capacity of the production facilitiéhe guidance is effective for inventory costauimed during fiscal years beginning after
June 15, 2005. It is not believed that the adoptibBFAS No. 151 will have a material impact on oansolidated financial position, results
of operations or cash flows.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1239ge2004), “Share-Based Payment.” SFAS No. 128{&)will require that the
compensation cost relating to share-based paymargections be recognized in financial statemditat cost will be measured based on the
fair value of the equity or liability instrumentssued. SFAS No. 123(R) covers a wide range of dheged compensation arrangements
including share options, restricted share plangppeaance-based awards, share appreciation riglit€mployee share purchase plans. SFAS
No. 123(R) replaces FASB Statement No. I*Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”, and ssipges Accounting Principles Board
(“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issde¢o Employees.SFAS No. 123, as originally issued in 1995, esshiglil as preferable
fair value-based method of
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accounting for share-based payment transactiotmsasifployees. However, that Statement permittediesmthe option of continuing to apply
the guidance in APB Opinion No. 25 as long as tlwrfotes to financial statements disclosed whaitnteime would have been had the
preferable fair value-based method been used. Paibtities will be required to apply SFAS No. 12BéR of the beginning of the first fiscal
year beginning after June 15, 2005. SFAS No. 12p@Rnits public companies to adopt its requiremeasisg one of two method

1. A “modified prospective” method in which compensaticost is recognized beginning with the effectie¢e (a) based on
the requirements of SFAS No. 123(R) for all shaaiednl payments granted after the effective dat€lgrithsed on
requirements of SFAS No. 123 for all awards gramteeimployees prior to the effective date of SFAS N23(R) that
remain unvested on the effective date.

2. A “modified retrospective” method which includegtrequirements of the modified prospective methestdbed above,
but also permits entities to restate based onrfmuat previously recognized under SFAS No. 123fapose of pro forma
disclosures either (a) all prior periods presemtetb) prior interim periods of the year of adoptio

We are required to adopt the pronouncement inlfZ@@7 and have decided to use the “modified pretbpe’ method in applying SFAS
No. 123(R). Due to acceleration of vesting of aarsling options during the!" quarter of fiscal 2006, the impact of the adopdiBSFAS
No. 123(R) will depend on the number of awards tgein the future. For fiscal 2006, we continuedlisrlose stoc-based compensation
information in accordance with SFAS No. 148, “Acnting for Stock Based Compensation—Transitions Bisglosure—an Amendment of
FASB Statement No. 123,” and SFAS No. 123.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our discussion and analysis of our financial caoditind results of operations are based upon msdtiolated financial statements,
which have been prepared in accordance with U.Srgdly accepted accounting principles. The prearaf these financial statements
requires us to make estimates and judgments tfeait difie reported amounts of assets, liabilitiesenues and expenses and related disclosur
of contingent assets and liabilities. On an on-gdiasis, we evaluate our estimates, including thels¢ed to product returns, bad debts,
inventories, recoverability of intangible assetgome taxes, financing operations, pensions aref gitst-retirement benefits and
contingencies and litigation. We base our estimatekistorical experience and on various otherragsions that are believed to be reason
under the circumstances, the results of which fitrenbasis for making judgments about the carry@miges of assets and liabilities that are
readily apparent from other sources. Actual resubly differ from these estimates under differestuagptions or conditions.

We believe the following critical accounting poésiaffect our more significant judgments and edtsased in the preparation of our
consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition. We recognize revenue in accordance with SEC StaébAnting Bulletin 101 “Revenue Recognition in Finial
Statements as amended by Staff Accounting Bulld#h” The SEC requires that the following four ibasiteria must be met before we
recognize revenue:

»  Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;
»  Delivery has occurred or services have been reddere
e The seller’s price to the buyer is fixed or deteratile; and

e Collectibility is reasonably assured.

We recognize revenue upon the passage of titlhesdle of manufactured goods, which is at timeéhgiment, and under the units-of-
delivery method in a limited number of aerospacegyiterm projects.

Accounts Receivable. We are required to estimate the collectibility af accounts receivable, which requires a consider@iount of
judgment in assessing the ultimate realizatiorne$é receivables, including the current c-worthiness of each customer. Changes in
required reserves may occur in the future as ciomgditin the marketplace change.

Inventory. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or tavklue. Cost is principally determined by thetfin, first-out method. We
account for inventory under a full absorption methé/e record adjustments to the value of inventory
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based upon past sales history and forecasted fglaedl our inventories. The physical conditiorgliming age and quality, of the inventories
is also considered in establishing its valuatidmeSe adjustments are estimates, which could vgnyfisiantly, either favorably or
unfavorably, from actual requirements if future me@mic conditions, customer inventory levels or cefitive conditions differ from our
expectations.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets. Goodwill (representing the excess of the amourd fmacquire a company over the estimated fairevalu
of the net assets acquired) and intangible ass#tdndefinite useful lives are not amortized bugtead are tested for impairment annually
(performed by us during the fourth quarter of efi®tal year), or when events or circumstances atdithat its value may have declined. This
determination of any goodwill impairment is madéehe reporting unit level and consists of two stéfist, we determine the fair value of a
reporting unit and compare it to our carrying anto@econd, if the carrying amount of the reportimit exceeds its fair value, an impairment
loss is recognized for any excess of the carrymgumnt of the reporting unit's goodwill over the gwall’s implied fair value. The fair value
of our reporting units is calculated by comparihg tveighted average of the net present value ofdutash flows and a market approach
based on our reporting units’ carrying value. Wbzeatd a discount rate of 8.6% based on a weightatage cost of capital. The discount rate
was derived using an analysis of similar compawieish we believe have a comparable level of riskhédugh no changes are expected, if
assumptions management makes regarding estimaghdlows are less favorable than expected, we reagquired to record an impairment
charge in the future. The determination of impainirfer intangible assets with indefinite usefuldésis based on a comparison of the fair
value of the intangible asset with its carryingueal

Definite-lived intangible assets are being amodiager their useful lives of 5 to 15 years. Alsolirded in intangible assets is an asset
relating to our minimum pension liability.

Income Taxes. As part of the process of preparing the consoldifiteancial statements, we are required to estitteténcome taxes in
each jurisdiction in which we operate. This prodasgslves estimating the actual current tax lidig§ together with assessing temporary
differences resulting from the differing treatmehitems for tax and financial reporting purposBsese differences result in deferred tax
assets and liabilities, which are included in tleméblidated Balance Sheet. We must then assefikdligood that the deferred tax assets will
be recovered, and to the extent that we believerditavery is not more than likely, we are requite@stablish a valuation allowance. If a
valuation allowance is established or increasethdwany period, we are required to include this anmt@s an expense within the tax provit
in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. Sogmt judgment is required in determining our psan for income taxes, deferred tax
assets and liabilities and any valuation allowarec®gnized against net deferred tax assets.

Pension Plans and Post-retirement Health Care. We have noncontributory defined benefit pensiomgleovering union employees in ¢
Heim division plant in Fairfield, Connecticut, imoNice subsidiary plant in Kulpsville, Pennsylvanin our Bremen subsidiary plant in
Plymouth, Indiana and in our Tyson subsidiary plarblasgow, Kentucky. Our funding policy is to nestkie minimum annual contribution
required by the Employee Retirement Income Seciityof 1974. Plan obligations and annual pensigeese are determined by
independent actuaries using a number of assumptiengded by us including assumptions about emmalemographics, retirement age,
compensation levels, pay rates, turnover, expdotegiterm rate of return on plan assets, discoatet and the amount and timing of claims.
Each plan assumption reflects our best estimatieeoplan’s future experience. The most sensitigei@ption in the determination of plan
obligations for pensions is the discount rate. @iseount rate used in determining the funded stasusf April 1, 2006 and April 2, 2005 was
5.75% and 5.90%, respectively. In developing theralv expected long-term rate of return on plaretsassumption, a building block
approach was used in which rates of return in exoéiflation were considered separately for ggsécurities and debt securities. The
excess returns were weighted by the representatiget allocation and added along with an appropriate of inflation to develop the overall
expected long-term rate of return on plan assetsnagtion.

Our pension expense was $677,000 and $737,008dqretars ended April 1, 2006 and April 2, 2005peesively, and is calculated
based upon a number of actuarial assumptions,dmgjuan expected long-term rate of return on tlset@sof our Pension Plans of 9.0% each
year.

The discount rate that we use for determining Bippgnsion obligations is based on a review of lemm bonds that receive one of the
two highest ratings given by a recognized ratingnayg. The discount rate determined on this basigleareased from 6.25% at April 3, 2004
to 5.90% at April 2, 2005, and to 5.75% at ApriD06.

Lowering the expected long-term rate of returnlmdssets of our pension plans by 1.00% (from 9.208%0%) would have increased
our pension expense for fiscal 2006 by approxingek@P6,000. Increasing the expected long-termahteturn on the assets of our pension
plans by 1.00% (from 9.00% to 10.00%) would havduoed our pension expense for fiscal 2006 by apmately $126,000.
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Lowering the discount rate assumption used to deher net periodic pension cost by 1.00% (from 5.96%.90%) would have
increased our pension expense for fiscal 2006 pyoagmately $228,000. Increasing the discount ssumption used to determine net
periodic pension cost by 1.00% (from 5.90% to 6.908%buld have reduced our pension expense for fi2@@6 by approximately $172,000.

Lowering the discount rate assumption used to deher the funded status as of April 1, 2006 by 1.q@%m 5.75% to 4.75%) would
have increased the projected benefit obligatioounfpension plans by approximately $2.3 milliorcriasing the discount rate assumption
used to determine the funded status as of ApgD06 by 1.00% (from 5.75% to 6.75%) would have oedithe projected benefit obligation
of our pension plans by approximately $1.9 million.

We recorded a minimum pension liability of $3.8lmait and $3.4 million as of April 1, 2006 and Ap2i] 2005, respectively. This
liability represented the amount by which the acolated benefit obligation exceeded the sum of divrenfiarket value of plan assets. The
additional minimum pension liability as of April 2006 and April 2, 2005 of $3.8 million and $3.3lian, respectively, was offset by an
intangible asset to the extent of previously ungeized prior service cost. The intangible asset®0db million and $0.6 million as of April 1,
2006 and April 2, 2005, respectively, were includedhe line item entitled “Intangible assets” ur gonsolidated balance sheet. The
remaining amounts of $2.0 million and $1.7 millioret of deferred income taxes of $1.2 million add)dmillion, respectively, were recorded
as a component of stockholders’ equity (deficittloa line item titled “Accumulated other comprehgadoss” in our consolidated balance
sheet as of April 1, 2006 and April 2, 2005, resipety. The intangible asset in fiscal 2006 anddls2005 was greater than the unrecognized
prior service cost because two of our plans hadnaecognized negative prior service cost.

Our investment program objective is to achieveta ofreturn on plan assets which will fund thenpiabilities and provide for required
benefits while avoiding undue exposure to riski® plan and increases in funding requirements.t@get allocation of plan assets was
100 percent equity investments as of April 1, 286068 April 2, 2005.

For the benefit of employees at our Heim, West imenNice, Tyson and Bremen facilities, we sporgmtributory defined benefit
health care plans that provide post-retirement oadind life insurance benefits to union employweke have attained certain age and/or
service requirements while employed by us. Thep#ae unfunded and costs are paid as incurredréosiment benefit obligations as of
April 1, 2006 and April 2, 2005 were $3.5 million&$3.7 million, respectively, and are included@iher non-current liabilities” in our
consolidated balance sheet.

Our expense (income) for the Post-Retirement Rlaass$(30,000) and $3,000 for the years ended Ap#D06 and April 2, 2005,
respectively, and was calculated based upon a nuoflaetuarial assumptions.

We use a March 31 measurement date for our plarsvect to contribute approximately $0.2 milliorour post-retirement benefit
plans in fiscal year 2007.

On December 8, 2003, the Medicare Prescription Dmpgrovement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the tAavas signed into law. O1
prescription drug benefit for all post-retiremefdrns is capped at a set amount each month, whighidsto the retirees so they can obtain
prescription drug coverage. As such, we are nétisslired for prescription drugs, and the Act hasmpact on the recorded obligation.

During fiscal 2004, the plans were amended to eatally limit the benefit to be provided for céntgroups of current and future
retirees. As a result, there is no health caredtemsociated with these groups. The discount ssé in determining the accumulated post-
retirement benefit obligation was 6.25% as of AfriR006 and 5.90% as of April 2, 2005. The distoate used in determining the net
periodic benefit cost was 5.90% for fiscal 20085846 for fiscal 2005 and 6.50% for fiscal 2004.

The discount rate that we use for determining eebglic benefit cost for these benefits is based ozview of long-term bonds that
receive one of the two highest ratings given bgagnized rating agency. The discount rate deteunim this basis has decreased from
6.50% at April 3, 2004 to 6.25% at April 2, 2005la0n 5.90% at April 1, 2006.

Lowering the discount rate assumption used to deber net periodic benefit cost by 1.00% (from 5.9(74.90%) would have increas
our post-retirement expense for fiscal 2006 by apiprately $39,000. Increasing the discount ratemgption used to determine net periodic
benefit cost by 1.00% (from 5.90% to 6.90%) wouddrén reduced our post-retirement expense for f&@aé by approximately $37,000.

Lowering the discount rate assumption used to deiher the accumulated post-retirement benefit obbgaas of April 1, 2006 by 1.00%
(from 6.25% to 5.25%) would have increased the exdated post-retirement benefit obligation of our
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post-retirement plans by approximately $380,006rdasing the discount rate assumption used tordeteithe accumulated post-retirement
benefit obligation, as of April 1, 2006 by 1.00%o¢h 6.25% to 7.25%) would have reduced the accuedipostretirement benefit obligatic
of our post-retirement plans by approximately $820,

Sock-Based Compensation. We account for our stock compensation arrangenveittisemployees under the provisions of APB Opinion
No. 25“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.”

We have granted to our employees options and wartarpurchase our common stock at exercise pdetsmined by our management
and board of directors. We record stock-based cosgi®n as necessary to the extent that the deeaheel of the stock at the date of grant
exceeds the exercise price of the option.

Management employed the intrinsic value methodyamsto APB No. 25 under which compensation costdsgnized only if the
exercise price of grants issued is below the falue of our common stock at the date of grant ésraéned by the board of directors. Had
compensation cost for option grants and warranitgreo employees been determined based on thedfaie at the grant dates consistent with
SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensdt our net income would have been reduced tddhewing pro forma amounts:

Fiscal Year Ended

April 3, April 2, April 1,
2004 2005 2006
Net income, as reporte $ 663 $ 726C $ 12,43¢
Plus: stock-based compensation expense included in
reported net income, net of the tax (see further
discussion below — 264 230
Less: stock-based compensation expense determined
under fair value method, net of t (131) (540) (1,842)
Pro forma net income (loss) $ 532 $ 6,984 $ 10,827
Net income (loss) per common share, as repa
Basic $ (0.29) % 062 $ 0.84
Diluted $ 0.29) $ 035 $ 0.76
Net income (loss) per common share, pro for
Basic $ (0.26) $ 057 $ 0.72
Diluted $ (0.26) $ 033 $ 0.64

For purposes of the pro forma disclosures, thenastid fair value of the options and warrants is rdizexd to be expensed over the
service period that generally is the option or watvesting period. The weighted average fair vakereshare of options and warrants granted
was $5.99 in fiscal 2006, $8.17 in fiscal 2005, &tdb8 in fiscal 2004.

The fair value for our options and warrants wasresed at the date of grant using the Black-Schof®n pricing model with the
following weighted average assumptions:

Fiscal Year Ended

April 3, April 2, April 1,
2004 2005 2006
Dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Expected weighted average | 3.0 3.0 7.0
Risk-free interest rat 3.5% 3.5% 3.5%
Expected volatility 0.1% 0.4% 32.0%

The Black-Scholes option pricing model was devetbjoe use in estimating the fair value of tradediags and warrants which have no
vesting restrictions and are fully transferableadidition, option and warrant valuation models regjthe input of highly subjective
assumptions, including the expected stock pricatiliy. Because our options and warrants haveatttaristics significantly different from
those of traded options and warrants, and becda®es in the subjective input assumptions canrraiyeaffect the fair value estimate, the
existing models do not necessarily provide a r&diaingle measure of the fair value of our optiand warrants.

On April 1, 2006, we accelerated the vesting of,583 stock options whose exercise prices were belavelosing stock price on the
date the vesting of the options was accelerate@ esult, a charge of approximately $73,000, h&q was recorded in fiscal 2006. The
accelerated vesting of these stock options is dedrio eliminate compensation expense associatbdivéise options in future periods due to
the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payrhe
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Impact of Inflation and Changes in Prices of Raw Mégerials and Supplies

To date, inflation in the economy as a whole hassigmificantly affected our operations. Howeveg purchase steel at market prices,
which during the past two years have increasedstofiical highs as a result of a relatively lowdéwef supply and a relatively high level of
demand. To date, we have generally been able totpesugh these price increases through price &seeon our products, the assessment of
steel surcharges on our customers or entry intg-term agreements with our customers which oftaniaio escalator provisions tied to our
invoiced price of steel. However, even if we arkedb pass these steel surcharges or price in@éasrir customers, there may be a time lag
of up to 12 weeks or more between the time a pnicease goes into effect and our ability to impetsurcharges or price increases,
particularly for orders already in our backlog. &sesult, our gross margin percentage may dediméwe may not be able to implement o
price increases for our products.

Competitive pressures and the terms of certairunfang-term contracts may require us to absotbagt part of these cost increases,
particularly during periods of high inflation. Oprincipal raw material is 440c and 52100 wire aod steel (types of stainless and chrome
steel), which has historically been readily avddalRecently, because of extraordinarily high dediiam certain grades of steel, suppliers t
in some instances allocated certain types of gtdehited quantities to customers. However, toedate have never experienced a work
stoppage due to a supply shortage. We maintainpteutources for raw materials including steel hade various supplier agreements.
Through sole-source arrangements, supplier agrésraad pricing, we have been able to minimize aposure to fluctuations in raw
material prices.

Our suppliers and sources of raw materials arecbiastne U.S., Europe and Asia. We believe thatsourrces are adequate for our needs
in the foreseeable future, that there exist altdraasuppliers for our raw materials and that instnrzases readily available alternative mate
can be used for most of our raw materials.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risks, which arise dutiegnormal course of business from changes ingsteates and foreign currency
exchange rates.

Interest Rates. We are exposed to market risk from changes inrttezast rates on a significant portion of our @rtding indebtedness.
Outstanding balances under our Amended Credit Agee¢ bear interest at a variable rate based orepffion any day, a floating rate equal to
the higher of (1) the rate publicly posted as thsdorate posted by at least 75% of the nationlar@@st banks or (2) the Federal Funds Rate
plus 50 basis points per year) or LIBOR (the Londuar-bank offered rate for deposits in U.S. dalifor the applicable LIBOR Period)
ranging from 30 to 120 days as adjusted each stteeziod. As of April 1, 2006, based on the aggte@mount of $145.3 million outstand
under our Amended Credit Agreement, a 100 basi#t jgbiange in interest rates would have changedhtenest expense by approximately
$1.5 million per year.

Interest rate fluctuations affect the fair markelue of our fixed rate debt, but with respect tohsfixed rate instruments, do not impact
our earnings or cash flow.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rates. As a result of increased sales in Europe, our axed® risk associated with fluctuating currency
exchange rates between the U.S. dollar, the EuddrenSwiss Franc has increased. Our Swiss opesatiilize the Swiss franc as the
functional currency and our French operationsagtithe Euro as the functional currency. Foreigmenay transaction gains and losses are
included in earnings. Approximately 12% of our sales were denominated in foreign currencies gwafi2005 and fiscal 2006. We expect
that this proportion is likely to increase as welst increase our penetration of foreign markgdsticularly within the aerospace and defense
markets. Foreign currency transaction exposurespsimarily from the transfer of foreign currerfoym one subsidiary to another within the
group, and to foreign currency denominated tradeivables. Unrealized currency translation gairgslasses are recognized upon translation
of the foreign subsidiaries’ balance sheets to doflars. Because our financial statements arerderaded in U.S. dollars, changes in
currency exchange rates between the U.S. dollaptat currencies have had, and will continue teehan impact on our earnings. We
currently do not have exchange rate hedges in ptareduce the risk of an adverse currency exchamgement. Although currency
fluctuations have not had a material impact onfmancial performance in the past, such fluctuagioray materially affect our financial
performance in the future. The impact of futurehaage rate fluctuations on our results of operatimannot be accurately predicted.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
RBC Bearings Incorporated

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of RBC Bearings Incorporated as of Api@006 and April 2, 2005, and
the related consolidated statements of operat8iaskholders’ equity (deficit) and comprehensiveoime (loss), and cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended April 1, 2@ audits also included the financial statemehedale listed in the Index at Iltem 15(a)(2).
These financial statements and schedule are thensibility of the Company’s management. Our resfiility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements and schedule basedraudiis.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBigUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindmecial statements are free of material
misstatement. We were not engaged to perform ai afuthe Company’s internal control over finanaiaporting. Our audits included
consideration of internal control over financigboeting as a basis for designing audit procedurasdre appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion oreffectiveness of the Company’s internal contrarofinancial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includesréxiag, on a test basis, evidence supporting theusts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principlesarsg significant estimates made by managementeaadating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@albove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢onsolidated financial position of RI
Bearings Incorporated at April 1, 2006 and ApriRR05, and the consolidated results of its opanatand its cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended April 1, 2006, in confilyrwith U.S. generally accepted accounting pritesp Also, in our opinion, the relat
financial statement schedule, when considerediatioa to the basic financial statements takenabale, presents fairly in all material
respects the information set forth therein.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Hartford, Connecticut
June 2, 2001
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(dollars in thousands, except share and per shareath)

Current asset:
Cash

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#fttounts of $838 in 2006 and $628 in 2!

Inventory
Deferred income taxe
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, |
Goodwill

RBC Bearings Incorporated

Consolidated Balance Sheets

ASSETS

Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortizaifdil,616 in 2006 and $949 in 20

Deferred financing costs, net of accumulated arnatitn of $1,269 in 2006 and $1,280 in 2(

Deferred income taxe
Other assets
Total assets

See accompanying notes.
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April 1, April 2,

2006 2005
$ 16,12¢ $ 2,63%
50,93t 53,967
103,14¢ 95,654
5,412 4,50¢
2,45% 2,22€
178,07 158,991
58,02¢ 55,34:
25,15(C 25,15C
3,981 3,333
4,23¢ 4,755
4,61€ 663
1,841 1,934
$ 275,92¢  $ 250,16¢




RBC Bearings Incorporated
Consolidated Balance Sheets (continued)
(dollars in thousands, except share and per shareath)

April 1, April 2,
2006 2005
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl $ 19,43¢ $ 19,24:
Accrued expenses and other current liabili 8,572 10,621
Current portion of lon-term debt 3,217 8,24t
Capital lease obligations 237 226
Total current liabilities 31,462 38,33¢
Long-term debt, less current porti 162,53( 211,83«
Capital lease obligations, less current por 170 205
Other non-current liabilities 8,421 7,554
Total liabilities 202,58: 257,92¢

Commitments and contingencies (Note

Stockholder' equity (deficit):

Class A preferred stock, $.01 par value; authorgetes: none in 2006; 15,500 in 2005; none isandd

outstanding — —
Class B exchangeable convertible participatingeprefl stock, $.01 par value; authorized sharese ma006;

240,000 in 2005; issued and outstanding shares0@a@on 200~ — 2
Class C redeemable preferred stock, $.01 par valuaprized shares: none in 2006; 900,000 in 2006¢

issued and outstandit — —
Class D preferred stock, $.01 par value; authoritedes: none in 2006; 240,000 in 2005; none isandd

outstanding — —
Class A voting common stock, $.01 par value; autlkdrshares: none in 2006; 20,000,000 in 2005etssund

outstanding shares: 6,202,519 in 2! — 62
Class B super voting common stock, $.01 par vau#horized shares: none in 2006; 2,500,000 in 2i88&ged

and outstanding shares: 250 in 2! — —
Common Stock, $.01 par value; authorized share®060000 in 2006; issued and outstanding shares:

16,976,381 in 200 170 —
Additional paic-in capital 103,317 34,252
Deferred compensatic — (349)
Accumulated other comprehensive |i (3,392 (2,532)
Accumulated deficit (26,755 (39,199

Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) 73,34( (7,759

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity (deficit $275,927 $250,16¢

See accompanying notes.
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RBC Bearings Incorporated
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(dollars in thousands, except share and per shareath)

Fiscal Year Ended

April 3,
April 1, April 2, 2004
2006 2005 (53 weeks)
Net sales $ 27450¢ % 243,01¢ % 187,331
Cost of sales 191,56 174,60: 135,43
Gross margin 82,94¢ 68,41 51,89¢
Operating expense
Selling, general and administrati 41,94¢ 32,74¢ 28,107
Other, net 2,424 3,52¢€ 1,662
Total operating expenses 44,36¢ 36,27¢ 29,76¢
Operating income 38,57¢ 32,13¢ 22,12¢
Interest expense, n 15,73¢ 19,66¢ 20,38(
Loss on early extinguishment of d¢ 3,771 6,95( —
Other non-operating expense (income) — (355) 16
Income before income taxes 19,07¢ 5,87t 1,73¢
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes 6,634 (1,385) 1,07C
Net income 12,43¢ 7,26( 663
Preferred stock dividenc (893) (2,280) (2,144)
Participation rights of preferred stock in undistited earnings (630) (1,142) —
Net income (loss) available to common stockholders $ 10,91¢ $ 3,83t $ (1,487)
Net income (loss) per common she
Basic $ 084 $ 062 $ (0.249)
Diluted $ 0.7¢ $ 035 $ (0.249)
Weighted average common shal
Basic 12,931,18! 6,202,61! 6,188,90:
Diluted 14,452,26. 10,854,58. 6,188,90:

See accompanying notes.
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RBC Bearings Incorporated

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity (Cfcit) and Comprehensive Income (Loss)

(dollars in thousands)

Accum-
ulated Total
Class B Class C Class D Addit- Other Stock- Compre-
Preferred Preferred Preferred Common ional Deferred Compre- Accum- holders’ hensive
Stock Stock Stock Stock Paid-in Comper- hensive ulated Equity Income/
Shares Amount _Shares Amount _Shares Amount Shares Amount _Capital _ sation Loss Deficit  (Deficit) _ (Loss)

Balance at March 29, 20( 240,00C $ 2 — % — — $ — 6,188,90:$ 62% 33,44t $ — $ (4,044)% (47,117)% (17,649
Net income (53 week: — — — — — — — — — — — 663 663 $ 663
Currency translation adjustmel — — — — — — — — — — 63 — 63 63
Minimum pension liability adjustment, n

of taxes of $42! — — — — — — — — — — 638 — 638 638
Comprehensive inconr $ 1,364
Balance at April 3, 200 240,00( 2 — — — —  6,188,90: 62  33,44¢ — (3,343 (46,454 (16,288
Net income — — — — — — — — — — — 7,26C 7,26C$ 7,26C
Grants of options to purchase Clas

common stock at below fair market

value — — — — — — — — 769 (769) — — —
Amortization of deferred stoc

compensatiol — — — — — — — — — 420 — — 420
Exercise of stock optior — — — — — — 13,86¢€ — 35 — — — 35
Currency translation adjustmel — — — — — — — — — — 488 — 488 488
Minimum pension liability adjustment, n

of taxes of $33! — — — — — — — — — 323 — 323 323
Comprehensive incon $ 8,071
Balance at April 2, 200 240,00( 2 — — — —  6,202,76¢ 62 34,252 (349)  (2,532) (39,199 (7,759
Net income — — — — — — — — — — — 12,43¢  12,43¢$ 12,43¢
Stock compensation charge for optic

granted at below market val — — — — — — — 16 (16) — — —
Amortization of deferred stoc

compensatiol — — — — — — — — — 365 — — 365
Conversion of Class B preferred stc (240,000 (2) 306,29¢ 3 240,00( 2 1,846,39¢ 19 (22) — — — —
Redemption of Class C preferred st — — (306,29¢) 3 — — — — (30,627) — — — (30,630
Redemption of Class D preferred stc — — — — (240,000 2) 275,86: 3 (4,001) — — — (4,000)
Net proceeds from issuance of comn

stock — — — — — — 7,034,51¢ 70  92,05¢ — — 92,12¢
Exercise of common stock options &

warrants — — — — — — 139,28¢ 1 497 — — — 498
Income tax benefit on IRS settlem — — — — — — — — 2,478 — — — 2,478
Cashless exercise of common stock opt

and warrant: — — — — — —  1,477,55! 15 (15) — — — —
Income tax benefit on exercise of -

qualified common stock options and

warrants — — — — — — — — 8,681 — — — 8,681
Currency translation adjustmel — — — — — — — — — — (569) — (569) (569)
Minimum pension liability adjustment, n

of taxes of $22: — — — — — — — — — — (291) — (291) (291)
Comprehensive incomrr $ 11,57¢
Balance at April 1, 200 —$ — — 3 — — $ — 16,976,38'$ 170%$ 103,317 $ — $ (3,392)$ (26,755$ 73,34C

See accompanying notes.
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RBC Bearings Incorporated

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income

(dollars in thousands)

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activitie:

Depreciatior
Deferred income taxes (bene
Amortization of intangible asse

Amortization of deferred financing costs and debtdunt

Amortization of deferred stock compensat

Loss on disposition of asse

Loss on early extinguishment of debt (-cash portion
Other

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, natqtiisitions

Accounts receivabl
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Other nor-current assel
Accounts payabl
Accrued expenses and other current liabili
Other non-current liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipn
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acqu
Proceeds from sale of ass
Other
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net (decrease) increase in revolving credit fac
Net proceeds from sale of stock in initial publftecing
Redemption of Class C redeemable preferred ¢
Redemption of Class D preferred st
Exercise of stock options and warra
Retirement of senior subordinated nc
Proceeds from term loal
Proceeds from senior credit facil
Retirement of senior subordinated discount deber
Retirement of term loar
Payments on term loal
Principal payments on capital lease obligati
Financing fees paid in connection with senior dréatiility
Proceeds from Swiss credit facility
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
Cash and cash equivalents
Increase (decrease) during the y
Cash, at beginning of year
Cash, at end of year
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Cash paid during the year fc
Interest
Income taxe:

See accompanying notes.

Fiscal Year Ended

April 3,

April 1, April 2, 2004
2006 2005 (53 weeks)
$ 1243¢ $ 7,26C $ 663
8,664 8,28t 8,83¢
3,95€ (3,119 2,21¢
667 500 344
829 1,115 1,58C
365 420 —
24 1,77€ 236
1,53€ 4,30z —
20 21 —
2,71¢ (9,251) (4,447)
(8,025) (4,725) 44
246 232 652
298 (377) 2,71€
470 5,451 (309)
(224) (1,879  (5,507)
664 (150) 513
24,64z 9,86¢ 7,544
(10,341 (9,526) (4,951)
(2,682) (755)  (5,944)
44 274 —
— — 101
(12,979 (10,0079 (10,799
(5,000) 2,50C (6,082
92,12¢ — —
(30,630) — —
(4,000) — —
498 35 —
— (110,000 —
41,10 155,00( —
— — 10,00(
(38,567 — —
(45,000 (40,000 —
(7,054) (3,190) (7,741
(257) (282) (173)
(1,312) (4,400) (1,090)
— — 7,971
1,911 (337) 2,884
(83) (139) 63
13,491 (615) (303)
2,63 3,25C 3,553
$ 16,12¢ $ 2,63t $ 3,25C
$ 17,13t $ 20,301 $ 19,07:
$ 892 $ 207 $ 321
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RBC Bearings Incorporated
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(dollars in thousands, except share and per shareath)
1. Organization and Business

RBC Bearings Incorporated (the “Company”, colleeljwwith its subsidiaries), is a Delaware corpamatiThe Company operates in four
reportable business segments—roller bearings, pkdnings, ball bearings, other and corporate—iichvit manufactures roller bearing
components and assembled parts and designs andactames high-precision roller and ball bearingse Tompany sells to a wide variety of
original equipment manufacturers (“OEMs”) and disitors who are widely dispersed geographicallyfidoal 2006, 2005 and 2004, no one
customer accounted for more than 7.0% of the Cowipaales. The Company’s segments are further siészliin Note 20.

On August 15, 2005, pursuant to a purchase agreemignMerrill Lynch & Co., Merrill Lynch, Piercel-enner & Smith Incorporated,
KeyBanc Capital Markets and Jefferies & Compang,,lthe Company and the selling stockholders sBJ8311,200 shares of the Company’s
common stock (3,496,684 sold by the selling stotddrs). The offering yielded aggregate net proceéedse Company of $92,128 after
payment of the underwriting discount and offerikgenses. After redemption of the Company’s Classi€Class D preferred stock for
$34,630, the net proceeds to the Company were $87ldhmediately prior to the consummation of thiéahpublic offering, all outstanding
shares of Class B preferred stock were convertagdnrdance with their terms into 1,846,396 shafélass A common stock, 306,298
shares of Class C preferred stock and 240,000 sbéf@lass D preferred stock. All shares of Clagn@ Class D preferred stock were
redeemed with cash or common stock and all shdrétaes A and Class B common stock were reclass#gecommon stock on a one-fare
basis. In connection with the initial public offieg, the Company filed an Amended and Restatedficaté of Incorporation (the
“Amendment”). The Amendment increased the Compaaythorized capital stock to 70,000,000 share§Q(ip00,000 of which is common
stock, $0.01 par value per share, and (i) 10,@md¥ which is preferred stock, $0.01 par valueghare.

The proceeds of the offering and additional teramlborrowings under the Amended Credit Agreementliscussed in Note 10) were
used as follows: (1) to redeem all of the Companystanding 13% senior subordinated discount debesmby payment to the Bank of New
York, as trustee for the holders of debentures, toftal payoff amount of approximately $40,000;t(2jedeem 293,536 shares of Class C
Preferred Stock held by Whitney RBHC Investor, L{E@/hitney”) for an aggregate redemption price 0B$54; (3) to redeem 12,762 shares
of Class C Preferred Stock held by Dr. Michael Hetttfor an aggregate redemption price of $1,2Zptq repurchase 230,000 shares of
Class D Preferred Stock held by Whitney for an eggte repurchase price of $7,667, of which $3,888 paid in cash out of the proceeds of
the offering and term loan borrowings and the badaof which was paid by issuance of 264,368 shafr€ommon Stock; (5) to repurchase
10,000 shares of Class D Preferred Stock held ynkté for an aggregate repurchase price of $38&hach $167 was paid in cash out of the
proceeds of the offering and term loan borrowiraggl the balance of which was paid by issuance @@Blshares of Common Stock; (6) to
repay approximately $45,000 of indebtedness uddeCompanys second lien term loan credit facility, which regented repayment in full
all amounts owing under such facility, plus appnoaiely $1,400 in fees and expenses in connectitinssich repayment and amendment;
(7) to pay approximately $5,000 in mandatory prepamts under the Company'’s credit facility in cortietwith the initial public offering;
and (8) to pay $2,732 in legal, printing, accoummd other miscellaneous expenses payable in cbonevith the initial public offering.

On February 28, 2006, the Company’s RBC Nice Beatiinc. subsidiary and the United Steelworker&rokrica (AFL-CIO) Local
6816-12 entered into a shutdown agreement in caoiomewith its decision to close operations at itdpsville, Pennsylvania facility. In
connection with the shutdown agreement, the unamdgreed to take no action against the Compaggrinection with such shutdown. The
agreement also addresses closure and other teemisisues related to pensions, workers compensaiitstment assistance and other
matters. The production conducted at the Niceifgdias been moved to other RBC locations, andCthmpany anticipates no material img
on production or its ability to service its customeShutdown costs included $0.6 million of seveeaand $0.4 million for fixed asset
disposals which were recorded in operating expeims@sher, net in fiscal 2006.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
General
The consolidated financial statements include tumants of RBC Bearings Incorporated, Roller Beaffompany of America, Inc.

(“RBCA") and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, InduatrTectonics Bearings Corporation (“ITB”), RBC ldgar Precision Products, Inc.
(“LPP™), RBC Nice Bearings, Inc. (“Nice”), BremereBrings, Inc. (“Bremen”), Miller Bearings, Inc.
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(“Miller™), Tyson Bearings., Inc. (“Tyson”), Schalib Holdings S.A. and its wholly-owned subsidiar{gSchaublin”), RBC de Mexico
(“Mexico”), RBC Oklahoma, Inc. (“RBC Oklahoma”), RBAircraft Products, Inc. (“API") and RBC Southwéatoducts, Inc. (“SWP”), as
well as its Transport Dynamics (“TDC"), Heim (“Helin Engineered Components (“ECD") and US Beariff§igsSB”) divisions. All material
intercompany balances and transactions have baeimaled in consolidation.

The Company has a fiscal year consisting of 5230mv&eks, ending on the Saturday closest to MarciB&3ed on this policy, fiscal
years 2006 and 2005 contained 52 weeks and fiseal3004 contained 53 wee

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid investmemischased with an original maturity of three mandh less to be cash equivalents.
Inventory

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or etarksing the first-in, first-out method. A reseagainst inventory is recorded for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory within each glakinventory.

Shipping and Handling

The sales price billed to customers includes ttstscassociated with shipping and handling, whighdkided in net sales. The costs to
the Company for shipping and handling are incluidecbst of sales.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at Pegireciation and amortization of property, plaml @quipment, including equipment
under capital leases, is provided for by the skrialime method over the estimated useful liveshef tespective assets or the lease term, if
shorter. Amortization of assets under capital Iedseeported within depreciation and amortizatibime cost of equipment under capital lee
is equal to the lower of the net present valudefrhinimum lease payments or the fair market vafube leased equipment at the inception
of the lease. Expenditures for normal maintenanckrapairs are charged to expense as incurred.

The estimated useful lives of the Company’s propgtant and equipment follows:

Buildings 20-30 years
Machinery and equipme 3-10 years
Leasehold improvemen Shorter of the term of lease or estimated usef

Recognition of Revenue and Accounts Receivable af@@bncentration of Credit Risk
The Company recognizes revenue only after theviatig four basic criteria are met:
«  Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;
«  Delivery has occurred or services have been reddere
e The seller’s price to the buyer is fixed or deteratile; and
e Collectibility is reasonably assured.

Revenue is recognized upon the passage of titlejvit at the time of shipment. Accounts receivabl of applicable allowances, is
recorded when goods are shipped.

The Company sells to a large number of OEMs anilolisors who service the aftermarket. The Compsaugyédit risk associated with
accounts receivable is minimized due to its custdmase and wide geographic dispersion. The Comparfgrms ongoing credit evaluations
of its customers’ financial condition and generalbes not require collateral or charge intereshutstanding amounts. At April 1, 2006 and
April 2, 2005, the Company had no concentrationsredlit risk greater than 10% of accounts receasbl
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Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtfubaots for estimated losses resulting from the iitghif its customers to make
required payments. The Company reviews the callityi of its receivables on an ongoing basis takiinto account a combination of factors.
The Company reviews potential problems, such ascagsaccounts, a bankruptcy filing or deteriomafio the customer’s financial condition,
to ensure the Company is adequately accrued fengat loss. Accounts are considered past due bas@hen payment was originally due.
If a customer’s situation changes, such as a batdywor creditworthiness, or there is a chang&édurrent economic climate, the Company
may modify its estimate of the allowance for doub#ficcounts. The Company will write-off accountsai@able after reasonable collection
efforts have been made and the accounts are dagmetlectible.

Goodwill and Amortizable Intangible Assets

Goodwill (representing the excess of the amourd gmacquire a company over the estimated fairevafithe net assets acquired) and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives aot amortized but instead are tested for impairmenually, or when events or circumstances
indicate that its value may have declined. Thigdeination of any goodwill impairment is made & teporting unit level and consists of t
steps. First, the Company determines the fair vafugereporting unit and compares it to its cargygimount. Second, if the carrying amoun
the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, an impait loss is recognized for any excess of theycagramount of the reporting ungtgoodwill
over the goodwill's implied fair value. The fairlua of the Company’s reporting units is calculddgccomparing the weighted average of the
net present value of future cash flows and a maptoach based on the reporting units’ carryirigezalhe Company utilizes discount rates
determined by management to be similar with thellefrisk in its current business model. The Comypperforms the annual impairment
testing during the fourth quarter of each fiscary@nd has determined that, to date, no impairwiegdodwill exists. Although no changes
expected, if the actual results of the Companyleme favorable than the assumptions the Compangsnagarding estimated cash flows, the
Company may be required to record an impairmentgehi the future.

The Company'’s definite-lived intangible asset categs are customer, technology, artistic, and ntargeelated and are amortized over
their estimated useful lives of 5 to 15 years. Afsduded in intangible assets is an asset reldtinge Company’s minimum pension liability,
as further described in Note 13.

Deferred Financing Costs
Deferred financing costs are amortized by the &ffednterest method over the lives of the relatestlit agreements (5 to 23 years).
Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using thditiamethod, which requires it to recognize aremt tax liability or asset for
current taxes payable or refundable and a deféawetiability or asset for the estimated future &ffects of temporary differences between
financial statement and tax reporting bases oftassal liabilities to the extent that they areimdile. Deferred tax expense (benefit) results
from the net change in deferred tax assets aniiitied during the year.

Temporary differences relate primarily to the tigniof deductions for depreciation, goodwill amortiaa relating to the acquisition of
operating divisions, basis differences arising frequisition accounting, pension and retiremenebtn) and various accrued and prepaid
expenses. Deferred tax assets and liabilitiese@rded at the rates expected to be in effect weetemporary differences are expected to
reverse.

Net Income (Loss) Per Common Share

Basic net income (loss) per common share is cordpagedividing net income (loss) available to comnstockholders (both Class A a
Class B common stockholders share equally in reeine (loss)) by the weighted-average number of comshares outstanding. Prior to
August 15, 2005, the Company also had outstandiags® convertible participating preferred stodle(Class B preferred stock participated
in all undistributed earnings with the common s)odlhe Company allocated earnings to the commarkbtiders and the Class B
convertible participating preferred stockholdergemthe two-class method as required by Emergisgels Task Force Issue No. 03-6,
“Participating Securities and the Two-Class Methader FASB Statement No. 128.” The two-class meth@ah earnings allocation method
under which basic net income per share is calalifatethe Companyg common stock and its Class B convertible pasiiiy preferred stoc
considering both accrued preferred stock divideardb participation rights in undistributed earniagsf all such earnings had been
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distributed during the year. Since the Companyas€IB convertible participating preferred stock waiscontractually responsible to share in
the Company’s losses, in applying the telass method to compute basic net income per consinare, no allocation was made to the Cle
preferred stock if a net loss existed or if an striuted net loss resulted from reducing net inedoy the accrued preferred stock dividends.

Diluted net income (loss) per common share is cdetphy dividing net income (loss) by the sum of weghted-average number of
common shares, dilutive common share equivaleets dlutstanding using the treasury stock method uiat, to August 15, 2005, the
assumed conversion of the Class B convertiblegpatiing preferred stock to common shares (if-col@eemethod). If the if-converted
method was anti-dilutive (that is, the if-convertadthod resulted in a higher net income per comshame amount than basic net income per
share calculated under the two-class method), ttheetwo-class method was used to compute dilutethneme (loss) per common share,
including the effect of common share equivalentan@ion share equivalents consist of the incremenotaimon shares issuable upon the
exercise of stock options and warrants.

If the above calculations resulted in a net los#lakle to common stockholders (due to a net losshie period or the effect of accrued
preferred stock dividends) and if the effect ofliing common shares equivalents and the assunmeei=ion of preferred stock, or use of
the two-class method, was anti-dilutive, then @itlbet loss per common share would equal basiosgper common share.

The table below reflects the calculation of weigh#&yerage shares outstanding for each year presastwell as the computation of
basic and diluted net income (loss) per commoneshar

Fiscal Year Ended

April 3,
April 1, April 2, 2004
2006 2005 (53 weeks)
Numerator:
Net income $ 1243¢ % 7,26C $ 663
Preferred stock dividend: (893) (2,280 (2,144
Participation rights of preferred stock in undistiied earnings** (630) (1,142) —
Numerator for basic and diluted net income per comshar—income (loss)
available to common stockholders under the-class methoi 10,91¢ 3,83¢€ (1,481)
Preferred stock dividends and participation rigiftpreferred stock 1,52% 3,422 2,144
Numerator for diluted net income per common s—income available to
common stockholders after assumed conversion éépeel stock $ 1243¢ $ 7,26C % 663
Fiscal Year Ended
April 3,
April 1, April 2, 2004
2006 2005 (53 weeks)
Denominator
Denominator for basic net income (loss) per comstare—
weightec-average share 12,931,18! 6,202,61! 6,188,90:
Effect of dilution due to employee stock optionsl avarrants 866,72t 2,805,57: 2,185,322
Effect of dilution due to convertible preferred at® 654,35¢ 1,846,39! 1,846,39!
Denominator for diluted net income (loss) per comrebare—adjusted
weightec-average share 14,452,26: 10,854,58: 10,220,62!
Basic net income (loss) per common share $ 084 $ 062 $ (0.24)
Diluted net income (loss) per common sh $ 076 $ 035 % (0.249)

* through August 15, 2005 (see Note 1).

**  Since the Company’s Class B convertible particigppreferred stock was not contractually respoedibishare in the Company’s
losses, in applying the two-class method to compatic net income per common share, no allocat@as wade to the Class B preferred
stock if an undistributed net loss resulted frogiua@ng net income by the preferred stock dividends.

For additional disclosures regarding the outstamgireferred stock and the employee stock optiodsaarrants, see Note 16.

47




Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conféymiith generally accepted accounting principleguises management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartemints of assets and liabilities, and disclos@immntingent assets and liabilities, at the
of the financial statements, and the reported ansoofirevenues and expenses during the reportingdedctual results could differ from
those estimates. Estimates are used for, butmdeti to, the accounting for the allowance for déultaccounts, valuation of inventories,
accrued expenses, depreciation and amortizatioarria taxes and tax valuation reserves, pensiopasteretirement obligations and the
valuation of options and warrants.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company assesses the net realizable valug lohi-lived assets and evaluates such assetsf@iiment whenever indicators of
impairment are present.

For amortizable long-lived assets to be held ardiLi§ indicators of impairment are present, manag@ determines whether the sum of
the estimated undiscounted future cash flows @®tlean the carrying amount. The amount of asgeimment, if any, is based on the excess
of the carrying amount over its fair value, whishestimated based on projected discounted futurmtipg cash flows using a discount rate
reflecting the Company’s average cost of fundsdat, no indicators of impairment exist.

Long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale oratteans are reported at the lower of carrying arhoufair value, less costs to sell.
Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions

Assets and liabilities of the Company’s foreign igpiens are translated into U.S. dollars usingetkehange rate in effect at the balance
sheet date. Results of operations are translated the average exchange rate prevailing througtieuperiod. The effects of exchange rate
fluctuations on translating foreign currency assets liabilities into U.S. dollars are includedsiccumulated other comprehensive loss, while
gains and losses resulting from foreign currenagdactions, which were not material for any offtbeal years presented, are included in
selling, general and administrative expenses. iNeime of the Company’s foreign operations for 1i@96, 2005 and 2004 amounted to
$2,624, $2,148 and $2,242, respectively. Net asgetee Company’s foreign operations were $24,30d $24,368 at April 1, 2006 and
April 2, 2005, respectively.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts reported in the balance dbeeash, accounts receivable, prepaids and otireemt assets, and accounts payable
and accruals approximate their fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s senior subatdd notes payable and discount debentures appatefair value and are
estimated based on the quoted market price ofairdébt instruments. The carrying amounts of then@amy’s borrowings under its
Amended Credit Agreement, Swiss Credit Facility &rdtustrial Development Revenue Bonds approximaitevhlue, as these obligations
have interest rates which vary in conjunction veitiirent market conditions.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss
The components of comprehensive income (loss)étatie to the Company are net income, foreign oggréranslation adjustments and
pension plan additional minimum liability, all othich are presented in the consolidated statemémstockholders’ equity (deficit) and

comprehensive income (loss).

The following summarizes the activity within eadngponent of accumulated other comprehensive indtoses):

Minimum
Currency Pension
Translation Liability Total
Balance at March 29, 2003 $ (1,367) $ (2,677) $ (4,049
Currency translatio 63 — 63
Minimum pension liability — 638 638
Balance at April 3, 2004 (1,304) (2,039 (3,343
Currency translatio 488 — 488
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Minimum pension liability — 323 323

Balance at April 2, 2005 (816) (1,71€) (2,532)
Currency translatio (569) — (569)
Minimum pension liability — (291) (291)
Balance at April 1, 2006 $ (1,385 $ (2,000 $ (3,399

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for options and warrants gdatiot employees using the intrinsic value methagyant to APB No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” unddrichh compensation cost is recognized only if thereise price of grants issued is below
the fair market value of the Company’s common staicthe date of grant. Had compensation cost fesealgrants been determined based on
the fair value at the grant dates consistent WRAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compersgtithe Company net income woul
have been reduced to the following pro forma am&unt

Fiscal Year Ended

April 1, April 2, April 3,
2006 2005 2004

Net income, as reporte $12,43¢ $ 7,26C $ 663
Plus: stoc-based compensation expense included in reportadamhe, net of ta 230 264 —
Less: stock-based compensation expense determiuied fair value method, net of tax (1,842) (540) (131)
Pro forma net income $10,827 $ 6,984 $ 532
Net income (loss) per common share, as repa
Basic $ 084 $ 062 $ (0.29
Diluted $ 076 $ 035 $ (0.29
Net income (loss) per common share, pro for
Basic $ 072 $ 057 $ (0.26
Diluted $ 064 $ 033 $ (0.26)

For purposes of the pro forma disclosures, thenastid fair value of the options and warrants isréizexd to expense over the service
period that generally is the option or warrant wesperiod. The weighted average fair value peresbfoptions and warrants granted was
$5.99 in fiscal 2006, $8.17 in fiscal 2005 and 8lirbfiscal 2004.

The fair value for the Company’s options and wasarvas estimated at the date of grant using thekBszholes option pricing model
with the following weighted-average assumptions:

Fiscal Year Ended
April 1, April 2, April 3,

2006 2005 2004
Dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Expected weighte-average life 7.0 3.0 3.0

Risk-free interest rat 3.5% 3.5% 3.5%
Expected volatility 32.C% 0.4% 0.1%

The Black-Scholes option pricing model was devetbjee use in estimating the fair value of tradetia@ps and warrants which have no
vesting restrictions and are fully transferableaditlition, option and warrant valuation models rexjthe input of highly subjective
assumptions, including the expected stock pricatility. Because the Company’s warrants have cheariatics significantly different from
those of traded options and warrants, and becdag®es in the subjective input assumptions canrraiyeaffect the fair value estimate, the
existing models do not necessarily provide a rédiabngle measure of the fair value of its optiansl warrants.

On April 1, 2006, the Company accelerated the ngsii 523,585 stock options whose exercise prica® Welow its closing stock price
on the date the vesting of the options was acdel@rés a result, a charge of approximately $78phéax, was recorded in fiscal 2006. The
accelerated vesting of these stock options is dedrio eliminate compensation expense associatbdivase options in future periods due to
the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payrh&he impact of the acceleration of vestinglsadncluded in the pro forma table
above.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2004, the Financial Accounting Standd@dard (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 151, “Inventorystg an amendment of ARB
No. 43, Chapter ” The amendments made by SFAS No. 151 clarify dietormal amounts of idle facility expense, freidtandling costs,
and wasted materials (spoilage) should be recodrageurrent-period charges and require the altoctaf fixed production overheads to
inventory based on the normal capacity of the pctiduo facilities. The guidance is effective for @ntory costs incurred during fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2005. It is not believeat the adoption of SFAS No. 151 will have a matémpact on the consolidated financial
position, results of operations or cash flows & @ompany.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1239eeV2004), “Share-Based Payment.” SFAS No. 12&(R)equire that the
compensation cost relating to share-based paymadactions be recognized in financial statem@iftat cost will be measured based on the
fair value of the equity or liability instrumentssued. SFAS No. 123(R) covers a wide range of dhesed compensation arrangements
including share options, restricted share plandppeance-based awards, share appreciation rightsemployee share purchase plans. SFAS
No. 123(R) replaces FASB Statement No. I*‘Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”, and ss@eges APB Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” SFAS. Nl23, as originally issued in 1995, establishedraerable a fair value-based method
of accounting for share-based payment transactiithsemployees. However, that Statement permittedies the option of continuing to
apply the guidance in APB Opinion No. 25, as loadte footnotes to financial statements discloskdtwet income would have been had
preferable fair value-based method been used. Paibtities will be required to apply SFAS No. 12BéR of the beginning of the first fiscal
year beginning after June 15, 2005. SFAS No. 12p@Rnits public companies to adopt its requiremeasisg one of two method

1. A “modified prospective” method in which compenseatcost is recognized beginning with the effectia¢e (a) based on the
requirements of SFAS No. 123(R) for all share-bgsmanents granted after the effective date anddbgd on requirements of
SFAS No. 123 for all awards granted to employeés po the effective date of SFAS No. 123(R) thahain unvested on the
effective date.

2. A “modified retrospective” method which includegtrequirements of the modified prospective methestdbed above, but
also permits entities to restate, based on the atpoaviously recognized under SFAS No. 123 foppse of pro forma
disclosures, either (a) all prior periods presemtetb) prior interim periods of the year of adopti

The Company is required to adopt the pronouncemefigcal 2007 and have decided to use the “modifiospective” method in
applying SFAS No. 123(R). Due to acceleration aftivey of outstanding options during th&4  quanfdiscal 2006, the impact of the
adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) will depend on the nemtif awards granted in the future. For fiscal 20486 Company continued to disclose
stock-based compensation information in accordantteSFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock Based Cangation—Transitions and
Disclosure—an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 128d SFAS No. 123.

3. Acquisitions

Effective September 2, 2005, SWP purchased ceatsiats of the Southwest Products Company, a maatgaof spherical bearings ,
journal bearings, and pL-pull controls for military weapon systems and taily and commercial aerospace applications lodatéavindale,
California. The total consideration paid was $2,6B2 purchase price allocation is as follows: act® receivable ($114), inventory ($630),
property, plant and equipment ($720), intangibkets ($1,449) and accrued expenses ($231). Thegisdssociated with the acquisition are
complementary with products already provided byeothompany businesses. SWP is included in the pksdiming reportable segment.

Effective December 22, 2004, RBCA purchased centatrassets of the US Bearings division of Netwildctronic Corporation, a
manufacturer of lined and unlined spherical, rod-and other specialty bearings located in Chat$w@alifornia. The total consideration
paid was $1,228. The purchase price allocatios i®kows: inventory ($522), property, plant andugmment ($585), intangible assets ($438)
and accrued expenses ($317). All of the produdsdated with the acquisition are complementarypibducts already provided by other
Company businesses. US Bearings is included ipltie bearings reportable segment.

Effective December 22, 2003, API, a wholly-ownetisidiary of RBCA, purchased the airframe contrarigy business of The Timken

Company, located in Torrington, CT. The total cdesation paid was $5,471 after the final purchase@djustment of $473 in 2005. The
purchase price allocation is as follows: accouateivable ($379), inventory ($3,911),
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property, plant and equipment ($2,439), intangédsets ($1,136) and accrued expenses ($2,394prdtects associated with the acquisition
are complementary with products already providedttyer Company businesses. APl is included indfierrbearings reportable segment.

The results of operations subsequent to the effedates of the acquisitions are included in tiselte of operations of the Company.
Unaudited pro forma consolidated results of openatiof the Company, based upon pre-acquisitionditextihistorical information provided
for the years ended April 1, 2006, April 2, 200%1 spril 3, 2004, as if the SWP, USB and API acdiasis took place on March 29, 2003,
as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended

April 1, April 2, April 3,
2006 2005 2004
Net sales $276,96: $250,45! $216,567
Net income $ 1267C $ 7,906 $ 3,91t
Net income per common sha
Basic $ 08 $ 072 $ 0.25
Diluted $ 077 $ 041 $ 0.1t
4. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
The activity in the allowance for doubtful accouatssists of the following:
Balance at
Beginning of
Balance at
Fiscal Year Ended Year Additions Write -offs End of Year
April 1, 2006 $ 628 $ 244 % (34) $ 838
April 2, 2005 770 472 (614) 628
April 3, 2004 744 378 (352) 770
5. Inventory
Inventory consists of the following:
April 1, April 2,
2006 2005
Raw materials $ 7,845 $ 5,50¢
Work in proces: 30,147 27,95¢
Finished goods 65,15€ 62,097
$103,14¢ $ 95,654
6. Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment consist of the foilhmy
April 1, April 2,
2006 2005
Land $ 740t $ 7,17¢
Buildings and improvemen 17,06C 16,13€
Machinery and equipment 118,03( 108,701
142,49t 132,01z
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization 84,467 76,67C

$ 58,02¢ $ 55,34¢

7. Disposal / Impairment of Fixed Assgt

During the year ended April 1, 2006, the Company daon-cash charge of $24 on the loss on saléiapdsal of property, plant and
equipment and recorded a $400 reserve for the rmait of fixed assets owned by RBC Nice Bearings, ih connection with the shutdown
of the facility. During the year ended April 2, Z)@he Company had a non-cash charge of $1,77Beolo$s on sale and disposal of property,
plant and equipment related to the consolidatioprofiuction lines and
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outsourcing certain components to low-cost produdeuring the year ended April 3, 2004, the Compzeny a non-cash charge of $236 on
the loss on disposal of property, plant and equigmalated to the consolidation of production lin&l amounts were classified as an “other,
net” operating expense in the consolidated stat&sradroperations.

8. Goodwill and Amortizable IntangibleAssets

Goodwill balances, by segment, consist of the foithg:

April 1, April 2,

2006 2005
Roller $15,67: $15,67:
Plain 9,477 9,477

$25,15C $25,15(

The Company'’s definite-lived intangible asset categs are customer, technology, artistic, and ntargeelated and are amortized over
their estimated useful lives of 5 to 15 years. Atsduded in intangible assets is an asset reldtrije Company’s minimum pension liability,
as further described in Note 13.

Amortization expense for definite-lived intangilalssets during fiscal year 2006, 2005 and 2004 @&3%,%500 and $344, respectively.
Estimated amortization expense for the five sudoggfiscal years and thereafter is as follows:

2007 $ 744

2008 566

2009 325

2010 325

2011 325

2012 and thereaftt 1,188
9. Accrued Expenses and Other Currentiabilities

The significant components of accrued expensestrat current liabilities are as follows:

April 1, April 2,

2006 2005
Employee compensation and related benefits $ 3,26 $ 3,15C
Plant consolidation cos 718 —
Interest 956 3,140
Other 3,629 4,331

$ 857z $10,621]

10. Debt

During fiscal 1998, the Company issued $40,00Cafa subordinated discount debentures (“Deberitude in 2009, which had an
aggregate principal amount at maturity of $74,832ring fiscal 2003, the Company made principal pagta on this debt of $30,400. The
Debentures accrued interest at 13% per annum, [gagami-annually, and were to mature on June 189 .20he Debentures were callable at
any point at a premium to the principal amount ihéad) to par at the end of June 2008. Additionaiye Company could, at any time at its
option, redeem the Debentures, in whole or in péth the net cash proceeds from one or more pwégjigty offerings by the Company. The
Debentures were senior secured obligations of tmagany, senior in right of payment to all existangd future subordinated indebtedness of
the Company. The Debentures were secured by #ikabutstanding common stock of RBCA and were epaiAugust 15, 2005.

On June 29, 2004, the Company closed a $210,000efaiancing agreement (the “Credit Facility”) ladd arranged by General
Electric Capital Corporation. The agreement progideb55,000 revolving credit agreement (the “Rewg\Credit Facility”), a $110,000 term
loan (the “Term Loan”), and a $45,000 second l@mtloan (the “SCIL Loan”). Each loan was securgé@lien against substantially all of
the assets of the Company and subjected the Contpatgndard affirmative and negative covenantsyedsas financial leverage tests. The
proceeds were used to refinance the then existingiscredit facility and to redeem outstandingtd&tost notably, concurrently with
funding, the Company issued a notice of redemptidhe noteholders of the®@s % senior subordinated notes issued pursuant todemiure
and due June 15, 2007. The requisite funds, appeadrly $113,000 (101.6041% of the principal amgumére irrevocably put on deposit
with the trustee, Bank of New
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York, for redemption July 29, 2004. This amountuled a redemption premium of $1,765 that was dEnbas a loss on extinguishment of
debt, as was $4,297 in unamortized deferred findees associated with this debt and $882 in intergsense during the call period. Deferred
finance fees of $4,516 were capitalized associatddthe new debt refinancing arrangement.

The Revolving Credit Facility bore interest at@afing rate of either the higher of the base ratearporate loans or the federal funds
rate plus 50 basis points, plus 1.75%; or LIBORs[@W0%. The Company had the right to elect théicgipe interest rate on the Revolving
Credit Facility. The Term Loan bore interest aloating rate of either the higher of the base oateorporate loans or the federal funds rate
plus 50 basis points, plus 2.50%; or LIBOR plus367 The Company had the right to elect the applécatterest rate on the Term Loan. The
SCIL Loan bore interest at a floating rate of aittie higher of the base rate on corporate loaiseofederal funds rate plus 50 basis points,
plus 7.25%; or LIBOR plus 8.50%. The Company hadrtpht to elect the applicable interest rate anSKCIL Loan.

On August 15, 2005, the Company entered into & Rifhended and Restated Credit Agreement (the “Amétredit Agreement”),
among RBCA, the other Credit Parties signatoryeterGeneral Electric Capital Corporation, a Delen@orporation, for itself, as lender, :
as agent for the lenders, concurrently with theialg of the Company'initial public offering. Pursuant to the Amendegedit Agreement, tr
Company increased its term loan borrowings by apprately $40,000 from $110,000 under the term Ipartion of the Amended Credit
Agreement. The Amended Credit Agreement provideS5000 revolving credit agreement (the “AmendeddReng Credit Facility”) and a
$150,000 term loan (the “Amended Term Loan”). Thagpal amount of the Amended Term Loan will bpaig in twenty-five
(25) consecutive quarterly installments commené&ergember 31, 2005. As of April 1, 2006, the Comphaag repaid $4,750 of principal on
the Amended Term Loan. Each loan is secured bynadgainst substantially all of the assets of th@any and subjects the Company to
standard affirmative and negative covenants, akasdinancial leverage tests. As of April 1, 208& Company was in compliance with all
such covenants.

The Amended Revolving Credit Facility bears intesgsa floating rate of either the higher of thadaate on corporate loans or the
federal funds rate plus 50 basis points, plus 1;25%IBOR plus 2.50%. The Company has the righelet the applicable interest rate on
Amended Revolving Credit Facility. The Amended Tdroan bears interest at a floating rate of eithertigher of the base rate on corporate
loans or the federal rate plus 50 basis points plG0%; or LIBOR plus 2.75%. The Company hasite to elect the applicable interest rate
on the Amended Term Loan.

Approximately $20,552 of the Amended Revolving Qré&gcility is being utilized to provide letters ofedit to secure RBCA'’s
obligations relating to certain Industrial Develogmmh Revenue Bonds and insurance programs. As of 32006, RBCA had the ability to
borrow up to an additional $34,448 under the Amerigevolving Credit Facility.

On December 8, 2003, Schaublin entered into a beadt facility (the “Swiss Credit Facility”) witiCredit Suisse providing for 10,000
Swiss francs, or approximately $7,668, of term fofthe “Swiss Term Loans”) and up to 2,000 Swiasds, or approximately $1,534, of
revolving credit loans and letters of credit (tt8wiss Revolving Credit Facility”RBCA pledged 99.4% of the present and future sbapéa
of Schaublin (1,366 shares) against this facifip. November 8, 2004, Schaublin amended the Swisdii(acility to increase the Swiss
Revolving Credit Facility to 4,000 Swiss francs approximately $3,067. Borrowings under the Swissd@ Facility bear interest at a floati
rate of LIBOR plus 2.25%. As of April 1, 2006, teerere no borrowings outstanding under the Swis®Rimg Credit Facility.

During fiscal 1995, the Company entered into a lagreement with the South Carolina Jobs Economiedpment Authority (“SC
JEDA") which provides for borrowings up to $10,7@@der two industrial development revenue bondsi€Sdi994 A and B) and, during
fiscal 1999, the Company entered into an addititweh agreement with the SC JEDA which providesbfmrowings up to $3,000 under an
industrial development revenue bond (Series 1988).interest rate is variable and based on thea90-dS. Treasury Bill rate. Additionally,
during fiscal 2000, the Company entered into a lagmeement with the California Infrastructure amdomic Development Bank which
provides for borrowings up to $4,800 under an indalsdevelopment revenue bond (Series 1999) (ctillely, “Bonds”). The interest rate on
the Bonds is variable and based on the Bond Mag&stciation 7-day Municipal Swap Index. The prosefedm the Bonds are restricted for
working capital requirements and capital expendipurposes. On March 1, 2002, the Company retiredinused portion of the Series 1998
bonds of $1,845. As of April 1, 2006, all of thepeeds have been expended with the exception dfwhich has been invested by the trustee
in marketable securities. The Series 1994 A andlb and the Series 1998 bonds are secured bsesndable direct-pay letter of credit
issued by one of the Company’s lenders. The lefteredit is equal to the aggregate principal anb@finthe bonds plus not less than fofiye
days’ interest thereon, calculated at 12% per anfi®,026 at April 1, 2006). The Series 1999 baamdslikewise secured by an irrevocable
direct-pay letter of credit issued by one of therpany’s lenders. The Company’s obligation to itelers is secured pursuant to the
provisions of the Credit Facility and is

53




equal to the aggregate principal amount of the bqgahgls not less than fifty days’ interest therezaigculated at 12% per annum ($4,879 at

April 1, 2006).
The balances payable under all borrowing facilitiess as follows:

April 1,

April 2,

2006 2005

13% Senior Subordinated Discount Debenture $ — $ 37,94¢
Credit Facility
Term Loan (replaced with Amended Credit Agreem — 109,17¢
SCIL Loan (paid as discussed abo — 45,00(
Revolving Credit Facility (replaced with Amendede@it Agreement — 5,00C
Amended Credit Agreement
Amended Term Loan, payable in quarterly installreeft$375, commencing December 31, 2005, with final

payment of $137,750 due July 1, 2011; bears intetegriable rates (weighted average interestwate7.24%

for the fiscal year ended April 1, 2006), payablenthly and upon maturity at prime or LIBOR, plus an

applicable margin, at the Comp¢s electior 145,25( —
Amended Revolving Credit Facility; bears interdstariable rates, payable monthly and upon matatifgrime or

LIBOR, plus an applicable margin, at the Com(’s electior — —
Swiss Credit Facility
Term Loan, payable in semi-annual installmentsirapfrom approximately $400, commencing March 3104,

to approximately $1,000 from September 30, 2008 funal payment due March 31, 2009; bears inteaiest

variable rates, plus an applicable margin (weiglaegtage interest rate was 4.21% and 3.84% fdigbal years

ended April 1, 2006 and April 2, 2005, respectiyepayable quarterl 3,842 6,233
Other Loans — 67
Industrial Development Revenue Bond:
Series 1994 A, due in annual installments of $18§irming September 1, 2006, graduating to $815 on

September 1, 2014, with final payment due on Selpéerh, 2017; bears interest at a variable rateghted

average interest rate was 4.19% and 1.79% forishalfyears ended April 1, 2006 and April 2, 2005,

respectively), payable monthly through Septembés7: 7,70C 7,70C
Series 1994 B, bears interest at a variable ra¢éggfved average interest rate was 4.19% and 1.89%é fiscal

years ended April 1, 2006 and April 2, 2005, resipely), payable monthly through December 2( 3,00C 3,00C
Series 1998, bears interest at variable rates fuegigaverage interest rate was 3.10% and 4.40%ddiscal years

ended April 1, 2006 and April 2, 2005, respectiyepayable monthly through December 20 1,15t 1,155
Series 1999, bearing interest at variable rategyfvied average interest rate was 3.57% for thalfigears ended

April 1, 2006 and April 2, 2005), payable monthydugh April 2024 4,80C 4,80C
Total Debt 165,747 220,07¢
Less: Current Portion 3,217 8,24k
Long-Term Debt $162,53( $211,83¢

The current portion of long-term debt as of ApriD06 and April 2, 2005 includes $0 and $5,008peetively, of borrowings on the

revolving credit facilities.

Maturities of debt during each of the followingdidiscal years and thereafter are as follows:

2007 $ 3,217
2008 3,385
2009 3,000
2010 2,040
2011 2,160
Thereaftel 151,94¢%
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11. Obligations Under Capital Leases

Machinery and equipment additions under capitaddsaamounted to $246, $270 and $458 in fiscal 200@8, and 2004, respectively.
The average imputed rate of interest on capitaldeat each year end was 4.7%, 5.9% and 4.4%cal 1806, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Included in property, plant and equipment are thefing assets held under capital leases:

April 1, April 2,

2006 2005
Machinery and equipment $5,397 $5,227
Accumulated depreciation (4,866) (4,520)

$ 531 $ 707

Future minimum lease payments under capital leatsApril 1, 2006 are as follows:

2007 $250
2008 61
2009 52
2010 52
2011 12

Total minimum lease payments 427
Less: amount representing interest 20
Present value of net minimum lease payments 407
Less: current maturities 237

Non-current capital lease obligations $170

12. Other Non-Current Liabilities

The significant components of other non-curreriiliges consist of:

April 1, April 2,

2006 2005
Additional minimum pension liability $3,75¢  $3,29¢
Other pos-retirement benefit 2,637 2,826
Other 2,025 1,429

$8,421 $7,554

13. Pension Plans

At April 1, 2006, the Company has noncontributoefided benefit pension plans covering union empayia its Heim division plant in
Fairfield, Connecticut, its Nice subsidiary plamtdulpsville, Pennsylvania, its Bremen subsidialanpin Plymouth, Indiana and its Tyson
subsidiary plant in Glasgow, Kentucky.

Effective May 1, 2006, the pension plan for thed\stibsidiary in Kulpsville, Pennsylvania has baemdn in accordance with the terms
of the Shutdown Agreement between RBC Nice Beayiimgs and the United Steelworkers of America (AELQ) Local 6816-12 dated
February 15, 2006. The impact on the financiakstants of freezing this plan is and will be immiateNo further benefits will accrue
against this plan and no new employees will beceliggble for participation in the plan. Howevergt@ompany will continue to maintain the
plan.

Plan assets are comprised primarily of equity sgesr The plans provide benefits of stated amobaged on a combination of an
employee’s age and years of service. The Compasyyail©ecember 31 measurement date for its plaesCémpany expects to contribute
approximately $1,440 to its pension plans in figesr 2007.
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The following table sets forth net periodic benefist of the Company’s plans for the three fisealrg in the period ended April 1, 2006:

Fiscal Year Ended
April 1, April 2, April 3,

2006 2005 2004
Components of net periodic benefit cc

Service cos $ 575 $ 507 $ 497
Interest cos 984 944 923
Expected return on plan ass (1,130) (972) (803)
Amortization of prior service co: 39 19 19
Amortization of losses 209 239 343
Net periodic benefit cost $ 677 $ 737 $ 979

The following tables set forth the funded statuthef Company’s defined benefit pension plans, theumt recognized in the balance
sheet at April 1, 2006 and April 2, 2005, and thagpal weighted-average assumptions inherertéir tdetermination:

April 1, April 2,
2006 2005
Change in benefit obligatiol
Benefit obligation at beginning of ye $16,23t  $15,42(
Service cos 575 507
Interest cos 984 944
Plan amendmen — 160
Actuarial loss 1,197 48
Benefits paid (967) (844)
Benefit obligation at end of year $18,02¢ $16,23¢
Change in plan asse
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of y $12,79¢  $10,78¢
Actual return on plan asse 1,619 1,603
Employer contribution 817 1,250
Benefits paid (967) (844)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $14,267 $12,79¢
Reconciliation of funded status at end of yi
Underfunded statL $ (3,757) $ (3,437)
Unrecognized prior service cc 413 444
Unrecognized actuarial net loss 3,346 2,855
Net amount recognized in the balance sheet $ 2 $ (139
Amounts recognized in the balance sh
Minimum pension liability $ (3,757) $ (3,437)
Intangible asse 508 562
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 3,251 2,737
Net amount recognized in the balance sheet $ 2 $ (139

Benefits under the union plans are not a functioengployees’ salaries; thus, the accumulated beaokfigation equals the projected
benefit obligation.

The assumptions used in determining the net perioeinefit cost information are as follows:

FY 2006 FY 2005 FY 2004
Discount rate 590% 6.25% 6.50%
Expected lon-term rate of return on plan ass 9.00% 9.00% 9.00%




The discount rate used in determining the fundatlistas of April 1, 2006 and April 2, 2005 was St7&nd 5.90%, respectively.

In developing the overall expected long-term retmmlan assets assumption, a building block aghreas used in which rates of
return in excess of inflation were considered sagdyy for equity securities and debt securitiee €hcess
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returns were weighted by the representative tadimtation and added along with an appropriate gateflation to develop the overall
expected long-term return on plan assets assumption

The Company recorded a minimum pension liabilit$8f757 and $3,437 at April 1, 2006 and April 2020respectively. This liability
represents the amount by which the accumulatedfibebégation exceeds the sum of the fair markaiue of plan assets. The additional
minimum pension liability at April 1, 2006 and Ap2, 2005 of $3,759 and $3,299, respectively, fsaifby an intangible asset to the exter
previously unrecognized prior service cost. Thangible assets of $508 and $562 at April 1, 20@BAgril 2, 2005, respectively, are
included on the line item entitled “Intangible asSén the consolidated balance sheet. The remgiamounts of $2,007 and $1,716, net of
deferred income taxes of $1,244 and $1,021, reispdctare recorded as a component of stockholdarsity (deficit) on the line item titled
“Accumulated other comprehensive loss” in the ctidated balance sheet at April 1, 2006 and AprR@)5, respectively. The intangible
asset in fiscal 2006 and 2005 is greater than nihecognized prior service cost because one of tmepany’s plans has an unrecognized
negative prior service cost.

The Company’s investment program objective is tieae a rate of return on plan assets which willdfthe plan liabilities and provide
for required benefits while avoiding undue expodorgsk to the plan and increases in funding resfuents. The Company’s target allocation
of plan assets was 100 percent equity investmeémtprd 1, 2006 and April 2, 2005.

The following benefit payments, which reflect fugigervice as appropriate, are expected to be Paabenefit payments are based on
the same assumptions used to measure the Compmemgsit obligation at the end of fiscal 2006.

2007 $ 903
2008 908
2009 944
2010 1,009
2011 1,149
201z-2017 6,627

In addition, the Company has a defined contribugiam under Section 401(k) of the Internal Reve@ode for all of its employees not
covered by a collective bargaining agreement. Tae i3 funded by eligible participants through eaygle contributions and by Company
contributions equal to 25% of the first 4% of dbilgi employee compensation. Effective October 112€@% Company suspended matching
contributions to this plan. Effective April 4, 200#e Company resumed a program of employer majatontributions to this plan. Employer
contributions under this plan amounted to $284%8#b in fiscal 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Effective September 1, 1996, the Company adoptashaqualified Supplemental Executive RetiremenhR{&ERP”) for a select group
of highly compensated management employees desitjbgtthe Board of Directors of the Company. Th&BEllows eligible employees to
elect to defer, until termination of their employmiethe receipt of up to 25% of their current saldihe Company makes contributions equal
to the lesser of 50% of the deferrals, or 3.5%hefémployees’ annual salary, which vest in fukithree years of service following the
effective date of the SERP. Employer contributionder this plan amounted to $86, $67, and $5&uafi2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

14. Post-retirement Health Care and Liferisurance Benefits

The Company, for the benefit of employees at iteyH&Vest Trenton, Nice, Tyson and Bremen facilitigsonsors contributory defined
benefit health care plans that provide post-retmeihmedical and life insurance benefits to uniopleyees who have attained certain age
and/or service requirements while employed by tom@any. The plans are unfunded and costs are paimtarred. Post-retirement benefit
obligations are included in “Other non-current iigies” in the consolidated balance sheet.

Effective May 1, 2006, the post-retirement medarad life insurance benefits for the Nice subsidiari{ulpsville, Pennsylvania have
been addressed in the terms of the Shutdown Ageigmeéveen RBC Nice Bearings, Inc. and the Unitel8/orkers of America (AFL-
CIO) Local 6816-12 dated February 15, 2006. Thedichpn the financial statements is and will be in@rial. No new employees will
become eligible for participation in the plan. Lifssurance benefits will terminate July 31, 2006stPretirement medical benefits will be
available until the contract expires on January2808.

The Company uses a March 31 measurement dates folaits. The Company expects to contribute apprabeiyn $216 to its post-
retirement benefit plans in fiscal year 2007.
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On December 8, 2003, the Medicare Prescription Dmgrovement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the tAavas signed into law. Tt
Company’s prescription drug benefit for all postirement plans is capped at a set amount eackthmshich is paid to the retirees so they
obtain prescription drug coverage. As such, the g is not self-insured for prescription drugs #relAct has no impact on the recorded
obligation.

Information with respect to the post-retirement moaldand life insurance plans follows:

April 1, April 2,

2006 2005
Accumulated benefit obligation at beginning of year $3,726 $4,165
Service cos 141 121
Interest cos 198 217
Plan amendmen — (482)
Actuarial loss (453) (119)
Benefits paid (159) (172)
Accumulated benefit obligation at end of year 3,455 3,728
Unrecognized prior service cc 157 643
Unrecognized net loss (975) (1,545
$2,637 $2,82¢

Components of net periodic post-retirement bemeft are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended
April 1, April 2, April 3,

2006 2005 2004
Service cost $ 141 $ 121 $ 238
Interest cos 198 217 249
Prior service cost amortizatic (486) (496) (481)
Amount of loss recognized 117 161 172

$ B0 $ 3 $ 178

During fiscal 2004, the plans were amended to eatrlly limit the benefit to be provided for céntgroups of current and future
retirees. As a result, there is no health caredtemssociated with these groups. The discount s#d in determining the accumulated post-
retirement benefit obligation was 6.25% at Aprib006 and 5.90% at April 2, 2005. The discount tated in determining the net periodic
benefit cost was 5.90% for fiscal 2006, 6.25% fecdl 2005 and 6.50% for fiscal 2004.

The following benefit payments, which reflect fugigervice as appropriate, are expected to be Paabenefit payments are based on
the same assumptions used to measure the Compmemgsit obligation at the end of fiscal 2006.

2007 $ 216

2008 230

2009 246

2010 270

2011 277

201z-2017 1,481
15. Income Taxes

Income (loss) before income taxes for the Compadgiaestic and foreign operations are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended
April 1, April 2, April 3,
2006 2005 2004
Domestic $1595: $ 3,27¢ $ (860)




Foreign 3,120 2,597 2,593
$19,07¢ $ 587t $ 1,73¢
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The provision for (benefit from) income taxes catsiof the following:

Current:
Federal
State
Foreign

Deferred:
Federal
State

Total

Fiscal Year Ended

April 1, April 2, April 3,
2006 2005 2004
$1615 $ 915 $(1,299

566 364 (201)
497 449 351
2,678 1,728  (1,149)
3,694 (2,644) 1,921
262 (469) 298
3,956 (3,113) 2,219
$ 6,634 $(1,385) $ 1,07C

A reconciliation of income taxes computed usingth8. federal statutory rate to that reflectedpermations follows:

Income taxes using U.S. federal statutory rate

State income taxes, net of federal ber

Officer’s life insurance

Meals and entertainme

ETI benefit

Adjustment of taxes to tax returns as fi

Foreign rate differentie

Impact of indefinite postponement of remittancesidistributed earnings of
foreign subsidiarie

Other

Net deferred tax assets consist of the following:

Deferred tax asset
Pos-retirement benefit
Employee compensation accru
Alternative minimum tax credit
General business cred
Net operating losse
Inventory
Stock warrant:

Pensior
Other
Total deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipme
Amortization of intangibles
Total deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax assets

The Company has reduced income tax expense by B81#&cal 2005 for the undistributed earningstefforeign subsidiaries on which
U.S. income taxes were previously recorded. The [@izmy has reassessed its needs internationallyadeiermined that, despite

Fiscal Year Ended

April 1, April 2, April 3,
2006 2005 2004
$6,67€ $ 1,99 $ 589

660 (66) 58

16 44 59

82 55 38
(126) (66) (70)
94 849 225
(595) (434) —
— (3,781 —
(173) 16 171
$6,634 $(1,385) $ 1,07C

April 1, April 2,
2006 2005
$ 875 $ 990
1,635 731
2,481 1,912
777 —
4,763 2,100
3,407 3,492
1,364 2,103
1,244 1,021
1,280 1,214
17,826 13,563
(5,548)  (6,555)
(2,250)  (1,836)
(7,798)  (8,391)
$10,02¢ $ 5,172




benefits introduced by the American Jobs Creationoh 2004, its undistributed foreign earnings ppeximately $15,000 at April 1,
2006 will be re-invested indefinitely based upoe tieed for cash in its foreign
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operations, potential foreign acquisitions andGeenpany’s inability to remit cash back to the Udit&tates under its current foreign debt
obligations.

At April 1, 2006, the Company has federal and statieoperating loss carryforwards of approximagiy,000 and $12,300, respective
to offset future income taxes, which expire at @asi dates through 2025. In addition, the Compasyaltarnative minimum tax credit and
general business tax credit carryforwards of apprately $2,500 and $800, respectively. The netatp®y loss carryforwards may be subject
to certain limitations provided in IRC Sections 38#l 383. The Company’s tax returns are subjesview and examination by various
taxing authorities, which could result in changeadcrued tax estimates.

During fiscal 2006, the Company and the IRS firedia settlement relating to the year 2000. Thdtrebthe settlement, to the
Company, was an additional $8.5 million of deduetittompensation expense. The related tax benedippfoximately $2.5 million was
credited to additional paid-in capital.

16. Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)

Prior to the initial public offering in August 200the Company had three classes of capital stotdtanding: Class B preferred stock,
Class A common stock and Class B common stockr Rrithe consummation of the initial public offegithe Company effectuated a series
of transactions in order to, among other thingapéify its capital structure. The Company’s simiglif capital structure has two classes of
authorized capital stock (common stock and prefesteck), of which only shares of common stock riees outstanding after the Compasy’
initial public offering. The recapitalization traaxgtion involved a number of steps that were effatett contemporaneously with the
consummation of the Company’s initial public offegi These steps were as follows:

Sock Split. The Company amended its certificate of incorporatmeffect a 5-for-2 stock split of its commondtoAll share and per
share information in the consolidated financiatesteents has been retroactively restated to ratwecstock split for all years presented.

Conversion of Class B Preferred Sock. Immediately prior to the consummation of the retajziation, all outstanding shares of Class B
preferred stock were converted in accordance \uihr terms into 1,846,396 (on a post stock spkijashares of Class A common stock,
shares of Class C preferred stock and shares ef Clgpreferred stock. All shares of Class C and<Clapreferred stock were redeemed with
cash or common stock as described below.

Redemption of Class C Preferred Sock. Immediately after the conversion of the Class Barred stock, the Company used proceeds
from its initial public offering and the refinangjrof its then existing credit facility to redeenh@ltstanding Class C preferred stock, incluc
any accrued and unpaid dividends, for an aggregdemption price determined in accordance witprigsoffering certificate of
incorporation. The aggregate redemption price efGlass C preferred stock was equal to $30,600.

Repurchase of Class D Preferred Stock. Immediately after the conversion of the Class Begred stock, the Company repurchased all of
the outstanding Class D preferred stock for aneggage repurchase price equal to $8.0 million payablfollows: $4.0 million of the
repurchase price paid in cash using proceeds fnenmttial public offering and the refinancing ¢g Senior Credit Facility, and $4.0 million
paid in shares of its Class A common stock baseth@imitial public offering price of $14.50 perask (before giving effect to the
underwriting discount).

Reclassification of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock. Immediately after the transactions described abiineCompany
amended and restated its certificate of incorpomnatd provide for, among other things, authorizagit@l stock of 60.0 million shares of
common stock and 10.0 million shares of prefertedisafter giving effect to the 5-for-2 stock sphis a result, all of the Company’s Class A
common stock and Class B common stock (includiregeshof Class A common stock issued upon converditime Class B preferred stock
and repurchase of the Class D preferred stock) veetassified as common stock, on a one-for-onesbas

Sock Options and Warrants. Following the reclassification of the Company’s &% all outstanding options and warrants to pseliae
Company'’s Class A common stock and Class B comrtomk $ecame exercisable into shares of the Compamly created common stock
in accordance with the terms of our stock opticanpland stock option and warrant agreements. Apif1, 2006, there were 1,319,594
outstanding options and 1,004,642 outstanding wesrall of which were exercisable.
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As part of its preparation for the initial publiffering, the Company reassessed the value oféts @lass A Common Stock given the
significant improvement in the Company’s operatiegformance during the fiscal year ended April@)%2 The retrospective review
indicated that the fair value of the then Class@hon Stock was in excess of the option exercige ($8.00 per share) at the various grant
dates. As a result, deferred compensation of ajpaiely $785,000 was recorded for the intrinsiareadf the stock (based on the 2,500
options and 179,575 options granted during fisé@i&2and 2005, respectively), which was amortizesl dthve vesting period. Approximately
$365,000 and $420,000 was recorded as compensagiamse in fiscal 2006 and 2005, respectively.

On April 1, 2006, the Company accelerated the mgsti 523,585 stock options whose exercise pricagWelow its closing stock price
on the date the vesting of the options was acdelgrés a result, a charge of approximately $78phtax, was recorded in fiscal 2006. The
accelerated vesting of these stock options is dedrio eliminate a possible compensation expersiased with these options in future
periods due to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R)al8FBased Payment.”

Stock Option Plans
1998 Stock Option Plan

Effective February 18, 1998, the Company adoptedRBC Bearings Incorporated (f/k/a Roller Bearing/dihg Company, Inc.) 1998
Stock Option Plan. The terms of the 1998 optiom pisovide for the grant of options to purchaseap,t413,900 shares of common stock to
officers and employees of, and consultants (inclganembers of the board of directors) to, the Cam@and its subsidiaries. Options granted
may be either incentive stock options (under Sadti22 of the Internal Revenue Code) or non-qualifi®ck options. The 1998 option plan,
which expires on December 31, 2008, is to be gamahy the Company’s board of directors or a consmitdb which the board delegates its
responsibilities. As of April 1, 2006, there wergstanding options to purchase 185,600 sharesmfrmm stock granted under the 1998
option plan, all of which were exercisable. As afghist 15, 2005, the 1998 Stock Option Plan has fsreean and no additional stock options
will be awarded pursuant to the plan.

2001 Stock Option Plan

The RBC Bearings Incorporated (f/k/a Roller Beatit@ding Company, Inc.) 2001 Stock Option Plan wadepted in fiscal 2002 and
amended and restated on October 24, 2003. The tdrthe 2001 option plan provide for the grant pfions to purchase up to 1,008,553
shares of common stock to officers and employegaraf consultants (including members of the boéxdirectors) to, the Company and its
subsidiaries selected by the CEO to participataénplan. Options granted may be either incentiseksoptions (under Section 422 of the
Internal Revenue Code) or non-qualified stock ogidrhe 2001 option plan, which expires in July204 to be governed the Company’s
board of directors or a committee to which the Hazrdirectors delegates its responsibilities. Adpril 1, 2006, there were outstanding
options to purchase 437,992 shares of common gt@ked under the 2001 option plan, all of whichienexercisable. As of August 15, 20
the 2001 Stock Option Plan has been frozen andlditi@nal stock options will be awarded pursuanthi® plan.

2005 Long-Term I ncentive Plan

The Company adopted the 2005 Lofgrm Incentive Plan effective upon the completibitinitial public offering in August 2005. Tt
plan provides for grants of stock options, stocgrapiation rights, restricted stock and performaseards. Directors, officers and other
employees and persons who engage in servicesd@dampany are eligible for grants under the pldre purpose of the plan is to provide
these individuals with incentives to maximize stozkler value and otherwise contribute to the Comgjmauccess and to enable the Com,
to attract, retain and reward the best availabiegre for positions of responsibility.

1,139,170 shares of common stock were authorized$oance under the plan, subject to adjustmethieirevent of a reorganization,
stock split, merger or similar change in the Conypmnorporate structure or in the outstanding shafecommon stock. Of this amount,
683,502 options were awarded to the Company’s CHBeaime of the Company’s initial public offerimg August 2005 at the offering price
of $14.50 per share and the remainder has beerveesi®r grants to the Company’s employees (othan the Company’s CEO) at the
discretion of the Company’s compensation commiftée Company may grant shares of restricted sk employees and directors in the
future under the plan. The Company’s compensationngittee will administer the plan. The Company’sulzbof directors also has the
authority to administer the plan and to take aficas that the compensation committee is otheraigborized to take under the plan. The
terms and conditions of each award made underléime ipcluding vesting requirements, is set fohgistent with the plan in a written
agreement with the grantee.
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Stock Options. Under the 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan, the corspgan committee or the board may approve the aabgdants of
incentive stock options and other non-qualifieccktoptions. The compensation committee also haautigority to approve the grant of
options that will become fully vested and exercisatutomatically upon a change in control. The cengation committee may not, however,
approve an award to any one person in any calgmgaroptions to purchase common stock equal to thare 10% of the total number of
shares authorized under the plan (other than thaliaward to the Company’s CEO discussed abava],it may not approve an award of
incentive options first exercisable in any calengizar whose underlying shares have a fair markeewgreater than $100,000 determined at
the time of grant. As of April 1, 2006, there wergstanding options to purchase 696,002 sharesminon stock granted the 2005 plan, a
which were exercisable.

The compensation committee will approve the exerpiice and term of any option in its discretioapever, the exercise price may not
be less than 100% of the fair market value of aesbhcommon stock on the date of grant. In the cdsany incentive stock option, the opt
must be exercised within 10 years of the date afgiThe exercise price of an incentive option awedro a person who owns stock
constituting more than 10% of our voting power may be less than 110% of such fair market valusumh date and the option must be
exercised within five years of the date of grant.

Restricted Sock. Under the 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan, the corspan committee may approve the award of resttisteck
subject to the conditions and restrictions, andHerduration that it determines in its discretion.

Sock Appreciation Rights. The compensation committee may approve the grastook appreciation rights, or SARS, subject totémmns
and conditions contained in the plan. Under the208hg-Term Incentive Plan, the exercise price 84 must equal the fair market value
of a share of the Company’s common stock on the et SAR was granted. Upon exercise of a SARgthetee will receive an amount in
shares of our common stock equal to the differdreteeen the fair market value of a share of comstook on the date of exercise and the
exercise price of the SAR, multiplied by the numbkshares as to which the SAR is exercised.

Performance Awards. The compensation committee may approve the grapeiddrmance awards contingent upon achievemettidy
grantee or by the Company, of set goals and obsctiegarding specified performance criteria, @specified performance cycle. Awards
may include specific dollar-value target awardsfqgrenance units, the value of which is establishethe time of grant, and/or performance
shares, the value of which is equal to the fairketvalue of a share of common stock on the datgasit. The value of a performance award
may be fixed or fluctuate on the basis of specifiedormance criteria. A performance award maydid put in cash and/or shares of
common stock or other securities.

Amendment and Termination of the Plan. The board may amend or terminate the 2005 Long-Tecentive Plan at its discretion, except
that no amendment will become effective withoubpepproval of the Company’s stockholders if sugpraval is necessary for continued
compliance with the performant@sed compensation exception of Section 162(nfjeofrtternal Revenue Code or any stock exchanged
requirements. If not previously terminated by tlaid, the plan will terminate on the tenth anniaeyof its adoption.

A summary of the status of the Company’s warrantsstock options outstanding as of April 1, 2006riA2, 2005 and April 3, 2004,
and changes during the years ended on those taprssented below. All cashless exercises of aptand warrants are handled through an
independent broker.

Number Of Weighted Average
Common Stock
Warrants/Options Exercise Price

Outstanding, March 29, 2003 3,091,25(  $ 152
Awarded fiscal 200« 93,25( 9.80
Cancelled fiscal 2004 (45,07%) 4.81
Outstanding, April 3, 2004 3,139,42! 1.72
Awarded fiscal 200! 179,57¢ 8.00
Exercised fiscal 200 (13,86¢) 2.49
Cancelled fiscal 2005 (21,039 8.07
Outstanding, April 2, 2005 3,284,10( 2.06
Awarded fiscal 2001 698,50: 14.49
Exercised fiscal 2006 1,658,36() 0.67
Outstanding, April 1, 2006 2,324,23t ¢ 6.78
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During the fiscal year ended April 1, 2006, the Qamy awarded options to purchase common stocklasvf 2,500 options at an
exercise price of $8.00; 683,502 options at anaseprice of $14.50; and 12,500 options at anatseprice of $15.33.

The following table summarizes information abowicktoptions and warrants outstanding at April Q&0

Options/Warrants Weighted Average Options/Warrants
Exercise Price and Weighted Average Exercise Pric Qutstanding Contractual Life Exercisable

$0.40 692,14: 1.3 year 692,14:
$2.06 498,10( 1.8 year 498,10(
$12.00 222,74z 6.5 year 222,74z
$8.00 206,25( 7.5 year 206,25(
$3.20 9,00C 7.5 year 9,00C
$14.50 683,50: 9.5 year: 683,50:
$15.33 12,50( 9.5 year. 12,50(

2,324,23¢ 2,324,23¢

17. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company leases facilities under non-cancelatdeating leases, which expire on various datesutir January 2016, with rental
expense aggregating $1,936, $2,045 and $1,80%dalf2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The Company also has non-cancelable operatingddas&ansportation, computer and office equipmeshiich expire at various dates.
Rental expense for fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 agded $1,220, $1,172 and $579, respectively.

Certain of the above leases are renewable while bear material contingent rent or concession elaus

The aggregate future minimum lease payments ummatng leases are as follows:

2007 $ 3,474
2008 2,981
2009 2,659
2010 2,202
2011 1,502
Thereafter 6,135

The Company entered into an agreement with Whitaeg|ated party, whereby a quarterly managemenvitces fee was paid for certain
consulting and management advisory services, astdul by the board of directors of the Companyagrded to by Whitney. Such ongoing
fees aggregated $173, $450 and $450 for fiscal , Z00@ and 2004, respectively. As of August 2088, agreement is no longer in effect. At
April 2, 2005 and April 3, 2004, amounts payabl&\tbitney were $338 and $338, respectively.

As of April 1, 2006, approximately 26% of the Compa hourly employees in the U.S. and abroad wepeasented by labor unions.
One of the collective bargaining agreements cogesipproximately 54 employees (4.5% of the Compahgigly employees) expires in
June 2007.

The Company enters into government contracts abdosiracts that are subject to audit by the goveminin the opinion of the
Company’s management, the results of such aufldasyj are not expected to have a material impadhe financial condition or results of
operations of the Company.

The Company is subject to federal, state and leealr-onmental laws and regulations, including thgaeerning discharges of pollutants
into the air and water, the storage, handling dsdasal of wastes and the health and safety of @epk. The Company also may be liable
under the Comprehensive Environmental Responsep€asation, and Liability Act or similar state lafes the costs of investigation and
cleanup of contamination at facilities currentlyfarmerly owned or operated by the Company, ottlagiofacilities at which the Company
may have disposed of hazardous substances. In cdmmeith such contamination, the Company may &aksdiable for natural resource
damages, government penalties and claims by thiries for personal injury and property damage.n®igs responsible for enforcing these
laws have authority to impo:
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significant civil or criminal penalties for non-cqiiance. The Company believes it is currently irtenial compliance with all applicable
requirements of environmental laws. The Companys thae anticipate material capital expendituressforironmental controls in fiscal years
2007 or 2008.

Investigation and remediation of contaminationngaing at some of the Company’s sites. In partigg@te agencies have been
overseeing groundwater monitoring activities at@wmnpany’s facilities in Hartsville, South Caroliaad Fairfield, Connecticut. At
Hartsville, the Company is monitoring low levelsamintaminants in the groundwater caused by formerations. The state will permit the
Company to cease monitoring activities after twosazutive sampling periods demonstrate contamirsaatbelow action levels. In
connection with the purchase of the Fairfield, Gagtitut facility in 1996, the Company agreed tauass responsibility for completing clean-
up efforts previously initiated by the prior own&he Company submitted data to the state that tmepany believes demonstrates that no
further remedial action is necessary, althoughsthte may require additional clean-up or monitariighough there can be no assurance, the
Company does not expect any of those to be material

The Company received notice in 2003 from the UrSi®nmental Protection Agency that the Company leh named a potentially
responsiblale minimis party for past disposal of hazardous substancé& dperating Industries, Inc. Landfill in Monteréalif. Any such
disposal would have been conducted prior to the fizmy's ownership, and the Company notified the frowners of a potential claim for
indemnification based on the indemnity describeavabThe Company is currently negotiatindeaminimis settlement with the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency and expects thatsattlement, even if the Company is unsuccessfabtaining indemnification, will not
be material to its financial position or resultsopkrations.

There are various claims and legal proceedingsagtie Company relating to its operations in themal course of business, none of
which the Company believes is material to its firiahposition or results of operations. The Compeamyently maintains insurance coverage
for product liability claims.

18. Other Expense, Net

Other expense, net is comprised of the following:

Fiscal Year Ended
April 1, April 2, April 3,

2006 2005 2004

Management fees $ 173 $ 474 $ 525
Loss on disposition of asse 24 1,989 236
Write-off of acquisition cost — — 399
Plant consolidation cos 1,024 — —
Provision for doubtful accoun 244 472 378
Other expense 959 591 124
$2,424 $352¢ $1,662

19. Related Party Transactions

In June 1997, the Company loaned Dr. Michael Jtrié#t; President and Chief Executive Officer of @@mpany, $500 to purchase
shares of capital stock of the Company. This loas vepaid to the Company on August 15, 2005.

On June 13, 2005, subject to the approval of thm@@my’s senior lenders under the Credit Facility &econd Lien Term Loan, which
was subsequently obtained, the Board of Directgreeal to pay the CEO a ofigte special compensation payment of $5,200 tolvanse the
CEO for taxes owed by him in connection with a pyas stock sale by the CEO to Whitney. The Compasghior lenders approved the
payment on July 13, 2005. As such, the Companyrdecba charge of $5,200 (classified as sellingegdrand administrative expense) in the
second quarter of fiscal 2006.

20. Reportable Segments

The Company operates through operating segmentghich separate financial information is availalaled for which operating results
are evaluated regularly by the Company’s chief atey decision maker in determining resource atiooeand assessing performance. Those
operating segments with similar economic charasties and that meet all other required criterialuding nature of the products and
production processes, distribution patterns anskelsof customers, are aggregated as reportaliestsyy Certain other operating segments
do not exhibit the common attributes mentioned atevd do not meet
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the quantitative thresholds for separate disclgsnd their information is combined and disclosedGther”. There is also a segment
reflecting corporate charges.

The Company has four reportable business segmegéged in the manufacture and sale of the following

Roller Bearings. Roller bearings are anti-friction bearings that ta@kers instead of balls. The Company manufacttoas basic types of
roller bearings: heavy duty needle roller beariwigh inner rings, tapered roller bearings, trackers and aircraft roller bearings.

Plain Bearings. Plain bearings are produced with either self-lLddiiey or metal-to-metal designs and consist of ish\&eib-classes,
including rod end bearings, spherical plain beariagd journal bearings. Unlike ball bearings, whioh used in high-speed rotational
applications, plain bearings are primarily usecdettify inevitable misalignments in various mecltahicomponents.

Ball Bearings. The Company manufactures four basic types of ledlibgs: high precision aerospace, airframe carttisl section and
commercial ball bearings which are used in highedp®tational applications.

Other. Other consists of two minor operating locationg th@not fall into the above segmented categofiee. Company produces
precision ground ball bearing screws at its Lirféacision Products (LPP) plant that offer repeatglolsitioning accuracy in machine tools,
transfer lines, robotic handling and semiconduetpripment. The Company’s Schaublin location prodywecision machine tool collets that
provide effective part holding and accurate paratmn during machining operations.

Corporate. Corporate consists of expenses incurred at theocat office.

The accounting policies of the reportable segmardshe same as those described in Note 2. Segradatmance is evaluated based on
segment net sales, operating income and totalsagtahs not allocated to segment operating incioiclade corporate administrative
expenses and certain other amounts. Identifialsletady reportable segment consist of those dyjritehtified with the segmerst’operations
Corporate assets consist of cash, fixed assetsaataln prepaid expenses.

Fiscal Year Ended

April 1, April 2, April 3,
2006 2005 2004
Net External Sales
Roller $ 96,466 $ 92,281 $ 63,10¢
Plain 115,09 93,25( 77,57¢
Ball 46,37¢ 41,881 35,801
Other 16,574 15,604 10,84¢
$274,50¢ $243,01¢ $187,33!
Operating Income
Roller $ 23,34C $ 17,03C $ 11,25¢
Plain 30,95t 22,641 18,57:
Ball 9,692 9,07C 6,67€
Other 1,47¢ 797 378
Corporate (26,886) (17,405  (14,757)
$ 38,57¢ $ 32,13¢ $ 22,12¢
Total Assets
Roller $ 52,54t $ 43,11 $ 36,78/
Plain 142,957 115,93( 104,82«
Ball 21,02t 26,43¢ 21,14¢
Other 6,932 8,287 6,68¢
Corporate 52,46¢€ 56,401 65,304
$275,927 $250,16¢ $234,74¢
Capital Expenditures
Roller $ 439C $ 3,49 $ 2,10¢
Plain 3,49C 2,66¢ 1,53t
Ball 1,13C 936 795
Other 832 784 349
Corporate 499 1,641 164

$ 10,341

$ 9,52¢

$ 4,951
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Fiscal Year Ended
April 1, 2006 April 2, 2005 April 3, 2004

Depreciation & Amortization

Roller $ 3,07 $ 2618 $ 2,45%
Plain 3,03t 2,501 2,56¢
Ball 1,29¢ 1,30C 1,54¢
Other 1,151 1,281 1,17¢
Corporate 773 1,08 1,434

$ 9,331 $ 8,785 $ 9,182

Geographic External Sales

Domestic $ 24357¢ $ 215381 $ 166,76
Foreign 30,93: 27,63t 20,56¢
$ 27450¢ $ 243,01¢ $ 187,33:
Geographic Lon¢-Lived Assets
Domestic $ 5522¢ $ 52566 $ 52,95¢
Foreign 2,804 2,777 3,29z
$ 58,026 $ 5534 $ 56,24¢
Intersegment Sales
Roller $ 941z $ 727 $ 1,66¢
Plain 851 1,982 880
Ball 5,09¢ 4,07z 397
Other 13,31z 10,147 6,34¢

$ 2867 $ 23477 $ 9,298

All intersegment sales are eliminated in consoiahat
21. Subsequent Event

On April 18, 2006, pursuant to a purchase agreemghtMerrill Lynch & Co., Merrill Lynch, Pierce, @énner & Smith Incorporated,
KeyBanc Capital Markets and Robert W. Baird & Gbe Company and the selling stockholders sold 83#®shares of the Company’s
common stock (5,995,529 sold by the selling stotddrs). The offering yielded aggregate net procéedse Company of approximately
$57,000 after payment of the underwriting disccamd offering expenses. The full amount of the met@eds were used to prepay
outstanding balances under the Term Loan.

ITEM 9. CHANGES AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company’s management is responsible for estdablj and maintaining effective disclosure contesid procedures, as defined
under Rule 13a-15(e) of the Securities ExchangeoAtB34. As of the end of the period covered hy thport, the Company performed an
evaluation, under the supervision and with theigipgtion of the Company’s management, includisgdhief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the Camyp's disclosure controls and procedures. Based thad evaluation, the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer comdéd that the Company’s disclosure controls andgatares provide reasonable assurance
that the material information required to be diseld by the Company in the reports that it filesudymits to the Securities and Exchange
Commission under the Securities Exchange Act ofti93ecorded, processed, summarized and repoitkihuhe time periods specified in
the Commission’s rules and forms. No changes wergento the Company’s internal control over finahaaorting (as defined in Rule 13a-
15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934)rdythe last fiscal quarter that materially afesttor are reasonably likely to materially
affect, the Company’s internal control over finalceporting.
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
PART III

The information called for by Part 1l (Items 10,112, 13 and 14) of Form 10-K will be includedoiar Proxy Statement for our 2006
AnnualMeeting of Shareholders, which the Company intdnd#e within 120 days after the close of its fibgear ended April 1. 2006 and
hereby incorporated by reference to such ProxyeStant.
PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(@ 1. Financial Statements

The following Consolidated Financial Statementthef Company are included in Iltem 8, “Financial &tatnts and Supplementary
Data:

Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing
Consolidated Balance Sheets at April 1, 2006 and 2p2005
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yeaded April 1, 2006, April 2, 2005 and April 3,@®D

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equityfifiit and Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the gearded April 1, 2006,
April 2, 2005 and April 3, 2004

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeadled April 1, 2006, April 2, 2005 and April 3,(D

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(@ 2. Financial Statement Schedules
The following Financial Statement Schedule of tlwenPany is filed with this report:

SCHEDULE II. VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED APRIL 1, 2006, APRIL 2, 2005 AND
APRIL 3, 2004

Charged (Credited)

Balance at to Costs Balance at
Description Beginning of Period and Expenses Deductions End of Period
Allowance for doubtful accounts, deducted from
accounts receivable in the balance st
2006 $ 628 $ 244 % (34) $ 838
2005 770 472 (614) 628
2004 744 378 (352 770

Schedules other than those listed above have baited because of the absence of conditions unti@hithey are required or because
the required information is presented in the finangtatements or notes thereto.

(@) 3. Exhibits
The following exhibits are filed as part of thipost.
Certain of the following exhibits have been prewsigfiled with the Securities and Exchange Commisdiy the Company pursuant to

the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933 thedSecurities Exchange Act of 1934. Such exhiiés
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identified by the parenthetical references follogvthe listing of each such exhibit and are incoapeat herein by reference. The Company’s
Commission file number is 333-124824.

Exhibit
Number Description of Document

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporatioRBC Bearings Incorporated dated August 13, 2698led with
Amendment No. 4 to RBC Bearings Incorporated's eagion Statement on Form S-1, file No. 333-124@8¢ "Registration
Statement") dated August 8, 2005 is hereby incateadrby reference here

3.2 Bylaws of RBC Bearings Incorporated, as filed akhiBit 3.3 to Amendment No. 4 to the Registratioat&ment on Form S-1
dated August 8, 2005 is hereby incorporated byreefee herein

4.1 Form of stock certificate for common stock, asdibes Exhibit 4.3 to RBC Bearings Incorporated's Adment No. 3 to
Registration Statement on Forr-1 dated August 4, 2005 is hereby incorporated fareace hereir

4.2 Form of Amended and Restated Warrants to Purchaser®n Stock, as filed as Exhibit 4.7 to RBC Beatimgprporated’s
Registration Statement on Forr-8 dated March 15, 2006, is hereby incorporatecebgrence hereir

4.3 Amended and Restated Warrants to Purchase Clasp@&\#®ting Common Stock, as filed as Exhibit 4. RRC Bearing
Incorporate’s Registration Statement on Fori-8 dated March 15, 2006, is hereby incorporatedefgrence hereir

10.1 Fifth Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, daseaf August 15, 2005, filed as Exhibit 99.1 onrR@-K dated August
19, 2005 is hereby incorporated by reference he

10.2 Stock Option Plan of RBC Bearings Incorporated/&MRoller Bearing Holding Company, Inc.), datedfBebruary 18, 1998
with form of agreement filed as Exhibit 10.2 to fRegistration Statement on Form S-1 dated May QQ52s hereby
incorporated by reference here

10.3 Form of Stock Transfer Restriction Agreement betwiBBC Bearings Incorporated (f/k/a Roller Bearinglding Company,
Inc.) and certain of its stockholders filed as Bxh10.2 to the Registration Statement on Formd&ated May 11, 2005 is
hereby incorporated by reference her

10.4 Amended and Restated 2001 Stock Option Plan of B8&ings Incorporated (f/k/a Roller Bearing Holdidgmpany, Inc.),
dated October 24, 2003 filed as Exhibit 10.2 toRegistration Statement on Form S-1 dated May @Q52s hereby
incorporated by reference here

10.5 Form of RBC Bearings Inc. 2005 Long-Term Equitydntive Plan, as filed as Exhibit 4.6 to RBC Beatimgprporated’s
Registration Statement on Forr-8 dated November 18, 2005, is hereby incorporaye@ference hereir

10.6 Agreement of Lease between Robear West Trentoncfedes, L.P. and Roller Bearing Company of Amerina,, dated
February 10, 1999, for West Trenton, New Jersegnmes filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrationt&tant on Form 3-datec
May 11, 2005 is hereby incorporated by referenceihe

10.7 First Amendment to Office Lease, dated July 26 2@@tween Robear West Trenton Associates, L.PRatidr Bearing
Company of America, Inc. filed as Exhibit 10.7 he tRegistration Statement on Form S-1 dated Ma@ad5 is hereby
incorporated by reference here

10.8 Indenture of Lease dated March 31, 2004 betweeleRBéaring Company of America, Inc., and Raymonuhidke, LLC, a
Connecticut limited liability company filed as Ekiti10.8 to the Registration Statement on Formd&ted May 11, 2005 is
hereby incorporated by reference her

10.9 Executed counterpart of the Pledge and Securitedment, dated as of September 1, 1994, betweearBahring Company
of America, Inc., Heller Financial, Inc. and Markain Bank filed as Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrattatement on Form S-1
dated May 11, 2005 is hereby incorporated by ref@éderein

10.10 Loan Agreement, dated as of September 1, 1994 glegitthe South Carolina Job—Economic Developmerhéity and
Roller Bearing Company of America, Inc. with respiecthe Series 1994A Bonds filed as Exhibit 1ad.the Registration
Statement on Form-1 dated May 11, 2005 is hereby incorporated byregfee herein

10.11 Trust Indenture, dated as of September 1, 199%degt the South Carolina Job—Economic Developmetii@kity and Mark
Twain Bank, as Trustee, with respect to the SdréglA Bonds filed as Exhibit 10.12 to the RegistraiStatement on Form S-
1 dated May 11, 2005 is hereby incorporated byregige herein

10.12 Loan Agreement, dated as of September 1, 1994 glegitthe South Carolina Job—Economic Developmerhéity and
Roller Bearing Company of America, Inc., with resipt® the Series 1994B Bonds filed as Exhibit 1@d.8e Registration
Statement on Form-1 dated May 11, 2005 is hereby incorporated byregfee herein



10.13 Trust Indenture, dated as of September 1, 199%dast the South Carolina Job—Economic Developmetii@kity and Mark
Twain Bank, as Trustee, with respect to the S&ré&gIB Bonds filed as Exhibit 10.14 to the RegistraStatement on Form S-
1 dated May 11, 2005 is hereby incorporated byregfee herein
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10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

Collective Bargaining Agreement between Heim, titerinational Union, United Automobile, Aerospaced &gricultural
Implement Workers of America, U.A.W., and Amalgaetht.ocal 376, U.A.W., expires January 31, 2008Ifds Exhibit 10.15
to the Registration Statement on For-1 dated May 11, 2005 is hereby incorporated byregfee herein

Collective Bargaining Agreement between Roller BepCompany of America, Inc. and the Internatiddalon U.A.W. and it
Local 502, expires June 30, 2007 filed as ExhiBitLh to the Registration Statement on Form S-1ddsli@y 11, 2005 is hereby
incorporated by reference here

Collective Bargaining Agreement between Tyson Bep@ompany, Inc. and the United Steelworkers of Atage AFL-CIO,
Local 7461- 01, expires June 13, 2008, as fileBExsbit 10.18 to Amendment No. 2 to the RegistratBiatement on Form S-1
dated July 26, 2005, is hereby incorporated byreefee herein

Employment Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2005yé&eh the Company and Michael J. Hartnett, Ph.[d fie Exhibit 10.19 to
Amendment No. 4 to the Registration Statement dateglist 8, 2005 is hereby incorporated by referdrasein.

Amended and Restated Promissory Note, dated asadrbber 15, 2000, for $500,000, made by Michadhbdtnett, Ph.D. and
payable to Roller Bearing Company of America, lifedfas Exhibit 10.20 to the Registration StatenmenEForm S-1 dated May
11, 2005 is hereby incorporated by reference he

Loan Agreement, dated as of April 1, 1999, by aetivieen California Infrastructure and Economic Depeient Bank and
Roller Bearing Company of America, Inc filed as bih10.21 to the Registration Statement on Forth &ted May 11, 2005
is hereby incorporated by reference her

Indenture Of Trust, dated as of April 1, 1999, bedw California Infrastructure and Economic DeveleptBank and U.S.
Bank Trust National Association, as Trustee filsdEahibit 10.22 to the Registration Statement om+8-1 dated May 11,
2005 is hereby incorporated by reference he

Tax Regulatory Agreement, dated as of April 1, 1980and among California Infrastructure and Ecoicdevelopment
Bank, U.S. Bank Trust National Association, as T@asand Roller Bearing Company of America, Inedibs Exhibit 10.23 to
the Registration Statement on For-1 dated May 11, 2005 is hereby incorporated byresige hereir

Lease Agreement, dated as of December 17, 1998ebrtSchaublin SA and RBC Schaublin SA filed asiliikh0.24 to the
Registration Statement on Forr-1 dated May 11, 2005 is hereby incorporated byreefee herein

Lease by and among ABCS Properties, LLC, Michaebhbrt and Lynn C. Short and Bremen Bearings,dated August 31,
2001 filed as Exhibit 10.25 to the Registrationt&teent on Form S-1 dated May 11, 2005 is herebhyrpurated by reference
herein.

Guarantee dated August 15, 2005, by and betweenB&@ings Incorporated and General Electric Cafitaboration, as
agent and Lender filed as Exhibit 99.2 on For-K dated August 19, 2005 is hereby incorporateddigrence hereir

Security Agreement, dated May 30, 2002, by and aniwiler Bearing Company of America, Inc., certairits domestic
subsidiaries, General Electric Capital Corporatasiagent and Lender, as filed as Exhibit 10.2AédRegistration Statement
on Form &1 dated May 11, 2005, is hereby incorporated bgresgice hereir

Pledge Agreement, dated May 30, 2002, by and arRartigr Bearing Company of America, Inc., certairitefdomestic
subsidiaries, General Electric Capital Corporatamsagent and Lender, as filed as Exhibit 10.2BédRegistration Statement
on Form &1 dated May 11, 2005, is hereby incorporated bgresice hereir

Pledge Agreement, dated August 15, 2005, by anddaet RBC Bearings Incorporated and General EleCajoital
Corporation, as agent and Lender filed as Exhi®i8 @n Form 8-K dated August 19, 2005 is herebgriporated by reference
herein.

Master Reaffirmation, dated August 15, 2005, by amibng the Company and certain of its subsidiaimesGeneral Electric
Capital Corporation, as agent and Lender filed»dslit 99.4 on Form 8-K dated August 19, 2005 ischy incorporated by
reference hereir

Master Reaffirmation and Amendment to Loan Documetidited June 29, 2004, by and among Roller Be&amgpany of
America, Inc., certain of its domestic subsidiari@sneral Electric Capital Corporation, as agentlaender, as filed as Exhibit
10.32 to the Registration Statement on Fo-1 dated May 11, 2005, is hereby incorporated beresfce hereir

Lease Agreement dated May 17, 2004 by and betwkadd®vmoss Properties, LLC, a South Carolina limiigaility company
and Roller Bearing Company of America, Inc filedeaghibit 10.33 to the Registration Statement omi&-1 dated May 11,
2005 is hereby incorporated by reference he

Credit Agreement, dated December 8, 2003, betweeditCSuisse and Schaublin SA filed as Exhibit 4G@the Registration
Statement on Form-1 dated May 11, 2005 is hereby incorporated byregfge herein
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10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36

14.1

211

23.1

24.1

311

31.2

32.1

32.2

Amendment No. 1 to Credit Agreement, dated Nover8b@004, between Credit Suisse and Schaublin 184 &is Exhibit
10.35 to the Registration Statement on Fo-1 dated May 11, 2005 is hereby incorporated byresfge hereir

Letter Agreement by and among RBC Bearings Incateol; Roller Bearing Company of America, Inc. Waitr& Co. and Dr.
Michael J. Hartnett dated June 17, 2005, as fifeHxhibit 10.36 to Amendment No. 2 to the RegigiraStatement on Form S-
1 dated July 26, 2005, is hereby incorporated fareace hereir

Second Amended and Restated Stockholders' Agredaeartd among RBC Bearings Incorporated, WhitneyHRBnvestor,
LLC, Whitney V.L.P., Dr. Michael J. Hartnett and fitteett Family Investments, L.P. dated Februaryd®3filed as Exhibit
10.37 to Amendment No. 4 to the Registration Statgrdated August 9, 2005 is hereby incorporatecefgrence hereir
Amendment No. 1 dated August 13, 2005 to the Seéonended and Restated Stockholders' Agreement dyaarong RBC
Bearings Incorporated, Whithey RBHC Investors, LMZhitney V.L.P., Dr. Michael J. Hartnett and Hattriéamily

Investments, L.P. dated February 6, 2003, fileBxdsbit 10.38 to Amendment No. 4 to the RegistratBiatement dated
August 9, 2005 is hereby incorporated by referdrarein.

Purchase Agreement dated August 9, 2005 filed &ghiEx.1 on Form 8-K dated August 15, 2005 is bgrimcorporated by
reference hereir

Code of Ethics of the Registrant filed as Exhilfitté Form 10-Q dated February 14, 2006 is herebyrporated by reference
herein.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant, as filed as Exti® to the Registration Statement on Form S-édiistarch 16, 2006, is
hereby incorporated by reference her

Consent of Ernst & Young LLF

Powers of Attorney (included on signature pa

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant$ecurities Exchange Act Rule -14(a).

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant$ecurities Exchange Act Rule -14(a).

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuantt8 U.S.C. Section 1350 and Securities Exchang&ale 13-14(b).*

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and Securities Exchangdrale 13-14(b).*

* This certification accompanies this Annual Report@rm 10-K, is not deemed filed with the SEC andat to be incorporated by
reference into any filing of the Company under $seurities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Seearifxchange Act of 1934, as
amended (whether made before or after the datéoAnnual Report on Form 10-K), irrespective of general incorporation language
contained in such filing.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyisthas duly caused this Report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thécedmly authorized.

RBC Bearings Incorporate
(Registrant’

By: /s/ Dr. Michael J. Hartne!
Name: Dr. Michael J. Hartne!
Title:  Chief Executive Office
Date: June 16, 200

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this Report has been signed éydltowing persons on behalf of
the Registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

Signature Title

/s/ DR. MICHAEL J. HARTNETT Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
Dr. Michael J. Hartne! (Principal Executive Officer and Chairman)
Date: June 16, 20C

/s/ DANIEL A. BERGERON Chief Financial Officer
Daniel A. Bergerotl (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
Date: June 16, 20(C

/sl THOMAS BURIGO Corporate Controller
Thomas Burigc
Date: June 16, 20(C

/sl ROBERT ANDERSOM Director
Robert Andersol
Date: June 16, 20C

/s/ RICHARD R. CROWELL Director
Richard R. Crowel
Date: June 16, 20C

/s/ WILLIAM P. KILLIAN Director
William P. Killian
Date: June 16, 20C

/s/ ALAN B. LEVINE Director
Alan B. Levine
Date: June 16, 20C

/s DR. AMIR FAGHRI Director
Dr. Amir Faghri
Date: June 16, 20C

/sIDR. THOMAS J. CBRIEN Director
Dr. Thomas J. 'Brien
Date:June 16, 200
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Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-129828fgning to the RBC Bearings
Incorporated 2005 Long-Term Equity Incentive Pldne, RBC Bearings Incorporated Amended and Resggiedl Stock Option Plan, the
RBC Bearings Incorporated 1998 Stock Option Plad,the June 23, 1997 RBC Bearings Incorporated &dakgreements of our report

dated June 2, 2006 with respect to the consolidatadcial statements and schedule of RBC Beaiiingsrporated included in the Annual
Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended April 1, 2006

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Hartford, Connecticut
June 13, 2006




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, Dr. Michael J. Hartnett, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fIRBC Bearings Incorporated;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)}Heregistrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedaotes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including any consolidaseibsidiaries, is made known to
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepared

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguatures, as of the end of the period coveredibydport based on such evaluati
and

¢) disclosed in this report any change in the teyig's internal control over financial reportifttgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter that has materiallycée, or is reasonably likely to materially affetie registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

5. The registrang other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdhon our most recent evaluation of internal @miver financial reporting
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commititthe registrant’s board of directors (or pessperforming the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weads®s in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: June 16, 2006 By: /s/ Dr. Michael J. Hartne
Dr. Michael J. Hartnel
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Daniel A. Bergeron, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fIRBC Bearings Incorporated;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)}Heregistrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedaotes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including any consolidaseibsidiaries, is made known to
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepared

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguatures, as of the end of the period coveredibydport based on such evaluati
and

¢) disclosed in this report any change in the teyig's internal control over financial reportifttgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter that has materiallycée, or is reasonably likely to materially affetie registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

5. The registrang other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdhon our most recent evaluation of internal @miver financial reporting
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commititthe registrant’s board of directors (or pessperforming the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weads®s in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: June 16, 2006 By: /s/ Daniel A. Bergero
Daniel A. Bergerot
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

The undersigned, Dr. Michael J. Hartnett, the Flersi and Chief Executive Officer of RBC Bearingsdrporated (the “Company”), pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. 81350, hereby certifies that:

(i) the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year edd\pril 1, 2006 of the Company (the “Report”) jutomplies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SéearExchange Act of 1934.

(i) the information contained in the Report faigyesents, in all material respects, the finarmaldition and results of
operations of the Company.

Dated: June 16, 2006
/s/ Dr. Michael J. Hartne

Dr. Michael J. Hartne!
President and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

The undersigned, Daniel A. Bergeron, Chief Findr@ifficer, of RBC Bearings Incorporated (the “Comg8), pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350,
hereby certifies:

(i) the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the periawled April 1, 2006 of the Company (the “Report"Jyiicomplies with
the requirements of Section 13(a) and 15(d) o&&eurities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(i) the information contained in the Report faigyesents, in all material respects, the finarmaldition and results of
operations of the Company.

Dated: June 16, 2006

/s/ Daniel A. Bergero
Daniel A. Bergerot
Chief Financial Office!




